
 
(m)  Operating Leases - Alliant Energy has certain PPAs that provide Alliant Energy exclusive rights to all or a substantial portion of the output 
from the specific generating facility over the contract term and therefore are accounted for as operating leases.  Costs associated with these PPAs 
are included in “Electric production fuel and energy purchases” and “Purchased electric capacity” in Alliant Energy’s and WPL’s Consolidated 
Statements of Income based on monthly payments for these PPAs.  Monthly capacity payments related to one of these PPAs is higher during the 
peak demand period from May 1 through Sep. 30 and lower in all other periods during each calendar year.  These seasonal differences in capacity 
charges are consistent with expected market pricing and the expected usage of energy from the facility.  
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(n)  Emission Allowances - Emission allowances are granted by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at zero cost and permit the 
holder of the allowances to emit certain gaseous by-products of fossil fuel combustion, including SO2 and NOx.  Unused emission allowances 
may be bought and sold or carried forward to be utilized in future years.  Purchased emission allowances are recorded as intangible assets at their 
original cost and evaluated for impairment as long-lived assets to be held and used.  Emission allowances allocated to or acquired by Alliant 
Energy, IPL or WPL are held primarily for consumption.  Amortization of emission allowances is based upon a weighted average cost for each 
category of vintage year utilized during the reporting period and is recorded in “Electric production fuel and energy purchases” in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income.  Cash inflows and outflows related to sales and purchases of emission allowances are recorded as investing 
activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.  Refer to Note 15 for additional discussion of emission allowances and Note 1(b) for 
information regarding regulatory liabilities related to emission allowances.  
 
(o)  Cash Flows Presentation - Alliant Energy reports cash flows from continuing operations together with cash flows from discontinued 
operations on its Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.  Refer to Note 17 for details of cash flows from discontinued operations.  
 
(p)  Asset Retirement Obligations - The fair value of any retirement costs associated with an asset for which Alliant Energy has a legal 
obligation is recorded as a liability with an equivalent amount added to the asset cost when an asset is placed in service or when sufficient 
information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of future retirement costs.  The fair value of asset retirement 
obligations is generally determined using discounted cash flow analyses.  The liability is accreted to its present value each period and the 
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset.  For IPL and WPL, accretion and depreciation expense related to their 
regulated operations is recorded to regulatory assets on their respective Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Upon settlement of the liability, an entity 
settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss.  For IPL and WPL, any gain or loss related to their regulated operations is 
recorded to regulatory liabilities or regulatory assets on their respective Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Refer to Note 18 for additional discussion 
of asset retirement obligations.  
 
(q)  Debt Issuance and Retirement Costs - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL defer and amortize debt issuance costs and debt premiums or discounts 
over the expected lives of the respective debt issues, considering maturity dates and, if applicable, redemption rights held by others.  Alliant 
Energy’s remaining businesses expense in the period of retirement any unamortized debt issuance costs and debt premiums or discounts on debt 
retired early.  Refer to Note 8(b) for details on Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s long-term debt and Note 1(b) for information on IPL’s and 
WPL’s regulatory assets related to debt retired early or refinanced.  
 
(r)  New Accounting Pronouncements -  
Fair Value Measurements  
In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance requiring fair value measurements and 
disclosures for all nonrecurring fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and liabilities.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this 
guidance on Jan. 1, 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition and results of operations.  
 
In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for determining fair values when there is no active market or where the price inputs being 
used represent distressed sales.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this clarifying guidance on June 30, 2009 with no material impact on their 
financial condition and results of operations.  
 
In August 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance clarifying that the quoted price for an identical liability, when traded as an asset in an 
active market, is also a Level 1 measurement for that liability when no adjustment to the quoted price is required.  In the absence of a Level 1 
measurement, an entity must use one or more of the following valuation techniques to estimate fair value, which can be classified into two 
categories: 1) a valuation technique that uses a quoted price; and 2) another valuation technique based on the amount an entity would pay to 
transfer the identical liability or based on the amount an entity would receive to enter into an identical liability.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL 
adopted this guidance on Oct. 1, 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition and results of operations.  
 
Refer to Note 10 for disclosures about fair value measurements.  
   

110  

 
Redeemable Equity Instruments  
In August 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance requiring preferred securities that are redeemable for cash or other assets to be classified 
outside of permanent equity if they are redeemable (1) at a fixed or determinable price on a fixed or determinable date, (2) at the option of the 

Income taxes, net of refunds      (140.7 )     131.0       151.7   
Noncash investing and financing activities:                          

Capital lease obligations incurred      5.2       --      --  
Debt assumed by buyer of Mexico business      --      --      5.0   

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8269 of 9808



holder, or (3) upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within the control of the issuer.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this 
guidance in August 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition and results of operations.  Refer to Note 7(b) for disclosures about 
redeemable equity instruments.  
 
Variable Interest Entities (VIEs)  
In June 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance changing the approach to determine a VIE’s primary beneficiary and requiring ongoing 
assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE.  This guidance also requires additional disclosures about a company’s 
involvement with VIEs and any significant changes in risk exposure due to that involvement.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this guidance 
on Jan. 1, 2010.  Prior to the adoption of this guidance, special purpose entities were excluded from the scope of the accounting guidance for 
VIEs.  Under this new guidance, the scope exception for special purpose entities has been eliminated.  IPL uses special purpose entities for its 
sales of accounts receivable program.  If IPL sells any of its accounts receivable in the future, the third-party financial institution that purchases 
IPL’s receivables will require future evaluation to determine whether it qualifies as a VIE and whether IPL is the primary beneficiary.  Refer to 
Note 19 for disclosures about VIEs.  
 
Transfers of Financial Assets  
In June 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance requiring additional disclosures about transfers of financial assets, including securitization 
transactions, and where companies have continuing exposure to the risks related to transferred financial assets.  This guidance also eliminates the 
concept of a “qualifying special-purpose entity” and changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL 
adopted this guidance on Jan. 1, 2010.  Prior to the adoption of this guidance, Alliant Energy and IPL accounted for transfers of financial assets 
under IPL’s sale of accounts receivable program as sales of receivables.  Under this new guidance, transfers of financial assets under IPL’s current 
sale of accounts receivable program will be accounted for as secured borrowings.  Refer to Note 4(a) for disclosures about transfers of financial 
assets.  
 
Subsequent Events  
In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance establishing general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the 
balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued.  In particular, this guidance sets forth: 1) the period after the balance sheet date 
during which management should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements; 
2) the circumstances under which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial 
statements; and 3) the disclosures that an entity should make about events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date.  Alliant 
Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this guidance on June 30, 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition and results of operations.    
   
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments  
In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance intending to bring greater consistency to the timing of impairment recognition and provide 
greater clarity to investors about the credit and noncredit components of impaired debt securities that are not expected to be sold.  This guidance 
requires additional disclosures regarding expected cash flows, credit losses and an aging of securities with unrealized losses.  Alliant Energy, IPL 
and WPL adopted this guidance on June 30, 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition and results of operations.  
 
Equity Method Investments  
In November 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance intended to address questions that have arisen regarding the application of equity 
method accounting guidance because of the significant changes to the guidance on business combinations and subsidiary equity transactions and 
the increased use of fair value measurements as a result of this guidance.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this guidance prospectively for 
transactions occurring on or after Jan. 1, 2009 with no material impact on their financial condition or results of operations in 2009.  Because the 
provisions of this guidance are only applied prospectively to transactions after adoption, the impact to Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL cannot be 
determined until any such transactions occur.  Refer to Note 9(a) for disclosures about equity method investments.  
 
Business Combinations  
In December 2007, the FASB issued authoritative guidance establishing principles and requirements for how the acquiring entity in a business 
combination: recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling 
interest in the acquiree; recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and 
determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
combination.  In April 2009, the FASB issued revised authoritative guidance requiring an acquirer to recognize at fair value an asset acquired or 
liability assumed in a business combination that arises from a contingency if the acquisition-date fair value of that asset or liability can be 
determined during the measurement period.  If the acquisition-date fair value cannot be determined then the acquirer follows the recognition 
criteria for contingencies to determine whether the contingency should be recognized as of the acquisition date or after it.  Alliant Energy, IPL and 
WPL adopted this guidance prospectively for business combinations occurring on or after Jan. 1, 2009 with no material impact on their financial 
condition or results of operations in 2009.  
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Noncontrolling Interests  
In December 2007, the FASB issued authoritative guidance amending accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a 
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.  This guidance also clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership 
interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements.  This guidance also changes the way 
the consolidated income statement is presented, establishes a single method of accounting for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a 
subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation, requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated 
and requires expanded disclosures in the consolidated financial statements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent’s 
owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of a subsidiary.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this guidance on Jan. 1, 2009 with 
retrospective application of the presentation and disclosure requirements.  Adoption of this guidance had no material impact on their financial 
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condition and results of operations.  Refer to Note 7(c) for disclosures about noncontrolling interests.  
 
(2)   UTILITY RATE CASES  
IPL ’s Iowa Retail Electric Rate Case (2008 Test Year) - In March 2009, IPL filed a request with the IUB to increase annual rates for its Iowa 
retail electric customers.  The filing was based on a 2008 historical test year as adjusted for certain known and measurable changes occurring up to 
12 months after commencement of the proceeding.  In conjunction with the filing, IPL implemented an interim retail electric rate increase of $84 
million, on an annual basis, effective in March 2009 without regulatory review and subject to refund pending determination of final rates from the 
request.  In January 2010, IPL received an order from the IUB authorizing final rates equivalent to the interim rate increase.  As a result, IPL did 
not record any rate refund reserves related to the interim rate increase.  Refer to Note 1(b) for discussion of the IUB’s decision in the January 2010 
order allowing IPL to recover $8 million of flood-related costs incurred in 2008 and to use regulatory liabilities to offset the recovery of $26 
million of costs incurred for the cancelled Sutherland #4 base-load project and $46 million of transmission costs expected to be billed to IPL in 
2010 related to ITC’s 2008 transmission revenue true-up adjustment.  
 
WPL’s Retail Rate Case (2010 Test Year) - In December 2009, WPL received an order from the PSCW authorizing an annual retail electric rate 
increase of $59 million, or approximately 6%, and an annual retail natural gas increase of $6 million, or approximately 2%, effective January 
2010.  Refer to Note 1(b) for discussion of the PSCW’s decision in the December 2009 order regarding recovery of previously incurred costs for 
the cancelled Nelson Dewey #3 base-load project.  
 
WPL’s Fuel-related Retail Rate Cases - Retail fuel-related costs incurred by WPL in 2008 and 2007 were lower than retail fuel-related costs 
used to determine rates during such periods resulting in refunds owed to its retail electric customers.  In 2009, WPL received approval from the 
PSCW to refund $23 million to its retail electric customers in 2009 related to the 2008 fuel-related retail rate case and the remaining $2 million of 
refunds to retail electric customers in 2009 related to fuel-related costs in the 2007 retail rate case.  WPL completed these refunds in 2009.  
 
In August 2009, WPL notified the PSCW that its actual retail fuel-related costs incurred during the month of July 2009 were below the monthly 
monitoring range of plus or minus 8% and projected annual retail fuel-related costs for 2009 could fall outside the annual monitoring range of plus 
or minus 2%.  In September 2009, the PSCW issued an order that set WPL’s retail electric fuel rates currently in effect subject to refund beginning 
Sep. 1, 2009.  In January 2010, WPL filed a retail electric fuel refund report indicating retail fuel over collections of $4 million for the period from 
Sep. 1, 2009 through Dec. 31, 2009.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, WPL reserved $4 million, including interest, for refunds anticipated to be paid to its 
retail electric customers.  
 
Refer to Note 1(h) for further discussion of WPL’s fuel cost recovery and Note 1(b) for discussion of various other rate matters.  
 
(3)   LEASES  
(a)  Operating Leases - Alliant Energy has entered into various agreements related to property, plant and equipment rights that are accounted for 
as operating leases.  Alliant Energy’s most significant operating leases relate to certain PPAs.  These PPAs contain fixed rental payments related 
to capacity and contingent rental payments related to the energy portion (actual MWhs) of the respective PPAs.  Rental expenses associated with 
Alliant Energy’s operating leases were as follows (in millions):  
   

112  

 
   

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy’s future minimum operating lease payments, excluding contingent rentals, were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(b)  Capital Leases - At Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, Alliant Energy’s gross assets under its capital leases (excluding capital leases between related 
parties) were $8 million and $3 million, and the related accumulated amortization was $2 million and $1 million, respectively.  At Dec. 31, 2009, 
Alliant Energy’s future minimum capital lease payments were as follows (in millions):  
 

    2009      2008      2007    
Operating lease rental expenses (excluding contingent rentals)    $ 79     $ 90     $ 109   
Contingent rentals related to certain PPAs      7       7       19   
Other contingent rentals      1       2       2   
    $ 87     $ 99     $ 130   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter     Total    
Riverside Energy Center (Riverside) PPA (a)    $ 58     $ 59     $ 60     $ 17     $ --    $ --    $ 194   
Synthetic leases (b)      8       4       43       1       4       2       62   
Other      10       11       5       4       3       23       56   
    $ 76     $ 74     $ 108     $ 22     $ 7     $ 25     $ 312   

(a)   WPL’s Riverside PPA contains a provision granting WPL the option to purchase this facility in 2013.  Refer to Note 19 for additional 
information on this PPA.  

(b)   The synthetic leases relate to the financing of certain corporate headquarters and utility railcars.  The entities that lease these assets to Alliant 
Energy do not meet consolidation requirements and are not included on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Alliant Energy has 
guaranteed the residual value of the related assets, which total $48 million in the aggregate.  The guarantees extend through the maturity of 
each respective underlying lease with remaining terms up to six years.  Residual value guarantee amounts have been included in the future 
minimum operating lease payments.  

                                              Less: amount      Present value of net    

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8271 of 9808



 
(4)   RECEIVABLES  
(a)  Sales of Accounts Receivable - IPL participates in an accounts receivable sale program whereby it may sell up to a maximum amount of 
$150 million of its accounts receivable, including unbilled revenues, to a third-party financial institution through wholly-owned and consolidated 
special purpose entities.  Corporate Services acts as collection agent for the buyer and receives a fee for collection services.  Under terms of the 
agreement, the third-party financial institution purchases the receivables initially for the face amount.  IPL makes monthly payments to the third-
party financial institution of an amount that varies based on interest rates, the length of time the sold receivables remain outstanding and the total 
amount under commitment by the third-party financial institution.  Retained receivables are available to the third-party financial institution to pay 
any fees or expenses due it, and to absorb all credit losses incurred on any of the sold receivables.  The agreement expires in March 2012.  
 
At Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, IPL had sold in the aggregate $0 and $25 million, respectively, of accounts receivable.  IPL has historically used 
proceeds from the sales of accounts receivable to maintain flexibility in its capital structure, take advantage of favorable short-term rates and 
finance a portion of its cash needs.  IPL’s average amount of aggregate accounts receivable sold and costs incurred related to the sales of accounts 
receivable program was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Refer to Note 1(r) for discussion of new accounting guidance, which is expected to impact how IPL accounts for any sales of its accounts 
receivables beginning Jan. 1, 2010.  
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(b)  Whiting Petroleum Corporation (WPC) Tax Sharing Agreement - Prior to an initial public offering (IPO) of WPC in 2003, Alliant 
Energy and WPC entered into a tax separation and indemnification agreement pursuant to which Alliant Energy and WPC made tax 
elections.  These tax elections had the effect of increasing the tax basis of the assets of WPC’s consolidated tax group based on the sales price of 
WPC’s shares in the IPO.  The increase in the tax basis of the assets was included in income in Alliant Energy’s U.S. federal income tax return for 
the calendar year 2003.  Pursuant to the tax separation and indemnification agreement, WPC will be obligated to pay Resources 90% of any tax 
benefits realized annually due to the additional tax deductions from the increase in tax basis for years ending on or prior to Dec. 31, 2013.  Such 
tax benefits will generally be calculated by comparing WPC’s actual taxes to the taxes that would have been owed by WPC had the increase in 
basis not occurred.  In 2014, WPC will be obligated to pay Resources the present value of the remaining tax benefits assuming all such tax 
benefits will be realized in future years.  At the IPO closing date, Resources recorded a receivable from WPC based on the estimated present value 
of the payments expected from WPC.  At Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, the carrying value of this receivable was $25 million and $26 million, 
respectively.  The current and non-current portions of this receivable are recorded in “Other current assets” and “Deferred charges and other,” 
respectively, on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
 
(c)  Property Insurance Recoveries - In June 2008, the Midwest experienced severe flooding that impacted the operations of several Alliant 
Energy companies including IPL, WPL and Resources.  The severe flooding resulted in significant property damage, electric and steam service 
outages and the evacuation of and damage to various office and operational facilities.  Alliant Energy has a property insurance policy that provides 
coverage up to $100 million for covered flood losses incurred by various subsidiaries including IPL, WPL and Resources.  Alliant Energy incurred 
covered flood losses related to the severe Midwest flooding in June 2008 that exceed the $100 million coverage limit under Alliant Energy’s 
property insurance policy.  As a result, Alliant Energy received $100 million of payments for reimbursement of covered flood losses under the 
property insurance policy during 2009 and 2008.  
 
Alliant Energy and IPL recorded IPL’s portion of the proceeds as a $45 million ($27 million in 2009 and $18 million in 2008) decrease in “Utility 
other operation and maintenance” in their Consolidated Statements of Income and a $54 million ($38 million in 2009 and $16 million in 2008) 
increase in “Utility accumulated depreciation” on their Consolidated Balance Sheets based on the percentage of covered flood losses charged to 
expense and capital accounts.  Alliant Energy recorded Resources’ portion of the proceeds as a $1 million decrease in “Non-regulated operation 
and maintenance” in its Consolidated Statement of Income in 2008.  
 
At Dec. 31, 2008, Alliant Energy and IPL recorded $26 million in “Accounts receivable - other” on their respective Consolidated Balance Sheets 
related to operating expenses incurred through Dec. 31, 2008 that were reimbursed with property insurance payments in 2009.  
 
(d)  Cash Collateral - As of Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, IPL, WPL and Corporate Services had entered into numerous agreements to purchase 
electricity and natural gas to serve IPL’s and WPL’s utility customers.  Exposure under certain of these agreements exceeded contractual limits, 
requiring WPL and Corporate Services to provide cash collateral to certain counterparties.  The cash collateral was recorded in “Accounts 
receivable - other” on Alliant Energy’s and WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 as follows (in millions):  
 

                                              representing      minimum capital    
    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter     Total      interest      lease payments    
Capital leases    $ 2     $ 1     $ 1     $ 1     $ 1     $ 2     $ 8     $ 2     $ 6   

    2009      2008      2007    
Average amount of aggregate accounts receivable sold                    

(based on daily outstanding balances)    $ 113.0     $ 47.5     $ 118.8   
Costs incurred      2.1       1.6       6.8   

    2009      2008    
WPL    $ 2     $ 15   
Corporate Services      --      2   

Alliant Energy    $ 2     $ 17   
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(e)  Advances for Customer Energy Efficiency Projects - WPL and IPL offer energy efficiency programs to certain of their customers in 
Wisconsin and Minnesota, respectively.  The energy efficiency programs provide low-cost financing to help customers identify, purchase and 
install energy efficiency improvement projects.  The customers repay WPL and IPL with monthly payments over a term up to five years.  The 
advances for and collections of customer energy efficiency projects are recorded as investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash 
Flows.  The current portion and non-current portion of outstanding advances for customer energy efficiency projects are recorded in “Other 
accounts receivable” and “Deferred charges and other,” respectively on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  At Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, IPL’s and 
WPL’s outstanding advances for customer energy efficiency projects were as follows (in millions):  
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(5)   INCOME TAXES  
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) - The components of “Income tax expense (benefit)” in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Statements of Income were 
as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Income Tax Rates - The income tax rates shown in the following table were computed by dividing income tax expense (benefit) by income from 
continuing operations before income taxes.  
 

 
State filing changes - In February 2009, the Wisconsin Senate Bill 62 (SB 62) was enacted.  The most significant provision of SB 62 for Alliant 
Energy, IPL and WPL requires combined reporting for corporate income taxation in Wisconsin beginning with tax returns filed for the calendar 
year 2009.  This provision requires all legal entities in which Alliant Energy owns a 50% or more interest to file as members of a unitary return in 
Wisconsin.  As a result of this provision in SB 62 and in order to take advantage of efficiencies that may be available as a result of IPL and WPL 
sharing resources and facilities, WPL plans to file as a member of Iowa consolidated tax returns beginning with calendar year 2009.  Changes in 
state apportioned income tax rates resulting from Wisconsin combined reporting requirements and WPL’s plans to be included in Iowa 
consolidated tax returns required Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL to adjust the carrying value of their deferred income tax assets and liabilities in 
2009.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL recognized net income tax benefits in 2009 of $40.4 million, $32.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively, 
related to these impacts.  The provisions of SB 62 also make it unlikely that Alliant Energy will be able to utilize the majority of its current 
Wisconsin net operating loss carryforwards before they expire.  Therefore, the valuation allowance related to the Wisconsin net operating loss 
carryforwards was increased by $6 million in 2009.  Changes in state apportioned income tax rates resulting from Wisconsin combined reporting 
requirements and WPL’s plans to be included in Iowa consolidated tax returns also resulted in reductions in the deferred tax assets for Wisconsin 
and Iowa capital loss carryforwards and associated valuation allowances of $11 million in 2009.  
 
IPL’s electric transmission assets sale - In 2007, Alliant Energy and IPL recorded $96 million of income tax expense related to the $219 million 
pre-tax gain on the sale of IPL’s electric transmission assets.  By closing the sale in 2007 and by meeting certain other requirements, IPL qualifies 
to pay taxes related to the gain on the sale ratably over an eight-year period.  As a result, a portion of the income tax expense on the gain related to 

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Current portion    $ 32.9     $ 40.8     $ 3.9     $ 4.4     $ 29.0     $ 36.4   
Non-current portion      60.5       85.2       6.5       8.1       54.0       77.1   
    $ 93.4     $ 126.0     $ 10.4     $ 12.5     $ 83.0     $ 113.5   

    2009      2008      2007    
Current tax expense (benefit):                    

Federal    $ (140.1 )   $ 62.6     $ 122.2   
State      (4.4 )     18.6       34.9   

Deferred tax expense (benefit):                          
Federal      134.9       56.5       81.5   
State      (39.0 )     14.0       18.2   

Production tax credit      (4.7 )     (0.3 )     --  
Investment tax credits      (1.9 )     (3.4 )     (6.3 ) 
Provision recorded as a change in uncertain tax positions      47.1       (0.5 )     (2.0 ) 
Provision recorded as a change in accrued interest      (1.1 )     (7.3 )     7.3   
    $ (9.2 )   $ 140.2     $ 255.8   

  2009    2008    2007  
Statutory federal income tax rate  35.0%   35.0%   35.0% 

State income taxes, net of federal benefits  5.3   5.0   3.6 
IPL’s electric transmission assets sale  --  --  2.8 
Reversal of capital loss valuation allowances  --  --  (0.9) 
Effect of rate making on property related differences  (3.5)   (2.6)   (0.9) 
Production tax credits  (3.9)   (0.1)   --
Adjustment of prior period taxes  (6.2)   (3.4)   (0.4) 
State filing changes  (33.6)   --  --
Other items, net  (0.8)   (2.0)   (2.6) 

Overall income tax rate  (7.7%)   31.9%   36.6% 
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the sale was allocated to each of the “Current tax expense (benefit)” lines and the “Deferred tax expense (benefit)” lines in the 2007 column of the 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) table above.  Income tax expense related to the sale exceeded the statutory federal income tax amount by $19.5 
million due to $14.5 million of income tax expense associated with property-related temporary differences for which deferred tax expense was not 
recorded pursuant to Iowa rate making principles plus $12.4 million of state income taxes related to the pre-tax gain less the recognition of the 
unamortized balance of deferred investment tax credits of $2.2 million and the reversal of $5.2 million of excess deferred taxes related to the 
assets sold.  Refer to Notes 1(b) and 22 for further discussion of IPL’s electric transmission assets sale.  
   

115  

 
Reversal of capital loss valuation allowances - In 2007, Alliant Energy recorded the reversal of $6.4 million of deferred tax asset valuation 
allowances originally recorded in prior years related to a change in Alliant Energy’s anticipated ability to utilize certain capital losses prior to their 
expiration.  Alliant Energy has utilized all of its federal capital losses and the majority of its Iowa capital losses.  
 
Adjustment of prior period taxes - In 2008, Alliant Energy reached a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), which finalized the 
audit of Alliant Energy’s U.S. federal income tax returns for calendar years 2002 through 2004.  As a result of completing the audit and recording 
known adjustments for the tax return for calendar years 2005 through 2007, Alliant Energy recorded net income tax benefits in 2008 of $12.1 
million ($12.6 million at IPL).  These income tax benefits decreased the effective income tax rate by 2.8% and are included, along with other 
adjustments, in “Adjustment of prior period taxes” in the 2008 column of the table above.  
 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - Consistent with rate making treatment, deferred taxes are offset in the table below for temporary 
differences which have related regulatory assets and liabilities.  The deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities included on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 arise from the following temporary differences (in millions):  
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    2009      2008    

    Deferred      
Deferred 

Tax            Deferred      
Deferred 

Tax          
    Tax Assets     Liabilities      Net      Tax Assets     Liabilities      Net    
Property    $ --    $ 1,130.2     $ 1,130.2     $ --    $ 715.2     $ 715.2   
Deferred portion of tax gain on IPL’s                                                  

electric transmission assets sale      --      125.5       125.5       --      156.5       156.5   
Investment in American Transmission                                                  

Co. LLC (ATC)      --      71.5       71.5       --      52.2       52.2   
Deferred portion of tax gain on retired                                                  

Exchangeable Senior Notes      --      53.2       53.2       --      --      --  
Pension and other postretirement                                                  

benefits obligations      --      43.4       43.4       --      40.4       40.4   
Prepaid gross receipts tax      --      15.3       15.3       --      15.1       15.1   
Regulatory asset - IPL base-load project      --      9.7       9.7       --      --      --  
Regulatory asset - WPL base-load project      --      5.1       5.1       --      11.0       11.0   
Regulatory asset/(liability) - commodity                                                  

cost recovery      --      3.7       3.7       (30.1 )     --      (30.1 ) 
Exchangeable Senior Notes      --      --      --      --      142.5       142.5   
Capital losses carryforward      (8.7 )     --      (8.7 )     (32.0 )     --      (32.0 ) 
Regulatory liability - flood insurance      (11.3 )     --      (11.3 )     --      --      --  
Deferred compensation      (11.5 )     --      (11.5 )     (11.6 )     --      (11.6 ) 
Investment tax credits      (12.6 )     --      (12.6 )     (13.9 )     --      (13.9 ) 
Emission allowances      (13.4 )     --      (13.4 )     (24.5 )     --      (24.5 ) 
Regulatory liability - DAEC sale      (15.7 )     --      (15.7 )     (24.3 )     --      (24.3 ) 
Customer advances      (16.4 )     --      (16.4 )     (15.2 )     --      (15.2 ) 
Net operating losses carryforward - state      (28.0 )     --      (28.0 )     (19.4 )     --      (19.4 ) 
Regulatory liability - IPL’s electric                                                  

transmission assets sale      (32.1 )     --      (32.1 )     (36.5 )     --      (36.5 ) 
Net operating losses carryforward - federal      (53.4 )     --      (53.4 )     --      --      --  
Regulatory liability - repairs expenditures      (53.5 )     --      (53.5 )     --      --      --  
Credits carryforward - federal      (80.2 )     --      (80.2 )     --      --      --  
Other      (50.1 )     43.1       (7.0 )     (45.0 )     32.4       (12.6 ) 

Subtotal      (386.9 )     1,500.7       1,113.8       (252.5 )     1,165.3       912.8   
Valuation allowances      27.1       --      27.1       32.6       --      32.6   
    $ (359.8 )   $ 1,500.7     $ 1,140.9     $ (219.9 )   $ 1,165.3     $ 945.4   

    2009      2008    
Other current assets    $ (45.5 )   $ (25.8 ) 
Deferred income taxes      1,186.4       971.2   

Total deferred tax (assets) and liabilities    $ 1,140.9     $ 945.4   
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Alliant Energy’s tax carryforwards and associated deferred tax assets and expiration dates at Dec. 31, 2009 were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, the state net operating losses carryforwards had expiration dates ranging from 2010 to 2030 with 93% expiring after 2015.  Due 
to the uncertainty of the realization of certain tax carryforwards, Alliant Energy established valuation allowances of $27 million as of Dec. 31, 
2009.  
 
Property - The increases in deferred tax liabilities during 2009 were primarily due to additional temporary differences resulting from bonus tax 
depreciation deductions eligible for assets placed in service in 2009 under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), a 
recent change in method of accounting for tax purposes related to repair expenditures and a difference between the book and tax methods used to 
allocate flood insurance proceeds received as a result of the severe flooding in IPL’s service territory in 2008.  The change in tax method of 
accounting for repairs expenditures allows a current tax deduction for certain repair expenditures that are capitalized for book purposes.  Flood 
insurance proceeds were allocated solely to capital for tax purposes and split between capital and expense for book purposes.  The change in tax 
method of accounting for repairs expenditures and the tax method for allocating flood insurance proceeds were included in the federal and state 
income tax returns for calendar year 2008 filed in the second half of 2009.  
 
Deferred portion of tax gain on retired Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2030 (Notes) - Alliant Energy recognized a $152 million tax gain 
upon the retirement of its Notes in 2009.  Under provisions of the ARRA, Alliant Energy can defer its federal income tax obligation associated 
with the tax gain for five years, with one-fifth of the federal income tax obligation being paid in each of the years 2014 through 2018.  Refer to 
Note 8(b) for further discussion of the retirement of the Notes.  
 
Income Tax Refunds Receivable - In 2009, “Income tax refunds receivable” on Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s  Consolidated Balance 
Sheets increased $102 million, $55 million and $73 million, respectively, primarily due to tax deductions for repair expenditures discussed above 
and current deductions from bonus tax depreciation in 2009.  Based on recent filings with the IRS and the state of Iowa, $87 million of the income 
tax refund receivable is expected to be received in the first half of 2010.  
 
Uncertain Tax Positions - Alliant Energy adopted new authoritative guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes on Jan. 1, 
2007.  Alliant Energy’s cumulative effect of the adoption was an increase in its net liability for uncertain tax positions and a reduction to its Jan. 1, 
2007 balance of retained earnings of $0.5 million.  
 
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of uncertain tax positions, excluding interest, for Alliant Energy for 2009, 2008 and 2007 is 
as follows (in millions):  
 

(a)  The additions of tax positions of prior years were primarily related to positions taken by Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL on their federal and 
state tax returns related to the capitalization and dispositions of property.  
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Open tax years - Tax years that remain subject to examination by major jurisdictions are as follows:  
 

    Carryforward     Deferred Tax      Earliest    

    Amount      Asset      
Expiration 

Date    
Federal net operating losses    $ 155     $ 53       2029   
Federal credit carryforward - alternative minimum tax      53       53     None   
Federal credit carryforward - general business credits      27       27       2022   
State net operating losses      552       28       2010   
Wisconsin state capital losses      448       9       2010   

    2009      2008      2007    
Balance, Jan. 1    $ 14.0     $ 24.5     $ 26.6   
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year      6.6       2.1       1.1   
Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year      --      --      --  
Additions for tax positions of prior years (a)      88.7       8.0       2.4   
Reductions for tax positions of prior years      (4.5 )     (6.2 )     (2.6 ) 
Settlements with taxing authorities      (1.2 )     (11.9 )     --  
Lapse of statute of limitations      (1.9 )     (2.5 )     (3.0 ) 
Balance, Dec. 31    $ 101.7     $ 14.0     $ 24.5   

    Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
Tax positions favorably impacting future effective tax rates for continuing operations    $ 13.6     $ 11.2     $ 11.8   
Interest accrued      5.0       1.9       5.1   
Penalties accrued      --      --      --  

Major Jurisdiction    Open Years  
Consolidated Federal income tax returns (Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL)    2005-2008  
Consolidated Iowa income tax returns (Alliant Energy and IPL)    2005-2008 (a)  
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(a)  2005 is open for Federal audit adjustments only  
 
Reasonably possible changes to uncertain tax positions in 2010 - In 2010, statutes of limitations will expire for Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and 
WPL’s tax returns in multiple state jurisdictions.  The impact of the statutes of limitations expiring is not anticipated to be material.  In addition, it 
is anticipated that Alliant Energy will finalize its U.S. federal income tax audit for calendars years 2005 through 2008 in 2010 except for the audit 
of the repairs expenditure change in method of tax accounting.  The federal income tax return for calendar year 2009 is part of the Compliance 
Assurance Program of the IRS and as a result, the audit of such return is anticipated to be completed by the end of 2010.  Based on the anticipated 
timing of completing these audits, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have recognized $30 million, $24 million and $5 million respectively, in 
“Accrued taxes” on their Consolidated Balance Sheets for the expected resolution of a portion of their uncertain tax positions in 2010 primarily 
related to the capitalization and dispositions of property.  
 
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities associated with certain property-related basis 
differences at IPL are accounted for differently than most companies as a result of rate making practices in Iowa.  Deferred tax expense (benefit) is 
not recorded for certain temporary differences (primarily related to utility property, plant and equipment at IPL) because retail rates in Iowa only 
reflect the impact of current tax expense (benefit).  In 2009, IPL recognized significant tax benefits as a result of a change in tax accounting 
method for repairs expenditures and the tax method for allocating flood insurance proceeds.  IPL expects to refund any tax benefits realized from 
these items to its Iowa retail customers in the future following finalization of the IRS audit of these items based on a method to be prescribed by 
the IUB.  Because IPL expects to refund the tax benefits realized from these items to its Iowa retail customers in the future, Alliant Energy and 
IPL recorded an increase to their non-current regulatory liabilities of $162 million in 2009.  Alliant Energy and IPL also recorded a comparable 
increase to their non-current regulatory assets in 2009 to reflect the benefit IPL expects to receive from its Iowa retail customers in the future as 
the temporary differences associated with the repairs expenditures and flood insurance proceeds reverse into current tax expense.  
 
Other Income Tax Matters - Alliant Energy files a consolidated federal income tax return, which includes the aggregate taxable income or loss 
of Alliant Energy and its subsidiaries.  In addition, a combined return including Alliant Energy and all of its subsidiaries will be filed in Wisconsin 
beginning with the tax return for calendar year 2009.  Alliant Energy subsidiaries with a presence in Iowa file as part of a consolidated return in 
Iowa.  Under the terms of a tax sharing agreement signed in 2009 between Alliant Energy and its subsidiaries, the subsidiaries now calculate state 
income tax using consolidated apportionment rates applied to separate company taxable income.  Prior to 2009, Alliant Energy’s subsidiaries 
calculated income tax provisions using the separate return methodology.  Separate return amounts prior to 2009 were adjusted for state 
apportionment benefits, net of federal tax with any difference between the separate return methodology and the actual consolidated return 
allocated as prescribed in the prior tax allocation agreement.  In 2009, 2008 and 2007, Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s foreign sources of 
income were not material.  
 
(6)   BENEFIT PLANS  
(a)  Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits Plans - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL provide retirement benefits to substantially all of their 
employees through various non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans (401(k) savings plans).  Benefits of the 
non-contributory defined benefit pension plans are based on the plan participant’s years of service, age and compensation.  Benefits of the defined 
contribution plans are based on the plan participant’s years of service, age, compensation and contributions.  Alliant Energy also provides certain 
defined benefit postretirement health care and life benefits to eligible retirees.  In general, the health care plans are contributory with participants’ 
contributions adjusted regularly and the life insurance plans are non-contributory.  
 
Assumptions - The assumptions for the defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans at the measurement dates of Dec. 31, 
2009, Dec. 31, 2008 and Sep. 30, 2007 were as follows (Not Applicable (N/A)):  
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Expected rate of return on plan assets - The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined by analysis of projected asset class returns 
based on the target asset class allocations.  Alliant Energy uses a portfolio return simulator and also reviews historical returns, survey information 
and capital market information to support the expected rate of return on plan assets assumption.  Refer to “Investment Policy and Strategy for Plan 
Assets” below for additional information related to Alliant Energy’s investment policy and strategy and mix of assets for the pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans.  
 
Medical cost trend on covered charges - The assumed medical trend rates are critical assumptions in determining the service and interest cost 
and accumulated postretirement benefit obligation related to postretirement benefits costs.  A 1% change in the medical trend rates for 2009, 
holding all other assumptions constant, would have the following effects (in millions):  
 

Wisconsin income tax returns (WPL)    2005-2008  

  Defined Benefit Pension Plans    Other Postretirement Benefits Plans  
  2009    2008    2007    2009    2008    2007  
Discount rate for benefit obligations  5.80%    6.15%    6.2%    5.55%    6.15%    6.2%  
Discount rate for net periodic cost  6.15%    6.2%    5.85%    6.15%    6.2%    5.85%  
Expected rate of return on plan assets  8.25%    8.5%    8.5%    8.25%    8.5%    8.5%  
Rate of compensation increase  3.5-4.5%    3.5-4.5%    3.5-4.5%    3.5%    3.5%    3.5%  
Medical cost trend on covered charges:                        

Initial trend rate  N/A    N/A    N/A    7.5%    8%    8%  
Ultimate trend rate  N/A    N/A    N/A    5%    5%    5%  

    1% Increase      1% Decrease    
Effect on total of service and interest cost components    $ 1.3     $ (1.3 ) 
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Measurement dates - In September 2006, the FASB issued authoritative guidance requiring an employer to measure benefit plan assets and 
obligations as of the end of its fiscal year.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL adopted this guidance in 2008 and changed their measurement date from 
Sep. 30 to Dec. 31, which resulted in reductions to their Jan. 1, 2008 balance of retained earnings of $2.7 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million, 
respectively.  
 
Net Periodic Benefit Costs - The components of Alliant Energy’s net periodic benefit costs for its defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans were as follows (in millions):  
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The estimated amortization from “Regulatory assets” and “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” (AOCL) on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated 
Balance Sheet into net periodic benefit cost in 2010 as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Alliant Energy’s net periodic benefit costs are primarily included in “Utility operating expenses - other operation and maintenance” in Alliant 
Energy’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  
 
Benefit Plan Assets and Obligations - A reconciliation of the funded status of Alliant Energy’s defined benefit pension and other postretirement 
benefits plans to the amounts recognized on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 was as follows (in millions):  
 

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation      12.1       (12.7 ) 

    Defined Benefit Pension Plans      Other Postretirement Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Service cost    $ 11.9     $ 16.3     $ 20.0     $ 8.7     $ 8.4     $ 8.2   
Interest cost      54.3       54.6       50.4       15.2       15.1       13.7   
Expected return on plan assets (a)      (47.6 )     (74.6 )     (66.6 )     (6.1 )     (9.0 )     (7.6 ) 
Amortization of (b):                                                  

Transition obligation      --      --      --      0.2       0.2       0.2   
Prior service cost (credit)      2.1       2.9       3.1       (3.7 )     (3.7 )     (3.7 ) 
Actuarial loss      30.6       4.2       8.9       6.2       3.5       4.2   

Curtailment losses (c)(d)      1.0       --      --      --      --      --  
Special termination benefits costs (d)      0.9       --      --      --      --      --  
Settlement loss (e)      --      --      2.1       --      --      --  
    $ 53.2     $ 3.4     $ 17.9     $ 20.5     $ 14.5     $ 15.0   

(a)   The expected return on plan assets is based on the expected rate of return on plan assets and the fair value approach to the market-related 
value of plan assets.  

(b)   Unrecognized net actuarial losses in excess of 10% of the projected benefit obligation and unrecognized prior service costs (credits) are 
amortized over the average future service lives of the participants for each plan.  Unrecognized net transition obligations related to other 
postretirement benefits are amortized over a 20-year period ending 2012.  

(c)   In 2007, members of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 965 ratified a four-year collective bargaining agreement 
reached with WPL, resulting in changes to WPL’s qualified pension plan (Plan).  One of these changes provided Plan participants a one-time 
option to cease participating in the Plan and begin participating in the Alliant Energy 401(k) Savings Plan with increased levels of 
contribution by Alliant Energy.  The election of this option did not impact a participant’s eligibility for benefits previously vested under the 
Plan.  In 2009, certain of these employees elected to cease participating in the Plan, resulting in Alliant Energy and WPL recognizing a one-
time curtailment loss related to the Plan of $0.7 million in 2009.  

(d)   In 2009, Alliant Energy eliminated certain corporate and operations positions.  As a result, Alliant Energy recognized one-time curtailment 
losses and special termination benefits costs related to its pension plans of $0.3 million and $0.9 million, respectively, in 2009.  

(e)   In 2007, the settlement loss of $2.1 million related to payments made to a retired executive of Alliant Energy.  

    Defined Benefit      
Other 

Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
Actuarial loss    $ 23.9     $ 6.6   
Prior service cost (credit)      0.9       (3.7 ) 
Transition obligation      --      0.2   
    $ 24.8     $ 3.1   

    Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Change in projected benefit obligation:                          

Net projected benefit obligation at measurement date    $ 896.4     $ 879.0     $ 247.7     $ 243.2   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      7.1       --      1.1   
Service cost      11.9       16.3       8.7       8.4   
Interest cost      54.3       54.6       15.2       15.1   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      4.7       4.4   
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Included in the following table are Alliant Energy’s accumulated benefit obligations, aggregate amounts applicable to defined benefit pension and 
other postretirement benefits plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, as well as defined benefit pension plans with 
projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of the Dec. 31 measurement date (Not Applicable (N/A); in millions):  
 

 
Estimated Future Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments - Alliant Energy estimates that funding for the qualified defined benefit 
pension, non-qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans during 2010 will be $0, $8 million and $19 million, 
respectively.  
 
The expected benefit payments and Medicare subsidies, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows (in millions):  
 

Plan amendments (a)      (12.4 )     --      --      --  
Actuarial (gain) loss      21.9       (14.1 )     13.7       (1.4 ) 
Gross benefits paid      (52.9 )     (46.5 )     (22.7 )     (24.2 ) 
Federal subsidy on other postretirement benefits paid      --      --      1.1       1.1   
Special termination benefits      0.9       --      --      --  

Net projected benefit obligation at Dec. 31      920.1       896.4       268.4       247.7   
                                  
Change in plan assets:                                  

Fair value of plan assets at measurement date      565.9       890.0       80.2       116.4   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      7.8       --      1.1   
Actual return on plan assets      132.6       (287.8 )     19.2       (32.7 ) 
Employer contributions      130.8       2.4       21.0       15.2   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      4.7       4.4   
Gross benefits paid      (52.9 )     (46.5 )     (22.7 )     (24.2 ) 

Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31      776.4       565.9       102.4       80.2   
                                  
Under funded status at Dec. 31    $ (143.7 )   $ (330.5 )   $ (166.0 )   $ (167.5 ) 

                                  
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated                                  

Balance Sheets consist of:                                  
Other current liabilities    $ (8.2 )   $ (4.6 )   $ (3.7 )   $ (4.8 ) 
Pension and other benefit obligations      (135.5 )     (325.9 )     (162.3 )     (162.7 ) 
Net amount recognized at Dec. 31    $ (143.7 )   $ (330.5 )   $ (166.0 )   $ (167.5 ) 

    Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Amounts recognized in Regulatory Assets and AOCL                          

consist of (b):                          
Net actuarial loss    $ 389.0     $ 482.7     $ 91.0     $ 96.0   
Prior service cost (credit)      (5.3 )     10.2       (5.5 )     (9.2 ) 
Transition obligation      --      --      0.5       0.7   

    $ 383.7     $ 492.9     $ 86.0     $ 87.5   

(a)   Refer to “Cash Balance Pension Plan”  below for additional information regarding the 2009 plan amendment.  
(b)   Refer to Note 1(b) and Alliant Energy’s “Consolidated Statements of Common Equity” for amounts recognized in “Regulatory assets” and 

“AOCL,”  respectively, on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

    Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Accumulated benefit obligations    $ 870.0     $ 843.4     $ 268.4     $ 247.7   
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess                                  

of plan assets:                                  
Accumulated benefit obligations      870.0       843.4       268.4       247.7   
Fair value of plan assets      776.4       565.9       102.4       80.2   

Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess                                  
of plan assets:                                  

Projected benefit obligations      920.1       896.4       N/A       N/A   
Fair value of plan assets      776.4       565.9       N/A       N/A   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014        2015 - 2019   
Defined benefit pension plans    $ 55.8     $ 54.4     $ 54.9     $ 57.3     $ 60.8     $ 341.2   
Other postretirement benefits plans      19.8       19.7       20.2       20.6       21.6       121.5   
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Investment Policy and Strategy for Plan Assets - Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s investment strategy and their policies employed with 
respect to assets of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans are to combine both preservation of principal and prudent and 
reasonable risk-taking to protect the integrity of plan assets, in order to meet the obligations to plan participants while achieving the optimal return 
possible over the long-term to minimize benefit costs.  It is recognized that risk and volatility are present to some degree with all types of 
investments; however, high levels of risk are minimized at the total fund level.  This is accomplished through diversification by asset class 
including both U.S. and international equity exposure, the number of individual investments, and sector and industry limits when 
applicable.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL believe that any risk associated with the various plan assets is minimized by this diversification.  Alliant 
Energy, IPL and WPL also use an overlay management service to help maintain target allocations, liquidity needs and intended exposures to the 
plan assets.  The overlay manager is authorized to use derivative financial instruments to facilitate this service.  
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For assets of defined benefit pension plans, the mix among asset classes is controlled by long-term asset allocation targets.  The assets are viewed 
as long-term with moderate liquidity needs.  Historical performance results and future expectations suggest that equity securities will provide 
higher total investment returns than debt securities over a long-term investment horizon.  Consistent with the goals of maximizing returns and 
minimizing risks over the long-term, the defined benefit pension plans have a long-term investment posture more heavily weighted towards equity 
holdings.  The current target range allocations for defined benefit pension plan assets are 60-80% equity securities and 20-40% fixed income 
securities.  Equity holdings include investments in large-cap (26-52% target range), small-cap (0-10% target range) and international securities 
(12-30% target range).  Fixed income holdings include corporate bonds, government and government agency obligations and fixed income 
funds.  The asset allocation mix is monitored regularly and appropriate action is taken as needed to rebalance the assets within the prescribed 
range.  Prohibited investment vehicles include, but may not be limited to, direct ownership of real estate, options and futures (unless specifically 
approved as is the case of the overlay manager), margin trading, oil and gas limited partnerships, commodities, short selling and securities of the 
managers’ firms or affiliate firms.  
 
Other postretirement benefits plans assets are comprised of specific assets within certain defined benefit pension plans (401(h) assets) as well as 
assets held in Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) trusts.  The investment policy and strategy of the 401(h) assets mirrors 
those of the defined benefit pension plans, which is discussed above.  The assets in the VEBA trusts are viewed as long-term.  A mix of both 
equity and debt securities are utilized to maximize returns and minimize risk over the long-term.  Equity holdings within the VEBA trusts include 
investments in large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap securities.  Fixed income holdings within the VEBA trusts include corporate bonds, government 
and agency obligations and fixed income funds.  There are no specific target allocations for the VEBA trusts as a whole.  Separate investment 
guidelines have been established for the VEBA trusts which are actively managed.  At Dec. 31, 2009, the other postretirement benefits plan assets 
consisted of 59% equity securities and 31% fixed income securities.  
 
Securities Lending Program - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have a securities lending program with the trustee that allows the trustee to lend 
certain securities from their defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans to selected entities against receipt of collateral (in the 
form of cash, government securities or letters of credit) as provided for and determined in accordance with its securities loan agreement.  Initial 
collateral levels are no less than 102% and 105% of the market value of the borrowed securities for collateral denominated in U.S. and foreign 
currency, respectively.  At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair value of the collateral and the amount due to borrowers for the securities lending program was 
as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Fair Value Measurements - The following tables report a framework for measuring fair value.  The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:  
 

Level 1 - Pricing inputs are unadjusted quoted prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting 
date.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s investments in registered investment companies and common and preferred stocks are valued at the 
closing price reported in the active market in which the individual securities are traded.  Level 1 plan assets also include interest-bearing cash, 
which is held in money market accounts managed by an affiliate of the trustee.  

 
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are quoted prices for similar asset or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and inputs that are derived 
principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s investments in 
corporate bonds and government and agency obligations are valued at the closing price reported in the active market for similar assets in 
which the individual securities are traded or based on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit 
ratings.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s investments in common/collective trusts are valued at the net asset value of shares held by the 
plans, which is based on the fair market value of the underlying investments in equity and fixed income securities of the common/collective 

Medicare subsidies      (1.2 )     (1.3 )     (1.5 )     (1.7 )     (1.8 )     (12.4 ) 
    $ 74.4     $ 72.8     $ 73.6     $ 76.2     $ 80.6     $ 450.3   

    Fair Value of Invested Collateral      Amount Due to Borrowers    

    Defined Benefit      
Other 

Postretirement      Defined Benefit      
Other 

Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans      Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
Alliant Energy    $ 24.8     $ 1.2     $ 32.7     $ 1.6   
IPL      7.8       0.8       10.2       1.1   
WPL      7.6       0.2       10.0       0.3   

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8279 of 9808



trusts.  Level 2 plan assets also consist of asset backed securities, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and repurchase agreements within 
their securities lending invested collateral.  

 
Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities for which little or no market data exist and require significant 
management judgment or estimation.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s Level 3 plan assets include certain asset backed securities and 
corporate bonds within their securities lending invested collateral.  
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The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
data (Level 3).  In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy.  The lowest level 
input that is significant to a fair value measurement in its entirety determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy.  Assessing the 
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or 
liability.  
 
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair 
values.  Furthermore, while Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL believe their valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value measurement at the reporting date.  
 
At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair values of Alliant Energy’s defined benefit pension plans assets by asset category and fair value hierarchy level were as 
follows (in millions):  
 

(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
 
Additional information for Alliant Energy’s fair value measurements of defined benefit pension plans assets using significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
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At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair values of Alliant Energy’s other postretirement benefits plans assets by asset category and fair value hierarchy level 
were as follows (in millions):  

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 36.3     $ 36.3     $ --    $ --  
Equity securities:                                  

U.S. large cap core      104.5       104.5       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      87.2       --      87.2       --  
U.S. large cap growth      86.7       --      86.7       --  
U.S. small cap value      23.3       --      23.3       --  
U.S. small cap growth      13.8       13.8       --      --  
International - developed markets      131.0       68.4       62.6       --  
International - emerging markets      39.3       39.3       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      61.9       --      61.9       --  
Government and agency obligations      70.9       --      70.9       --  
Fixed income funds      131.2       1.5       129.7       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      24.8       6.7       14.9       3.2   
      810.9     $ 270.5     $ 537.2     $ 3.2   

Accrued investment income      1.6                           
Due to brokers, net (a)      (3.4 )                         
Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (32.7 )                         

Total pension plan assets    $ 776.4                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 7.3   

Actual return on plan assets:          
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date      (0.3 ) 
Relating to assets sold during the period      0.4   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (4.4 ) 
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3      0.2   

Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ 3.2   
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(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
 
Additional information for Alliant Energy’s fair value measurements of other postretirement benefits plans assets using significant unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
 

 
For the various Alliant Energy defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans, Alliant Energy common stock represented less than 
1% of total plan assets at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008.  
 
Cash Balance Pension Plan - Alliant Energy’s defined benefit pension plans include a cash balance plan that provides benefits for substantially 
all of its non-bargaining unit employees.  Effective August 2008, Alliant Energy amended the cash balance plan by discontinuing additional 
contributions into employees’ cash balance plan accounts.  Also effective August 2008, Alliant Energy increased its level of contributions to its 
401(k) Savings Plan, which offset the impact of discontinuing additional contributions into the employees’ cash balance plan accounts.  These 
amendments are designed to provide employees portability and self-directed flexibility of their retirement benefits.  These changes did not have a 
significant impact on Alliant Energy’s results of operations.  Refer to Note 12(c) for discussion of a class action lawsuit filed against the Alliant 
Energy Cash Balance Pension Plan in 2008 and the IRS review of the tax qualified status of the Plan.  
 
In 2009, Alliant Energy amended the cash balance plan by changing the participants’ future interest credit formula to use the annual change in 
consumer price index as the interest credit.  This amendment is designed to provide participants an interest crediting rate that will always be 3% 
more than the annual change in the cost of living.  
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401(k) Savings Plans - A significant number of Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL employees participate in defined contribution retirement plans (401
(k) Savings Plans), of which Alliant Energy common stock represented 13.5% and 18.1% of total plan assets at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s contributions to the 401(k) plans, which are partially based on the participants’ level of 
contribution, were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(b)  Equity Incentive Plans - Alliant Energy’s 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (EIP) permits the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares and performance units to key employees.  At Dec. 31, 
2009, non-qualified stock options, restricted stock and performance shares were outstanding under the EIP and a predecessor plan under which 

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 10.6     $ 10.6     $ --    $ --  
Equity securities:                                  

U.S. large cap core      30.7       30.7       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      2.2       --      2.2       --  
U.S. large cap growth      2.2       --      2.2       --  
U.S. mid cap core      15.1       15.1       --      --  
U.S. small cap core      4.7       4.7       --      --  
U.S. small cap value      0.6       --      0.6       --  
U.S. small cap growth      0.4       0.4       --      --  
International - developed markets      3.3       1.7       1.6       --  
International - emerging markets      1.0       1.0       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      6.2       --      6.2       --  
Government and agency obligations      4.5       --      4.5       --  
Fixed income funds      21.3       18.0       3.3       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      1.2       0.3       0.8       0.1   
      104.0     $ 82.5     $ 21.4     $ 0.1   

Accrued investment income      0.1                           
Due to brokers, net (a)      (0.1 )                         
Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (1.6 )                         

Total other postretirement benefits plan assets    $ 102.4                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 0.3   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (0.2 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ 0.1   

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
401(k) plan contributions    $ 16.2     $ 14.4     $ 10.2     $ 2.8     $ 3.0     $ 2.6     $ 4.3     $ 3.7     $ 2.5   
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new awards can no longer be granted.  At Dec. 31, 2009, 2.5 million shares remained available for grants under the EIP.  Alliant Energy satisfies 
payouts related to equity awards under the EIP through the issuance of new shares of its common stock.  
 
In February 2010, Alliant Energy’s Board of Directors adopted the Alliant Energy 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (OIP), which permits the grant of 
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units and other stock-
based awards to key employees.  The OIP would authorize issuance of 4,500,000 shares, would terminate the EIP and is subject to shareowner 
approval.  If shareowners do not approve the OIP, the EIP will remain effective.  
 
A summary of share-based compensation expense related to grants under the EIP and the related income tax benefits recognized was as follows 
(in millions):  
 

 
As of Dec. 31, 2009, total unrecognized compensation cost related to all share-based compensation awards was $9.0 million, which is expected to 
be recognized over a weighted average period of two years.  Share-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the 
requisite service periods.  
 
Performance Shares - Performance share payouts to key employees are contingent upon achievement over three-year periods of specified 
performance criteria, which currently include metrics of total shareowner return relative to an investor-owned utility peer group.  Nonvested 
performance share payouts are prorated at retirement, death, disability or involuntary termination without cause based on time worked during the 
performance period and achievement of the performance criteria.  Participants’ nonvested performance shares are forfeited if the participant 
voluntarily leaves Alliant Energy or is terminated for cause.  Performance shares can be paid out in shares of Alliant Energy’s common stock, cash 
or a combination of cash and stock and are adjusted by a performance multiplier, which ranges from zero to 200% based on the performance 
criteria.  Alliant Energy anticipates making future payouts of its performance shares in cash; therefore, performance shares were accounted for as 
liability awards at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008.  A summary of the performance shares activity was as follows:  
 

 
Information related to nonvested performance shares and their fair values at Dec. 31, 2009, by year of grant, was as follows:  
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At Dec. 31, 2009, fair values of nonvested performance shares were calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation to determine the anticipated total 
shareowner returns of Alliant Energy and its investor-owned utility peer group.  Expected volatility was based on historical volatilities using daily 
stock prices over the past three years.  Expected dividend yields were calculated based on the most recent quarterly dividend rates announced prior 
to the measurement date and stock prices at the measurement date.  The risk-free interest rate was based on the three-year U.S. Treasury rate in 
effect as of the measurement date.  
 
In 2009, 2008 and 2007, Alliant Energy’s performance share payouts were valued at $4.1 million, $5.0 million and $5.9 million, respectively, and 
consisted of a combination of cash and common stock (51,189 shares, 3,835 shares and 8,641 shares, respectively).  
 
Restricted Stock - Restricted stock issued under the EIP consists of time-based and performance-contingent restricted stock.  
 
Time-based restricted stock - Restriction periods vary for each issuance of time-based restricted stock and currently range from three to five 
years.  Nonvested shares of time-based restricted stock generally become vested upon retirement, except for certain shares that were awarded for 
retention purposes that are forfeited per specific terms.  Compensation costs related to awards granted to retirement-eligible employees are 
generally expensed on the date of grant.  Participants’ nonvested time-based restricted stock is forfeited if the participant voluntarily leaves Alliant 
Energy or is terminated for cause.  Nonvested time-based restricted stock is fully vested in the event of retirement, death, disability or involuntary 
termination without cause.  The fair value of time-based restricted stock is based on the average market price at the grant date.  A summary of the 

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Share-based compensation expense    $ 2.8     $ 3.3     $ 9.5     $ 1.6     $ 1.8     $ 5.0     $ 1.1     $ 1.2     $ 3.6   
Income tax benefits      1.2       1.4       3.7       0.7       0.8       1.9       0.4       0.5       1.4   

  2009    2008    2007  
  Shares (a)    Shares (a)    Shares (a)  
Nonvested shares at Jan. 1  208,579   221,834   277,530 
Granted  152,735   65,516   58,669 
Vested  (84,633)   (78,532)   (104,074) 
Forfeited  (20,102)   (239)   (10,291) 
Nonvested shares at Dec. 31  256,579   208,579   221,834 

(a)   Share amounts represent the target number of performance shares.  The actual number of shares that will be paid out upon vesting is 
dependent upon actual performance and may range from zero to 200% of the number of target shares.  

    2009 Grant      2008 Grant      2007 Grant    
Nonvested performance shares      138,148       61,331       57,100   
Alliant Energy common stock closing price on Dec. 31, 2009    $ 30.26     $ 30.26     $ 30.26   
Estimated payout percentage based on performance criteria      87 %     60 %     --% 
Fair values of each nonvested performance share    $ 26.33     $ 18.16     $ --  
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time-based restricted stock activity was as follows:  
 

 
Performance-contingent restricted stock - Vesting of performance-contingent restricted stock grants are based on the achievement of certain 
performance targets (currently specified earnings growth).  The performance metric for the 2009 and 2008 grants is consolidated net income 
growth.  The performance metric for the 2007 grants is consolidated earnings per share growth.  If performance targets are not met within the 
performance period, which currently ranges from two to four years, these restricted stock grants are forfeited.  Nonvested shares of performance-
contingent restricted stock are prorated at retirement based on time worked during the performance period and vest only if and when the 
performance criteria are met.  Participants’ nonvested performance-contingent restricted stock is forfeited if the participant voluntarily leaves 
Alliant Energy for reasons other than retirement.  The fair value of performance-contingent restricted stock is based on the average market price at 
the grant date.  A summary of the performance-contingent restricted stock activity was as follows:  
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Non-qualified Stock Options - Options granted to date under the plans were granted at the market price of the shares on the date of grant, vest 
over three years and expire no later than 10 years after the grant date.  Options become fully vested upon retirement and remain exercisable at any 
time prior to their expiration date or for three years after the effective date of the retirement, whichever period is shorter.  Options become fully 
vested upon death or disability and remain exercisable at any time prior to their expiration date or for one year after the effective date of the death 
or disability, whichever period is shorter. Participants’ options that are not vested are forfeited if participants leave Alliant Energy for reasons 
other than retirement, death or disability, and their vested options expire three months after their departure.  Alliant Energy has not granted any 
options since 2004.  A summary of the stock option activity was as follows:  
 

 
The weighted average remaining contractual term for options outstanding and exercisable at Dec. 31, 2009 was two years.  The aggregate intrinsic 
value of options outstanding and exercisable at Dec. 31, 2009 was $1.4 million.  
 
Other information related to stock option activity was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(c)  Deferred Compensation Plan - Alliant Energy maintains a deferred compensation plan under which key employees may defer up to 100% of 
base salary and incentive compensation and directors may elect to defer all or part of their retainer and committee fees.  Key employees who have 

    2009      2008      2007    
          Weighted            Weighted            Weighted    
          Average            Average            Average    
    Shares      Fair Value      Shares      Fair Value      Shares      Fair Value    
Nonvested shares at Jan. 1      156,807     $ 32.80       165,832     $ 30.66       182,886     $ 27.89   
Granted      51,236       29.40       47,922       35.60       43,850       36.80   
Vested      (79,459 )     31.08       (53,322 )     28.46       (57,904 )     26.42   
Forfeited      (3,235 )     33.97       (3,625 )     35.69       (3,000 )     33.05   
Nonvested shares at Dec. 31      125,349       32.47       156,807       32.80       165,832       30.66   

    2009      2008      2007    
          Weighted            Weighted            Weighted    
          Average            Average            Average    
    Shares      Fair Value      Shares      Fair Value      Shares      Fair Value    
Nonvested shares at Jan. 1      124,185     $ 39.28       135,348     $ 32.42       149,563     $ 28.12   
Granted      101,822       23.67       65,516       40.49       58,669       37.94   
Vested      --      --      (54,991 )     28.20       (58,015 )     28.04   
Forfeited      --      --      (21,688 )     28.19       (14,869 )     28.06   
Nonvested shares at Dec. 31      226,007       32.25       124,185       39.28       135,348       32.42   

    2009      2008      2007    
          Weighted            Weighted            Weighted    
          Average            Average            Average    
          Exercise            Exercise            Exercise    
    Shares      Price      Shares      Price      Shares      Price    
Outstanding at Jan. 1      497,183     $ 27.30       542,844     $ 27.45       1,768,236     $ 27.70   
Exercised      (39,877 )     25.80       (45,661 )     29.02       (1,225,392 )     27.81   
Expired      (56,098 )     29.88       --      --      --      --  
Forfeited      (16,877 )     28.67       --      --      --      --  
Outstanding and exercisable at Dec. 31      384,331       27.02       497,183       27.30       542,844       27.45   

    2009      2008      2007    
Cash received from stock options exercised    $ 1.0     $ 1.3     $ 34.1   
Aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised      0.1       0.3       16.3   
Income tax benefit from the exercise of stock options      0.1       0.1       5.8   
Total fair value of stock options vested during period      --      --      0.4   
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made the maximum allowed contribution to the Alliant Energy 401(k) Savings Plan may receive an additional credit to the deferred compensation 
plan.  Key employees and directors may elect to have their deferrals credited to an interest account, an equity account based on an S&P 500 index 
fund or a company stock account.  The company stock account is held in a rabbi trust.  Payments from the company stock account will be made in 
shares of Alliant Energy common stock.  At Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair market value of the company stock accounts, which are currently 
funded with shares held in a deferred compensation trust, totaled $7.9 million and $7.0 million, respectively.  
 
(7)   COMMON EQUITY , PREFERRED STOCK AND NONCONTRO LLING INTEREST  
(a)  Common Equity  
Common Share Activity - A summary of Alliant Energy’s common stock activity was as follows:  
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At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy had a total of 5.9 million shares available for issuance in the aggregate, pursuant to its Shareowner Direct Plan, 
EIP and 401(k) Savings Plan.  
 
Shareowner Rights Agreement - Alliant Energy has established an amended and restated Shareowner Rights Agreement.  The rights under this 
agreement will only become exercisable if a person or group has acquired, or announced an intention to acquire, 15% or more of Alliant Energy’s 
outstanding common stock.  Each right will initially entitle registered shareowners to purchase from Alliant Energy one-half of one share of 
Alliant Energy’s common stock.  The rights will be exercisable at an initial price of $110.00 per full share, subject to adjustment.  If any 
shareowner acquires 15% or more of the outstanding common stock of Alliant Energy, each right (subject to limitations) will entitle its holder to 
purchase, at the right’s then current exercise price, a number of common shares of Alliant Energy or of the acquirer having a market value at the 
time of twice the right’s per full share exercise price.  The Board of Directors is authorized to reduce the 15% ownership threshold to not less than 
10%.  The amended and restated Shareowner Rights Agreement expires in December 2018.  
 
Dividend Restrictions - Alliant Energy is a holding company with no significant operations of its own therefore Alliant Energy is dependent upon 
receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to pay dividends to its shareowners.  Alliant Energy does not have any significant common stock 
dividend restrictions.  IPL and WPL each have common stock dividend restrictions based on the terms of their outstanding preferred stock and 
applicable regulatory limitations.  At Dec. 31, 2009, IPL and WPL were in compliance with all such dividend restrictions.  
 
Both IPL and WPL are restricted from paying common stock dividends to their parent company, Alliant Energy, if for any past or current dividend 
period, dividends on their respective preferred stock have not been paid, or declared and set apart for payment.  IPL and WPL have paid all 
dividends on their respective preferred stock through 2009.  
 
IPL’s most significant regulatory limitation on distributions to its parent company is included in an order issued by the MPUC in June 2009 that 
requires IPL to maintain a common stock equity ratio between 41.3% and 50.5% during the 12 months ended June 30, 2010.  In addition, IPL 
must inform the IUB if its common equity ratio falls below 42% of total capitalization.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, IPL’s amount of retained earnings 
that were free of restrictions was $250 million.  
 
WPL’s most significant regulatory limitation on distributions to its parent company is included in an order issued by the PSCW in December 2009 
that prohibits WPL from paying annual common stock dividends in excess of $112 million if WPL’s common stock equity ratio is or will fall 
below 51.01%.  WPL’s dividends are also restricted to the extent that such dividend would reduce WPL’s common stock equity ratio to less than 
25%.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, WPL’s amount of retained earnings that were free of restrictions was $118 million.  
 
Restricted Net Assets of Subsidiaries - Neither IPL nor WPL have regulatory authority to lend or advance any amounts to their parent 
company.  As of Dec. 31, the amount of net assets of IPL and WPL that were not available to be transferred to their parent company in the form of 
loans, advances or cash dividends without the consent of IPL’s and WPL’s regulatory authorities was as follows (in billions):  
 

 
Capital Transactions With Subsidiaries - IPL, WPL and Resources paid common stock dividends and repayments of capital to their parent 
during 2009, 2008 and 2007 as follows (in millions):  

  2009    2008    2007  
Shares outstanding, Jan. 1  110,449,099   110,359,314   116,126,599 
Share repurchase program (a)  --  --  (7,043,474) 
Equity incentive plans (Note 6(b))  240,889   137,621   1,318,683 
Other (b)  (33,490)   (47,836)   (42,494) 
Shares outstanding, Dec. 31  110,656,498   110,449,099   110,359,314 

(a)   In 2006 and 2007, Alliant Energy announced that its Board of Directors approved plans to repurchase up to $400 million of its common 
stock.  In 2007, Alliant Energy repurchased 7.0 million shares of its common stock on the open market for $295 million.  At Dec. 31, 2007, 
Alliant Energy had completed the entire $400 million share repurchase program previously authorized by its Board of Directors.  

(b)   Includes shares transferred from employees to Alliant Energy to satisfy tax withholding requirements in connection with the vesting of certain 
restricted stock under the EIP.  

    2009      2008    
IPL    $ 1.1     $ 0.9   
WPL      1.1       1.0   
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In 2007, IPL’s common stock dividends to its parent included a $400 million dividend related to the sale of IPL’s electric transmission assets and 
a $100 million dividend to realign IPL’s capital structure.  In 2007, WPL’s common stock dividends to its parent included a $100 million dividend 
to realign WPL’s capital structure.  In July 2008, FERC issued an order allowing IPL to pay up to $400 million in common equity distributions 
from additional paid-in capital, rather than retained earnings.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, IPL’s remaining authority under this FERC order was $219 
million.  
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IPL and WPL received capital contributions from their parent during 2009, 2008 and 2007, as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(b)  Preferred Stock - Information related to the carrying value of Alliant Energy’s cumulative preferred stock of subsidiaries, net (none are 
mandatorily redeemable) at Dec. 31 was as follows (dollars in millions):  
   

 
IPL - The articles of incorporation of IPL contain a provision that grants the holders of its preferred stock voting rights to elect two members of 
IPL’s Board of Directors if preferred dividends equal to the annual dividend requirements are in arrears.  Such voting rights would not provide the 
holders of IPL’s preferred stock control of the decision on redemption of IPL’s preferred stock and could not force IPL to exercise its call 
option.  Therefore, IPL’s preferred stock is presented in total equity in Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets in a manner 
consistent with noncontrolling interests.  
 
WPL - The articles of incorporation of WPL contain a provision that grants the holders of its preferred stock voting rights to elect a majority of 
WPL’s Board of Directors if preferred dividends equal to the annual dividend requirements are in arrears.  The exercise of such voting rights 
would provide the holders of WPL’s preferred stock control of the decision on redemption of WPL’s preferred stock and could force WPL to 
exercise its call option.  Therefore, the contingent control right and the embedded call option cause WPL’s preferred stock to be presented outside 
of total equity in Alliant Energy’s and WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets in a manner consistent with temporary equity.  
 
Refer to Note 10 for information on the fair value of Alliant Energy’s cumulative preferred stock of subsidiaries.  
 
(c)  Noncontrolling Interest - A summary of Alliant Energy’s noncontrolling interest activity was as follows (in millions):  
 

    IPL      WPL      Resources   
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007      2009    
Common stock dividends to Alliant Energy    $ --    $ 29     $ 610     $ 91     $ 91     $ 191     $ --  
Repayment of capital to Alliant Energy      106       75       --      --      --      --      100   
Total distributions from common equity    $ 106     $ 104     $ 610     $ 91     $ 91     $ 191     $ 100   

    IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Capital contributions from Alliant Energy    $ 150     $ 200     $ 100     $ 100     $ 100     $ --  

Liquidation Preference/    Authorized    Shares                  
Stated Value    Shares    Outstanding    Series    Redemption    2009    2008  

IPL:                          
$25    (a)    6,000,000    8.375%    On or after March 15, 

2013  
  $150.0   $150.0 

$25    (a)    1,600,000    7.1%    Any time    40.0   40.0 
                    190.0   190.0 

Less: discount                    (6.2)   (6.2) 
                    183.8   183.8 
WPL:                          

$100    (b)    99,970    4.50%    Any time    10.0   10.0 
$100    (b)    74,912    4.80%    Any time    7.5   7.5 
$100    (b)    64,979    4.96%    Any time    6.5   6.5 
$100    (b)    29,957    4.40%    Any time    3.0   3.0 
$100    (b)    29,947    4.76%    Any time    3.0   3.0 
$100    (b)    150,000    6.20%    Any time    15.0   15.0 
$25    (b)    599,460    6.50%    Any time    15.0   15.0 

                    60.0   60.0 
                    $243.8   $243.8 

 (a)  IPL has 16,000,000 authorized shares in total. 
 (b)  WPL has 3,750,000 authorized shares in total. 

    2009      2008      2007    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1    $ 2.1     $ 3.9     $ 4.9   
Sale of investments      --      (1.8 )     (0.3 ) 
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(8)   DEBT  
(a)  Short-Term Debt - Alliant Energy and its subsidiaries maintain committed bank lines of credit to provide short-term borrowing flexibility 
and backstop liquidity for commercial paper outstanding.  At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy’s short-term borrowing arrangements included three 
revolving credit facilities totaling $623 million ($96 million for Alliant Energy at the parent company level, $287 million for IPL and $240 million 
for WPL), which expire in November 2012.  Information regarding commercial paper issued under these facilities and other short-term 
borrowings was as follows (Not Applicable (N/A); dollars in millions):  
 

 
(b)  Long-Term Debt -  
Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s long-term debt, net as of Dec. 31 was as follows (dollars in millions):  
 

   
   

Other      --      --      (0.7 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31    $ 2.1     $ 2.1     $ 3.9   

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    

At Dec. 31:                                      
Commercial paper outstanding    $ 190.0     $ 86.1     $ 190.0     $ 42.4     $ --    $ 43.7   
Weighted average interest rates - commercial paper      0.4 %     1.2 %     0.4 %     1.1 %     N/A       1.4 % 
                                                  
For the year ended:                                                  
Maximum amount of total short-term debt outstanding                                                  

(based on daily outstanding balances)    $ 255.9     $ 255.3     $ 190.0     $ 139.3     $ 103.1     $ 138.0   
Average amount of total short-term debt outstanding                                                  

(based on daily outstanding balances)    $ 80.6     $ 89.6     $ 52.8     $ 26.2     $ 26.4     $ 63.7   
Weighted average interest rates - total short-term debt      0.8 %     3.0 %     0.7 %     3.1 %     0.5 %     3.0 % 

      2009      2008    
      Alliant                  Alliant                
      Energy      IPL      WPL      Energy      IPL      WPL    
Senior Debentures:                                        

6.75%, due 2011      $ 200.0     $ 200.0     $ --    $ 200.0     $ 200.0     $ --  
5.875%, due 2018        100.0       100.0       --      100.0       100.0       --  
7.25%, due 2018        250.0       250.0       --      250.0       250.0       --  
5.5%, due 2025        50.0       50.0       --      50.0       50.0       --  
6.45%, due 2033        100.0       100.0       --      100.0       100.0       --  
6.3%, due 2034        125.0       125.0       --      125.0       125.0       --  
6.25%, due 2039 (a)        300.0       300.0       --      --      --      --  

    6.625% (a)        --      --      --      135.0       135.0       --  
          1,125.0       1,125.0       --      960.0       960.0       --  
Debentures:                                                    

7.625%, due 2010        100.0       --      100.0       100.0       --      100.0   
5%, due 2019 (b)        250.0       --      250.0       --      --      --  
6.25%, due 2034        100.0       --      100.0       100.0       --      100.0   
6.375%, due 2037        300.0       --      300.0       300.0       --      300.0   
7.6%, due 2038        250.0       --      250.0       250.0       --      250.0   

          1,000.0       --      1,000.0       750.0       --      750.0   
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds:                                                    

5%, due 2014        38.4       38.4       --      38.4       38.4       --  
5%, due 2014 and 2015        24.5       --      24.5       24.5       --      24.5   
5.375%, due 2015        14.6       --      14.6       14.6       --      14.6   

          77.5       38.4       39.1       77.5       38.4       39.1   
Other:                                                    

4% senior notes, due 2014 (c)        250.0       --      --      --      --      --  
5.06% senior secured notes, due 2010 to 2024        65.7       --      --      66.8       --      --  
2.5% exchangeable senior notes, due 2030 (d)        --      --      --      402.5       --      --  
Other, 1% to 7%, due 2010 to 2025        0.8       --      --      0.9       --      --  

          316.5       --      --      470.2       --      --  
Subtotal        2,519.0       1,163.4       1,039.1       2,257.7       998.4       789.1   
Current maturities        (101.5 )     --      (100.0 )     (136.4 )     (135.0 )     --  
Unamortized debt (discount) and premium, net        (13.0 )     (4.7 )     (7.5 )     (373.0 )     (3.2 )     (6.2 ) 
Long-term debt, net      $ 2,404.5     $ 1,158.7     $ 931.6     $ 1,748.3     $ 860.2     $ 782.9   
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Five-Year Schedule of Debt Maturities - At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s debt maturities for 2010 to 2014 were as follows 
(in millions):  
 

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, there were no significant sinking fund requirements related to the long-term debt on Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s 
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
 
Indentures - Alliant Energy maintains separate indentures related to its 4% senior notes due 2014 and its 2.5% Notes.  IPL maintains indentures 
related to its senior debentures due 2011 through 2039.  WPL maintains an indenture related to its debentures due 2010 through 2038.  Sheboygan 
Power, LLC, Resources’ wholly-owned subsidiary, maintains an indenture related to the issuance of its 5.06% senior secured notes due 2010 to 
2024.  
 
Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2030 - As a result of receiving the requisite consents in 2009 constituting a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of the outstanding Notes, Alliant Energy and the trustee for the Notes entered into a Sixth Supplemental Indenture that (i) waived an 
alleged default under the indenture for the Notes asserted in a notice of default from the trustee and its consequences; (ii) rescinded the notice of 
acceleration from the trustee, which declared the full principal amount of the Notes due and payable, and its consequences; (iii) stipulated that 
Alliant Energy’s assumption of the obligations of Resources under the indenture and the Notes and Resources’ release from its obligations under 
the indenture and the Notes were deemed to have been effective on Nov. 25, 2008; (iv) authorized the filing of a stipulation of dismissal with 
prejudice in federal court with respect to related litigation by the trustee with respect to the Notes; and (v) approved amendments to the indenture 
that eliminated substantially all of the covenants and certain of the events of default contained in the indenture.  The Sixth Supplemental Indenture 
provisions described above became operative in September 2009.  In September 2009, Alliant Energy, Resources and the trustee filed in federal 
court the stipulation of dismissal, which ended the litigation by the trustee with respect to the Notes.  
 
Optional Redemption Provisions - Alliant Energy and its subsidiaries have certain issuances of long-term debt that contain optional redemption 
provisions which, if elected by the issuer at its sole discretion, could require material redemption premium payments by the issuer.  The 
redemption premium payments under these optional redemption provisions are variable and dependent on applicable U.S. Treasury rates at the 
time of redemption.  At Dec. 31, 2009, the debt issuances that contained these optional redemption provisions included Alliant Energy’s senior 
notes due 2014, IPL’s senior debentures due 2011 through 2039, WPL’s debentures due 2019 through 2038 and Sheboygan Power, LLC’s senior 
secured notes due 2010 to 2024.  
 
Security Provisions - The 5.06% senior secured notes due 2010 to 2024 are secured by the Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility and related assets.  
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Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs - Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s unamortized debt issuance costs recorded in “Deferred charges and 
other” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Carrying Amount and Fair Value of Long-term Debt - Refer to Note 10 for information on the carrying amount and fair value of Alliant 
Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s long-term debt outstanding at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008.  
 
(9)   INVESTMENTS  

(a)   In July 2009, IPL issued $300 million of 6.25% senior debentures due 2039 and used the proceeds initially to repay short-term debt and invest 
in short-term assets and thereafter to repay $135 million of its 6.625% senior debentures in August 2009.  

(b)   In July 2009, WPL issued $250 million of 5% debentures due 2019 and used the proceeds initially to repay short-term debt and invest in 
short-term assets, and thereafter to fund capital expenditures and for general working capital purposes.  

(c)   In October 2009, Alliant Energy issued $250 million of 4% senior notes due 2014 and used the proceeds to repay short-term debt and the 
remainder for general corporate purposes.  

(d)   In September 2009, Alliant Energy announced a tender offer and consent solicitation for all 5,940,960 of its 2.5% Exchangeable Senior Notes 
due 2030 (Notes).  In 2009, Alliant Energy received valid tenders and consents from holders of 5,940,660 Notes and made $241 million of 
payments related to the Notes tendered using short-term borrowings and cash on hand.  These payments exceeded the carrying value of the 
Notes tendered resulting in Alliant Energy incurring $203 million of pre-tax charges in 2009 related to the repurchase of the Notes.  These 
pre-tax charges were recorded in “Loss on early extinguishment of debt” in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Statements of Income in 2009.  As 
of Dec. 31, 2009, there were 300 Notes outstanding.  

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014    
IPL    $ --    $ 200     $ --    $ --    $ 38   
WPL      100       --      --      --      9   
Resources      2       1       1       1       2   
Alliant Energy parent company      --      --      --      --      250   
Alliant Energy    $ 102     $ 201     $ 1     $ 1     $ 299   

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Unamortized debt issuance costs    $ 19.3     $ 14.8     $ 8.3     $ 6.2     $ 8.5     $ 7.1   
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(a)  Unconsolidated Equity Investments - Alliant Energy’s unconsolidated investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting are 
as follows (dollars in millions):  
 

 
Summary financial information from the financial statements of these investments is as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(b)  Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance Policies - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have various life insurance policies that cover certain 
current and former employees and directors.  At Dec. 31, the cash surrender value of these investments was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(c)  Other Investments - Information relating to various debt and equity securities held by Alliant Energy at Dec. 31 that are marked-to-market 
each reporting period was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(10)   FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The carrying amounts of Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s current assets and current liabilities 
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of such financial instruments.  Carrying amounts and the related estimated fair values of 
other financial instruments at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (in millions):  
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    Ownership      Carrying Value          
    Interest at      at Dec. 31,      Equity (Income) / Loss    
    Dec. 31, 2009     2009      2008      2009      2008      2007    
ATC (a)      16 %   $ 219     $ 195     $ (36 )   $ (32 )   $ (27 ) 
Wisconsin River Power Company      50 %     8       9       (1 )     (2 )     (1 ) 
Other    Various       2       2       --      1       (1 ) 
            $ 229     $ 206     $ (37 )   $ (33 )   $ (29 ) 

(a)   Alliant Energy has the ability to exercise significant influence over ATC’s financial and operating policies through its participation on ATC’s 
Board of Directors.  Refer to Note 20 for information regarding related party transactions with ATC.  

    2009      2008      2007    
Operating revenues    $ 529     $ 474     $ 424   
Operating income      292       258       210   
Net income      218       197       168   

As of Dec. 31:                          
Current assets      56       56           
Non-current assets      2,814       2,546           
Current liabilities      286       257           
Non-current liabilities      1,341       1,234           

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Cash surrender value    $ 47.8     $ 46.0     $ 13.2     $ 12.9     $ 14.0     $ 13.4   

    2009      2008    

    Carrying/Fair     
Unrealized 

Gains,      Carrying/Fair      
Unrealized 

Gains,    
    Value      Net of Tax      Value      Net of Tax    
Available-for-sale securities    $ 4.2     $ 0.6     $ 3.8     $ 0.2   

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    Carrying      Fair      Carrying      Fair      Carrying      Fair    
    Amount      Value      Amount      Value      Amount      Value    

Dec. 31, 2009                                      
Assets:                                      

Derivative assets (Note 11(a))    $ 31.8     $ 31.8     $ 16.4     $ 16.4     $ 15.3     $ 15.3   
Available-for -sale securities (Note 9(c))      4.2       4.2       2.3       2.3       --      --  

Capitalization and liabilities:                                                  
Long-term debt (including current maturities) (Note 

8(b))      2,506.0       2,675.5       1,158.7       1,238.1       1,031.6       1,125.9   
Cumulative preferred stock of subsidiaries (Note 7

(b))      243.8       260.9       183.8       210.3       60.0       50.6   
Derivative liabilities (Note 11(a))      119.3       119.3       53.0       53.0       66.3       66.3   

                                                  
Dec. 31, 2008                                                  
Assets:                                                  

Derivative assets (Note 11(a))      28.4       28.4       8.7       8.7       19.6       19.6   
Available-for-sale securities (Note 9(c))      3.8       3.8       2.3       2.3       --      --  
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Valuation Techniques -  
Derivative assets and liabilities - Derivative assets and liabilities include swap contracts, option contracts and physical forward purchase and sale 
contracts for electricity and natural gas, financial transmission rights (FTRs) and embedded foreign currency derivatives.  IPL’s and WPL’s swap, 
option and physical forward commodity contracts are non-exchange-based derivative instruments valued using indicative price quotations 
available through a pricing vendor that provides daily exchange forward price settlements, from broker or dealer quotations or from on-line 
exchanges.  The indicative price quotations reflect the average of the bid-ask mid-point prices and are obtained from sources believed to provide 
the most liquid market for the commodity.  IPL and WPL corroborate a portion of these indicative price quotations using quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets and categorize derivative instruments based on such indicative price quotations as Level 2.  IPL’s and WPL’s 
commodity contracts that are valued using indicative price quotations based on significant assumptions such as seasonal or monthly shaping and 
indicative price quotations that cannot be readily corroborated are categorized as Level 3.  IPL’s and WPL’s swap, option and physical forward 
commodity contracts are predominately at liquid trading points.  IPL’s and WPL’s FTRs are measured at fair value each reporting period using 
monthly or annual auction shadow prices from relevant auctions.  The embedded foreign currency derivatives related to Euro-denominated 
payment terms included in the wind turbine supply contract with Vestas are measured at fair value each reporting period using an extrapolation of 
forward currency rates.  Refer to Note 11(a) for additional details of Alliant Energy’s derivative assets and liabilities.  
 
Available-for-sale securities - The fair value of Resources’ investment in Capstone Turbine Corporation’s common stock and certain IPL 
investments in various debt and equity securities are measured at fair value each reporting period using quoted market prices on listed 
exchanges.  Refer to Note 9(c) for additional details of Alliant Energy’s available-for-sale securities.  
 
Long-term debt (including current maturities) - For long-term debt instruments that are actively traded, the fair value was based upon quoted 
market prices each year-end.  For long-term debt instruments that are not actively traded, the fair value was based on discounted cash flow 
methodology and utilizes assumptions of current market pricing curves.  Refer to Note 8(b) for additional details of Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and 
WPL’s long-term debt.  
 
Cumulative preferred stock of subsidiaries - The fair values of IPL’s 8.375% and 7.10% cumulative preferred stock were based on their closing 
market prices quoted by the New York Stock Exchange each reporting period.  The fair value of WPL’s 4.50% cumulative preferred stock was 
based on the closing market prices quoted by the NYSE Amex LLC each reporting period.  The fair value of WPL’s remaining preferred stock 
was calculated based on the market yield of similar securities.  Refer to Note 7(b) for additional details of IPL’s and WPL’s cumulative preferred 
stock of subsidiaries.  
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Valuation Hierarchy - Fair value measurement accounting establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy and examples of each are as follows:  
 

Level 1 - Pricing inputs are quoted prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.  Level 1 assets 
include Resources’ investment in Capstone Turbine Corporation’s common stock and certain IPL investments in securities valued using 
quoted market prices on listed exchanges.  

 
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are quoted prices for similar asset or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in markets that are not active as of the reporting date.  Level 2 assets and liabilities include IPL’s and WPL’s non-exchange traded 
commodity contracts valued using indicative price quotations that are corroborated with quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets.  

 
Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities for which little or no market data exist and require significant 
management judgment or estimation.  Level 3 assets and liabilities include IPL’s and WPL’s FTRs, natural gas option contracts, embedded 
foreign currency derivatives and certain commodity contracts that are valued using indicative price quotations based on significant 
assumptions such as seasonal or monthly shaping.  

 
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable data (Level 
3).  In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy.  The lowest level input that is 
significant to a fair value measurement in its entirety determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy.  Assessing the significance of a 
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.  
 
Recurring Fair Value Measurements - Alliant Energy’s recurring items subject to fair value measurements disclosure requirements at Dec. 31, 
2009 and 2008 were as follows (in millions):  
 

Capitalization and liabilities:                                                  
Long-term debt (including current maturities) (Note 8

(b))      1,884.7       2,107.0       995.2       991.8       782.9       861.7   
Cumulative preferred stock of subsidiaries (Note 7(b))      243.8       242.1       183.8       192.3       60.0       49.8   
Derivative liabilities (Note 11(a))      103.0       103.0       88.2       88.2       14.8       14.8   

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements     Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    

Dec. 31, 2009                          
Assets:                          

Derivative assets    $ 31.8     $ 0.1     $ 20.0     $ 11.7   
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Additional information for Alliant Energy’s recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs) for 2009 and 
2008 is as follows (in millions):  
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements - Alliant Energy’s nonrecurring item subject to the fair value measurement disclosure requirements in 
2009 was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
In the second quarter of 2009, IPL announced its decision to discontinue providing steam service to customers in downtown Cedar Rapids.  As a 
result of this decision, IPL assessed the recoverability of its steam assets in downtown Cedar Rapids in 2009 and determined the carrying amount 
of the assets exceeded the expected undiscounted future cash flows from the assets.  The carrying value of the assets was reduced by $4 million in 
2009 to equal the estimated fair value of the assets.  The fair value of the assets was estimated using the expected cash flows from the assets for 
the remainder of their useful life and the anticipated salvage value of the assets.  Alliant Energy and IPL recognized the $4 million impairment 
charge in “Utility other operation and maintenance expenses” in their Consolidated Statements of Income in 2009.  Refer to Note 1(e) for further 
discussion of IPL’s steam plant in service.  
 
Refer to Note 1(r) for additional information on fair value measurements.  
 
(11)   DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS  
(a)  Accounting for Derivative Instruments -  
Purpose - Alliant Energy periodically uses derivative instruments for risk management purposes to mitigate exposures to fluctuations in interest 
rates, certain commodity prices, transmission congestion costs and currency exchange rates.  Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s current derivative 
instruments have not been designated as hedging instruments.  IPL’s and WPL’s derivative instruments include electric physical forward purchase 
contracts and swap contracts to mitigate pricing volatility for the electricity purchased to supply to their customers, electric physical forward sale 
contracts to offset long positions created by reductions in electricity demand forecasts, natural gas swap contracts to mitigate pricing volatility for 
the fuel used to supply to the natural gas-fired electric generating facilities they operate, natural gas options to mitigate price increases during 
periods of high demand or lack of supply, FTRs acquired to manage transmission congestion costs, natural gas swap contracts to mitigate pricing 
volatility for natural gas supplied to their retail customers and embedded foreign currency derivatives related to Euro-denominated payment terms 
included in the wind turbine supply contract with Vestas.  Resources’ derivative instruments include oil contracts, which are used to mitigate 
pricing volatility for anticipated purchases of diesel fuel to fuel standby generators owned by its Non-regulated Generation business.  
 
Notional Amounts - As of Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL had notional amounts related to outstanding swap contracts, options, 
physical forward contracts, FTRs and foreign currency denominated payments that were accounted for as derivative instruments as follows (units 
in thousands):  
 

Available-for -sale securities      4.2       2.3       1.8       0.1   
Liabilities:                                  

Derivative liabilities      119.3       --      113.3       6.0   
                                  
Dec. 31, 2008                                  
Assets:                                  

Derivative assets      28.4       0.1       2.6       25.7   
Available-for-sale securities      3.8       3.8       --      --  

Liabilities:                                  
Derivative liabilities      103.0       --      92.0       11.0   

    Derivative Assets and    
    Liabilities, net    
    2009      2008    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1    $ 14.7     $ 27.7   
Total gains or (losses) (realized/unrealized) included in changes in net assets (a)      (3.5 )     19.3   
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net      (5.4 )     (32.3 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31    $ 5.8     $ 14.7   

                  
The amount of total gains or (losses) for the period included in changes in net                  

assets attributable to the change in unrealized gains or (losses) relating to assets                  
and liabilities held at Dec. 31 (a)    $ (3.5 )   $ 14.7   

(a)   Recorded in “Regulatory assets”  and “Regulatory liabilities”  on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

    Fair Value at                            
    Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Total Loss    
IPL’s steam plant in service    $ 2.0     $ --    $ --    $ 2.0     $ (4.0 ) 

  2010    2011    2012    2013    Total  
Alliant Energy                    
Commodity:                    

Electricity (MWhs)  5,950    2,400    73    204    8,627  
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The notional amounts in the above table were computed by aggregating the absolute value of purchase and sale positions within commodities for 
each year.  
 
Financial Statement Presentation - Alliant Energy records derivative instruments at fair value on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities.  At 
Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair values of current derivative assets were included in “Derivative assets,” non-current derivative assets were 
included in “Deferred charges and other,” current derivative liabilities were included in “Derivative liabilities” and non-current derivative 
liabilities were included in “Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows (in millions):  
 

 
IPL and WPL generally record gains and losses from their derivative instruments with offsets to regulatory assets or liabilities, based on their fuel 
and natural gas cost recovery mechanisms, as well as other specific regulatory authorizations.  Gains and losses from derivative instruments not 
designated as hedging instruments were recorded in 2009 as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Losses from commodity contracts in 2009 were primarily due to impacts of significant decreases in electricity and natural gas prices.  
 
Credit Risk-related Contingent Features - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have entered into various agreements that contain credit risk-related 
contingent features including requirements for them to maintain certain credit ratings from each of the major credit rating agencies and limitations 
on their liability positions under the various agreements.  In the event of a downgrade in their credit ratings or if their liability positions exceed 

FTRs (MWs)  11    --    --    --    11  
Natural gas (dekatherms (Dths))  61,861    19,135    6,798    --    87,794  
Oil (gallons)  378    --    --    --    378  

Foreign exchange (Euro dollars)  44,420    14,806    --    --    59,226  
                    
IPL                    
Commodity:                    

Electricity (MWhs)  2,824    580    --    --    3,404  
FTRs (MWs)  6    --    --    --    6  
Natural gas (Dths)  43,238    9,925    --    --    53,163  

Foreign exchange (Euro dollars)  44,420    14,806    --    --    59,226  
                    
WPL                    
Commodity:                    

Electricity (MWhs)  3,126    1,820    73    204    5,223  
FTRs (MWs)  5    --    --    --    5  
Natural gas (Dths)  18,623    9,210    6,798    --    34,631  

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    

Current derivative assets                                      
Commodity contracts    $ 20.4     $ 18.1     $ 9.1     $ 7.4     $ 11.2     $ 10.7   
Foreign exchange contracts      3.4       --      3.4       --      --      --  

    $ 23.8     $ 18.1     $ 12.5     $ 7.4     $ 11.2     $ 10.7   

Non-current derivative assets                                                  
Commodity contracts    $ 6.8     $ 2.4     $ 2.7     $ 1.3     $ 4.1     $ 1.0   
Foreign exchange contracts      1.2       7.9       1.2       --      --      7.9   

    $ 8.0     $ 10.3     $ 3.9     $ 1.3     $ 4.1     $ 8.9   

Current derivative liabilities                                                  
Commodity contracts    $ 99.0     $ 76.7     $ 49.5     $ 68.9     $ 49.5     $ 7.8   
Foreign exchange contracts      1.5       1.9       --      1.1       1.5       0.8   

    $ 100.5     $ 78.6     $ 49.5     $ 70.0     $ 51.0     $ 8.6   

Non-current derivative liabilities                                                  
Commodity contracts    $ 18.8     $ 22.8     $ 3.5     $ 18.2     $ 15.3     $ 4.6   
Foreign exchange contracts      --      1.6       --      --      --      1.6   

    $ 18.8     $ 24.4     $ 3.5     $ 18.2     $ 15.3     $ 6.2   

  Location of Gain (Loss) in Balance    Gain (Loss)    
  Sheet or Statement of Income    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
Commodity contracts  Regulatory assets (a)    $ (137.6 )   $ (69.5 )   $ (68.1 ) 
  Regulatory liabilities (a)      24.4       11.7       12.7   
  Non-regulated operation and maintenance (b)      0.2       --      --  
Foreign exchange contracts  Regulatory liabilities (a)      (3.3 )     (2.9 )     (0.4 ) 
(a)   Balance Sheet  
(b)   Statement of Income  
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certain contractual limits, Alliant Energy, IPL or WPL may need to provide credit support in the form of letters of credit or cash collateral up to 
the amount of their exposure under the contracts, or may need to unwind the contracts and pay the underlying liability positions.  
 
Certain of these agreements with credit risk-related contingency features are accounted for as derivative instruments.  The aggregate fair value of 
all derivatives with credit risk-related contingent features that were in a net liability position on Dec. 31, 2009 was $119.3 million, $53.0 million 
and $66.3 million for Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL, respectively.  At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL all had investment-grade credit 
ratings.  However, WPL exceeded its liability position with one counterparty requiring it to post cash collateral.  If the most restrictive credit risk-
related contingent features for derivative agreements in a net liability position were triggered on Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL 
would be required to post an additional $117.8 million, $53.0 million and $64.8 million, respectively, of credit support to their 
counterparties.  Refer to Note 4(d) for additional details of total cash collateral posted by Alliant Energy and WPL at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008.  
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(b)  Weather Derivatives - IPL and WPL periodically use non-exchange traded swap agreements based on cooling degree days (CDD) and 
heating degree days (HDD) measured in their utility service territories to reduce the impact of weather volatility on their electric and natural gas 
sales volumes.  These weather derivatives are accounted for using the intrinsic value method.  Any premiums paid related to these weather 
derivative agreements are expensed over each respective contract period.  IPL’s and WPL’s ratepayers do not pay any of the premiums nor do 
they share in the gains or losses realized from these weather derivatives.  
 
Summer weather derivatives - IPL and WPL periodically utilize weather derivatives based on CDD to reduce the impact of weather volatility on 
their electric margins for June 1 through Aug. 31 each year.  Weather derivatives are based on CDD measured in Cedar Rapids, Iowa and 
Madison, Wisconsin.  The actual CDD measured during these periods resulted in settlements with the counterparties under the agreements, which 
included net receipts of $9.0 million (IPL receiving $7.0 million and WPL receiving $2.0 million) and net payments of $0.6 million (IPL receiving 
$1.4 million and WPL paying $2.0 million) in 2008 and 2007, respectively.  IPL and WPL did not enter into CDD swap agreements in 2009.  
 
Winter weather derivatives - IPL and WPL periodically utilize weather derivatives based on HDD to reduce the impact of weather volatility on 
IPL’s and WPL’s electric and gas margins for Jan. 1 through March 31 and Nov. 1 through Dec. 31   each calendar year.  Weather derivatives are 
based on HDD measured in Cedar Rapids, Iowa and Madison, Wisconsin.  The actual HDD measured during these periods resulted in settlements 
with the counterparties under the agreements, which included net payments of $8.8 million (IPL paying $5.4 million and WPL paying $3.4 
million), net payments of $9.0 million (IPL paying $5.4 million and WPL paying $3.6 million) and net payments of $0.8 million (IPL paying $0.7 
million and WPL paying $0.1 million) in the first half of 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, IPL and WPL did not enter into 
HDD swap agreements for Nov. 1 through Dec. 31, 2009 and Jan. 1 through March 31, 2010.  
 
The counterparties to certain of these contracts were required to provide cash collateral to IPL and WPL.  As of Dec. 31, 2008, the outstanding 
cash collateral received by IPL and WPL of $5.4 million and $1.4 million, respectively, was recorded in “Accounts payable” on the respective 
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  All remaining cash collateral related to weather derivatives was returned to the counterparty in 2009.  
 
Summary information relating to the summer and winter weather derivatives was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(12)   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
(a)  Capital Purchase Obligations - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have entered into capital purchase obligations that contain minimum future 
commitments related to certain capital expenditures for their proposed wind projects.  The obligations are primarily related to capital purchase 
obligations under a master supply agreement executed in 2008 with Vestas for the purchase of 500 MW of wind turbine generator sets and related 
equipment to support IPL’s and WPL’s wind generation plans.  A portion of the future payments are denominated in Euros and therefore are 
subject to change with fluctuations in currency exchange rates.  At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s minimum future 
commitments related to these capital expenditures were as follows (in millions):  
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(b)  Operating Expense Purchase Obligations - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL have entered into various commodity supply, transportation and 
storage contracts to meet their obligations to deliver electricity and natural gas to their utility customers.  Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL also enter 

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Gains (losses):                                                        

Electric utility operating revenues    $ (2.6 )   $ 4.6     $ (4.5 )   $ (1.8 )   $ 4.0     $ (1.5 )   $ (0.8 )   $ 0.6     $ (3.0 ) 
Gas utility operating revenues      (2.6 )     (4.6 )     (4.1 )     (1.4 )     (2.4 )     (2.2 )     (1.2 )     (2.2 )     (1.9 ) 

Settlements (paid to) / received from                                                                          
counterparties, net      (8.8 )     --      (1.4 )     (5.4 )     1.6       0.7       (3.4 )     (1.6 )     (2.1 ) 

Premiums expensed      --      0.1       1.4       --      0.1       0.9       --      --      0.5   
Premiums paid to counterparties      --      0.1       1.4       --      0.1       0.9       --      --      0.5   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter      Total    
WPL    $ 174     $ --    $ --    $ --    $ --    $ --    $ 174   
IPL      91       39       --      --      --      --      130   

Alliant Energy    $ 265     $ 39     $ --    $ --    $ --    $ --    $ 304   
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into other operating expense purchase obligations with various vendors for other goods and services.  At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s 
and WPL’s minimum commitments related to these operating expense purchase obligations were as follows (in millions):  
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Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL enter into certain contracts that are considered leases and are therefore not included here, but are included in Note 3. 
 
(c)  Legal Proceedings -  

Alliant Energy:    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter      Total    
Purchased power (a):                                            

DAEC (IPL)    $ 168     $ 176     $ 180     $ 200     $ 34     $ --    $ 758   
Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant                                                          

(Kewaunee) (WPL)      83       62       73       79       --      --      297   
Other      79       30       2       --      --      --      111   

      330       268       255       279       34       --      1,166   
                                                          
Natural gas      168       66       45       29       19       45       372   
Coal (b)      152       132       41       16       13       --      354   
Emission allowances (c)      9       1       --      --      --      34       44   
Other (d)      16       15       15       7       --      --      53   
    $ 675     $ 482     $ 356     $ 331     $ 66     $ 79     $ 1,989   

IPL:                                                          
Purchased power (a):                                                          

DAEC    $ 168     $ 176     $ 180     $ 200     $ 34     $ --    $ 758   
Other      11       13       --      --      --      --      24   

      179       189       180       200       34       --      782   
                                                          
Natural gas      78       31       23       9       2       11       154   
Coal (b)      38       30       27       9       6       --      110   
Emission allowances (c)      9       1       --      --      --      34       44   
Other (d)      9       7       7       --      --      --      23   
    $ 313     $ 258     $ 237     $ 218     $ 42     $ 45     $ 1,113   

WPL:                                                          
Purchased power (a):                                                          

Kewaunee    $ 83     $ 62     $ 73     $ 79     $ --    $ --    $ 297   
Other      68       17       2       --      --      --      87   

      151       79       75       79       --      --      384   
                                                          
Natural gas      90       35       22       20       17       34       218   
Coal (b)      11       7       7       7       7       --      39   
Other (d)      3       8       8       7       --      --      26   
    $ 255     $ 129     $ 112     $ 113     $ 24     $ 34     $ 667   

(a) Includes payments required by PPAs for capacity rights and minimum quantities of MWh required to be purchased.  Refer to Note 20 for 
additional information on purchased power transactions.  

(b)   IPL and WPL enter into coal transportation contracts that are directly assigned to their specific generating stations, the amounts of which are 
included in Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s tables above.  Also included in Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s tables are IPL’s respective portion 
of coal and coal transportation contracts related to jointly-owned generating stations not operated by IPL.  In addition, Corporate Services 
entered into system-wide coal contracts on behalf of IPL and WPL of $103 million, $95 million and $7 million for 2010 to 2012, respectively, 
to allow flexibility for the changing needs of the quantity of coal consumed by each.  Coal contract quantities are allocated to specific IPL or 
WPL generating stations at or before the time of delivery based on various factors including projected heat input requirements, combustion 
compatibility and efficiency.  These system-wide coal contracts have not been directly assigned to IPL and WPL since the specific needs of 
each utility are not yet known and therefore are excluded from IPL’s and WPL’s tables.  

(c)   IPL has entered into forward contracts to purchase SO2 emission allowances with vintage years of 2014 through 2017 and NOx emission 
allowances with vintage years of 2009 through 2011 from various counterparties for $34 million and $10 million, respectively.  IPL may 
utilize any SO2 emission allowances acquired under these forward contracts to meet requirements under the Acid Rain Program regulations 
or the more stringent Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) emission reduction standards.  IPL entered into the forward contracts to purchase NOx 
emission allowances solely for the purpose of compliance with the CAIR emission reduction standards.  IPL is currently monitoring the status 
of the forward contracts to purchase SO2 and NOx emission allowances in light of various court rulings in 2008 and anticipated EPA 
proceedings regarding changes to CAIR.  Alliant Energy and IPL do not currently believe any losses from these forward contracts are 
probable and therefore have not recognized any loss contingency amounts related to the forward contracts as of Dec. 31, 2009.  Alliant 
Energy and IPL are currently unable to predict the ultimate impact these forward contracts will have on their financial condition or results of 
operations.  

(d)   Includes individual commitments incurred during the normal course of business that exceeded $1 million at Dec. 31, 2009.  
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Air Permitting Violation Claims - In October 2009, WPL, as an owner and the operator of the Nelson Dewey Generating Station (Nelson 
Dewey) and the Columbia Energy Center (Columbia), received from Sierra Club a notice of intent to file a civil lawsuit (NOI) based on 
allegations that modifications were made at those facilities without complying with the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) program 
requirements, Title V Operating Permit requirements of the Clean Air Act (CAA) and state regulatory counterparts contained within the 
Wisconsin State Implementation Plans (SIP) designed to implement the CAA.  In December 2009, WPL received from the Sierra Club a separate 
NOI, which contained similar allegations regarding the Edgewater Generating Station (Edgewater).  The NOIs allege that various projects 
performed at Nelson Dewey, Columbia and Edgewater in years past were major modifications, as defined in the CAA, and that the owners 
violated the CAA when they undertook those projects without obtaining permits and installing the best available emission controls for SO2, NOx 
and particulate matter.  In the Edgewater NOI, additional allegations were made regarding violations of emission limits for visible emissions.  
 
In December 2009, the EPA sent a Notice of Violation (NOV) to WPL as an owner and the operator of Nelson Dewey, Columbia and 
Edgewater.  The NOV alleges that the owners failed to comply with appropriate pre-construction review and permitting requirements and as a 
result violated the PSD program requirements, Title V Operating Permit requirements of the CAA and the SIP.  
 
If pursued successfully by the EPA and/or the Sierra Club, these actions could result in civil penalties in amounts of up to $37,500 per day for 
each violation and/or injunctive relief to require installation of pollution control technology at Nelson Dewey, Columbia and Edgewater, which 
would increase future capital and operating expenditures of Alliant Energy and WPL.  Alliant Energy and WPL are currently reviewing the 
allegations and are unable to predict the impact of the allegations on their financial conditions or results of operations, but believe that an adverse 
outcome could be significant.  WPL and the other owners of Columbia and Edgewater are exploring settlement options with each of the EPA and 
Sierra Club while simultaneously defending against these actions.  WPL believes the projects at Nelson Dewey, Columbia and Edgewater were 
routine or not projected to increase emissions therefore did not violate the permitting requirements of the CAA.  Alliant Energy and WPL do not 
currently believe any losses from these allegations are both probable and reasonably estimable and therefore have not recognized any related loss 
contingency amounts as of Dec. 31, 2009.  
 
Shareowner Derivative Complaint - On Feb. 27, 2009, a purported shareowner filed in the Circuit Court for Dane County, Wisconsin, a 
derivative complaint against certain current and former officers and directors of Alliant Energy alleging that such officers and directors breached 
their fiduciary duties by approving sales of assets of Resources in violation of the Indenture with respect to the Exchangeable Senior Notes due 
2030 and wasting Alliant Energy’s assets by compensating such officers and directors in connection with such sales.  Alliant Energy believes the 
derivative complaint is without merit and intends to vigorously defend against this litigation.  The purported shareowner had previously made a 
demand asking the Board of Directors to take action to remedy the alleged breaches of fiduciary duties by certain officers and directors.  Under 
Wisconsin law, if a shareowner commences a derivative proceeding after making such a demand, the court must dismiss such a derivative 
proceeding if a committee of independent directors appointed by independent directors determines, acting in good faith after conducting a 
reasonable inquiry upon which its conclusions are based, that maintenance of the derivative proceeding is not in the best interests of the 
corporation.  The independent directors of Alliant Energy appointed such a special litigation committee of independent directors, which conducted 
an inquiry into the allegations made in the demand from the purported shareowner and in a report delivered to Alliant Energy determined that 
maintenance of the derivative proceeding is not in the best interests of Alliant Energy.  Based on that report, on Sep. 14, 2009, Alliant Energy filed 
a motion to dismiss the derivative proceeding in the Circuit Court for Dane County, Wisconsin.  Alliant Energy does not currently believe any 
losses from the purported shareowner action are both probable and reasonably estimable and therefore has not recognized any related loss 
contingency amounts as of Dec. 31, 2009.  
 
Alliant Energy Cash Balance Pension Plan (Plan) - In February 2008, a class action lawsuit was filed against the Plan.  The complaint alleges 
that certain Plan participants who received distributions prior to their normal retirement age did not receive the full benefit to which they were 
entitled in violation of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 because the Plan applied an improper interest crediting rate to 
project the cash balance account to their normal retirement age.  These Plan participants are limited to individuals who received a lump sum 
distribution and/or received any form of distribution calculated under the Plan’s prior formula after that benefit was determined to be more 
valuable than their benefit calculated under the Plan’s cash balance formula.  The court has certified two subclasses of plaintiffs that in aggregate 
include all persons vested or partially vested in the Plan who received these distributions of the cash balance formula benefit from Jan. 1, 1998 
through Aug. 17, 2006 including: 1) persons who received distributions from Jan. 1, 1998 through Feb. 28, 2002; and 2) persons who received 
distributions from Feb. 29, 2002 through Aug. 17, 2006.  Alliant Energy is contesting the case and the parties are proceeding with discovery.  In 
September 2009, the plaintiffs submitted reports by their expert witnesses that quantified the alleged underpayments owed to plaintiffs between 
$24 million and $54 million, including interest.  Alliant Energy disputes these amounts.  Trial is scheduled for June 2010.  Alliant Energy is 
currently unable to predict the final outcome of the class action lawsuit or the ultimate impact on its financial condition or results of operations but 
believes an adverse outcome could have a material effect on retirement plan funding and expense for Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL.  
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During 2009, the interest crediting rate used to project the cash balance account to participant’s normal retirement age was also being considered 
by the IRS as part of its review of Alliant Energy’s request for a favorable determination letter with respect to the tax-qualified status of the 
Plan.  In December 2009, Alliant Energy reached a tentative agreement with the IRS, which is expected to result in Alliant Energy obtaining a 
favorable determination letter for the Plan.  The agreement with the IRS will require an amendment to the Plan, which is expected to result in 
future payments to certain Plan participants.  
 
As of Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy recognized a loss contingency of $5 million ($2 million at IPL and $2 million at WPL) in aggregate related to 
the class action lawsuit and the anticipated Plan amendment resulting from the tentative agreement reached with the IRS.  
 
Other - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL are involved in other legal and administrative proceedings before various courts and agencies with respect 
to matters arising in the ordinary course of business.  Although unable to predict the outcome of these matters, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL 
believe that appropriate reserves have been established and final disposition of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on their 
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financial condition or results of operations.  
 
(d)    Guarantees and Indemnifications - Alliant Energy provided indemnifications associated with various sales of its non-regulated and utility 
businesses/assets for losses resulting from potential breach of the representations and warranties made by Alliant Energy on the sale dates and for 
the breach of its obligations under the sale agreements.  Alliant Energy believes the likelihood of having to make any material cash payments 
under these indemnifications is remote.  Alliant Energy recorded liabilities of $1 million related to these indemnifications as of Dec. 31, 
2009.  The terms of the indemnifications provided by Alliant Energy at Dec. 31, 2009 for the various sales were generally as follows (in millions): 
 

 
Alliant Energy also continues to guarantee the abandonment obligations of Whiting Petroleum Corporation under the Point Arguello partnership 
agreements.  The guarantee does not include a maximum limit.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, the present value of the abandonment obligations is 
estimated at $23 million.  Alliant Energy believes that no payments will be made under this guarantee.  
 
Refer to Note 3(a) for discussion of Alliant Energy’s residual value guarantees of its synthetic leases.  
 
(e)  Environmental Matters - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL are subject to environmental regulations as a result of their current and past 
operations.  These regulations are designed to protect public health and the environment and have resulted in compliance, remediation, 
containment and monitoring obligations which are recorded as environmental liabilities.  At Dec. 31, current environmental liabilities were 
included in “Other current liabilities” and non-current environmental liabilities were included in “Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits” 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows (in millions):  
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MGP Sites - IPL and WPL have current or previous ownership interests in 40 and 14 sites, respectively, previously associated with the production 
of gas for which they may be liable for investigation, remediation and monitoring costs relating to the sites.  IPL and WPL have received letters 
from state environmental agencies requiring no further action at ten and eight sites, respectively.  Additionally, IPL has met state environmental 
agency expectations at three additional sites requiring no further action for soil remediation.  IPL and WPL are working pursuant to the 
requirements of various federal and state agencies to investigate, mitigate, prevent and remediate, where necessary, the environmental impacts to 
property, including natural resources, at and around the sites in order to protect public health and the environment.  
 
IPL and WPL record environmental liabilities related to these MGP sites based upon periodic studies.  Such amounts are based on the best current 
estimate of the remaining amount to be incurred for investigation, remediation and monitoring costs for those sites where the investigation process 
has been or is substantially completed, and the minimum of the estimated cost range for those sites where the investigation is in its earlier 
stages.  There are inherent uncertainties associated with the estimated remaining costs for MGP projects primarily due to unknown site conditions 
and potential changes in regulatory agency requirements.  It is possible that future cost estimates will be greater than current estimates as the 
investigation process proceeds and as additional facts become known.  The amounts recognized as liabilities are reduced for expenditures incurred 
and are adjusted as further information develops or circumstances change.  Costs of future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations 
are not discounted to their fair value.  Management currently estimates the range of remaining costs to be incurred for the investigation, 
remediation and monitoring of Alliant Energy’s sites to be $20 million ($15 million for IPL and $5 million for WPL) to $42 million ($36 million 
for IPL and $6 million for WPL).  At Dec. 31, 2009, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL had recorded $35 million, $30 million and $5 million, 
respectively, in current and non-current environmental liabilities for their remaining costs to be incurred for these MGP sites.  
 
Refer to Note 1(b) for discussion of regulatory assets recorded by IPL and WPL, which reflect the probable future rate recovery of MGP 
expenditures.  Considering the current rate treatment, and assuming no material change therein, IPL and WPL believe that the clean-up costs 
incurred for these MGP sites will not have a material adverse effect on their respective financial condition or results of operations.  Settlement has 
been reached with all of IPL’s and WPL’s insurance carriers regarding reimbursement for their MGP-related costs and such amounts have been 
accounted for as directed by the applicable regulatory jurisdiction.  
 
Other Environmental Contingencies - In addition to the environmental liabilities discussed above, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL also monitor 
various environmental regulations that may have a significant impact on their future operations.  Given uncertainties regarding the outcome, 
timing and compliance plans for these environmental regulations, Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL are currently not able to determine the complete 
financial impact of these regulations but do believe that future capital investments and/or modifications to their electric generating facilities to 
comply with these regulations could be significant.  Specific current, proposed or potential environmental regulations that may require significant 
future expenditures by Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL include, among others: CAIR, Clean Air Visibility Rule (CAVR), Utility Maximum 
Available Control Technology (MACT) Rule, Wisconsin State Mercury Rule, Wisconsin Reasonably Available Control Technology (RACT) 

Businesses/Assets Sold    Disposal Date    
Maximum 

Limit    Expiration Date  
Brazil    First quarter of 2006        $ 10   January 2011  
New Zealand    Fourth quarter of 2006      152 (a) March 2012     
Mexico    Second quarter of 2007      20   June 2012        
(a)   Based on exchange rates at Dec. 31, 2009  

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Current environmental liabilities    $ 7.3     $ 7.4     $ 6.8     $ 6.7     $ 0.5     $ 0.7   
Non-current environmental liabilities      27.5       28.2       23.4       23.0       4.0       5.2   
    $ 34.8     $ 35.6     $ 30.2     $ 29.7     $ 4.5     $ 5.9   
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Rule, Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) Rule, Fine Particle NAAQS Rule, Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) NAAQS Rule, SO2 
NAAQS Rule, Industrial Boiler and Process Heater MACT Rule, Federal Clean Water Act including Section 316(b), Wisconsin State Thermal 
Rule, Coal Combustion By-products (CCB) and various legislation and EPA regulations to monitor and regulate the emission of greenhouse gases 
(GHG) including the EPA Mandatory GHG Reporting Rule, GHG Endangerment and Cause or Contribute Finding and GHG Tailoring Rule.  The 
following provides a brief description of these environmental regulations.  
 
Air Quality -  
CAIR is an emissions trading program that requires SO2 and NOx emissions reductions at IPL’s and WPL’s electric generating units with greater 
than 25 MW capacity through installation of emission controls or purchases of allowances.  The requirements of this rule remain subject to further 
review by the federal courts and the EPA.  
 
CAVR addresses regional haze at national parks and wilderness areas and is expected to require reductions in visibility-impairing emissions, 
including particulate matter, SO2, and NOx, from certain electric generating units by installing emission controls including those determined to be 
Best Available Retrofit Technology.  The requirements of this rule remain subject to further review by the federal courts and the EPA.  
 
Utility MACT Standard is expected to require standards for the control of mercury and other federal hazardous air pollutants for coal- and oil-fired 
electric utility steam generating units over 25 MW.  
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Wisconsin State Mercury Rule requires WPL’s existing coal-fired electric generating facilities to reduce annual mercury emissions by 40% from a 
historic baseline beginning in 2010, and to either achieve a 90% annual mercury emissions reduction standard or limit the annual concentration of 
mercury emissions to 0.008 pounds of mercury per gigawatt-hour beginning in 2015.  
 
Wisconsin RACT Rule requires NOx emissions reductions at WPL’s Edgewater generating facility since it is located in Sheboygan County, which 
is currently designated as a non-attainment area for the existing eight-hour ozone standard.  
 
Ozone NAAQS Rule is expected to require NOx emissions reductions from electric generating units located in areas designated as non-attainment 
with a more stringent eight-hour ozone standard adopted in 2008 and is under review by the EPA to be further strengthened in 2010.  The EPA’s 
final designations identifying non-attainment areas for the revised ozone standard are expected to be issued in 2011.  
 
Fine Particle NAAQS Rule may require SO2 and NOx emission reductions in areas designated as non-attainment.  The EPA lowered the 24-hour 
standard and left the annual standard unchanged.  In response to a February 2009 court decision, the EPA is reviewing whether the annual fine 
particulate matter (PM2.5) standard should also be lowered.  
 
NO2 NAAQS Rule requires a new one-hour NO2 standard of 100 parts per billion (ppb) and associated ambient air monitoring requirements, 
while maintaining the current annual standard of 53 ppb.  The EPA’s final designations identifying non-attainment areas for the revised NO2 
standard are expected to be issued in 2012.  
 
SO2 NAAQS Rule is expected to establish a new one-hour SO2 standard and associated monitoring requirements.  The proposed rule would 
revise the primary SO2 standard to a one-hour level of between 50 and 100 ppb.  The EPA is under a court order to issue a final SO2 standard by 
June 2010.  
 
Industrial Boiler and Process Heater MACT Rule may require reductions of emissions of hazardous air pollutants at smaller electric generating 
units less than 25 MW, auxiliary boilers and process heaters located at electric generating facilities.  The requirements of this rule remain subject 
to further review by the federal courts, the EPA and state environmental agencies.  
 
Water Quality -  
Section 316(b) of the Federal Clean Water Act is expected to require modifications to cooling water intake structures at seven of IPL’s electric 
generating facilities and three of WPL’s electric generating facilities to assure that these structures reflect the “best technology available” for 
minimizing adverse environmental impacts to fish and other aquatic life.  The requirements of this rule remain subject to further review by the 
federal courts and the EPA.  
 
Wisconsin State Thermal Rule is expected to require modifications to certain of WPL’s electric generating facilities to limit the amount of heat 
those facilities can discharge into Wisconsin waters.  The requirements of this state adopted rule remain subject to further review and approval by 
the EPA.  
 
Land and Solid Waste -  
CCB could impose additional requirements for CCB management, beneficial use applications and disposal.  
 
GHG Emissions -  
Proposed GHG Emission Legislation and EPA Regulations - Public awareness of climate change may result in policymakers taking action to 
mitigate global warming.  Several members of Congress have proposed legislation to regulate GHG emissions, primarily targeting reductions of 
carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions.  State and regional initiatives to address GHG emissions are also underway in states covering Alliant Energy’s 
utility service territories.  Alliant Energy continues to take voluntary measures to reduce its GHG emissions, including CO2, as prudent steps to 
address potential climate change regulations.  
 
EPA Mandatory GHG Reporting Rule requires that sources above certain threshold levels monitor and report GHG emissions.  The annual 
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reporting compliance requirement begins for the calendar year 2010 with the first GHG emissions reports due by March 2011.  
 
GHG Endangerment and Cause or Contribute Finding is an EPA rule establishing that current and projected concentrations of GHG emissions in 
the atmosphere threaten the public health and welfare.  The finalization of these findings is requisite to EPA’s future issuance of regulations to 
reduce GHG emissions from motor vehicles or other emissions sources, which could include electric utility operations.  
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GHG Tailoring Rule is an EPA rule proposal to establish CAA permit applicability thresholds for construction and operation of facilities emitting 
GHG.  The proposal would also require new and significantly modified facilities to demonstrate use of the Best Available Control Technologies 
and energy efficiency measures to minimize GHG emissions.  
 
(f)  Credit Risk - Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL are subject to credit risk related to the ability of counterparties to meet their contractual payment 
obligations or the potential non-performance of counterparties to deliver contracted commodities, other goods or services at the contracted price.  
 
IPL and WPL provide regulated electricity and natural gas services to residential, commercial, industrial and wholesale customers in the Midwest 
region of the U.S.  The geographic concentration of their customers did not contribute significantly to their overall exposure to credit risk.  In 
addition, as a result of their diverse customer base, IPL and WPL did not have any significant concentration of credit risk for receivables arising 
from the sale of electricity and natural gas services.  
 
IPL and WPL are typically net buyers of commodities (primarily electricity, coal and natural gas) required to provide regulated electricity and 
natural gas services to its customers.  As a result, IPL and WPL are also subject to credit risk related to their counterparties’ failures to deliver 
commodities at the contracted price.  
 
Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL maintain credit policies to minimize their credit risk.  These credit policies include evaluation of the financial 
condition of counterparties, use of credit risk-related contingent provisions in certain commodity agreements that require credit support from 
counterparties that exceed certain exposure limits, diversification of counterparties to minimize concentrations of credit risk and the use of 
standardized agreements that facilitate the netting of cash flows associated with a single counterparty.  Based on these credit policies, it is unlikely 
that a material adverse effect on Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s or WPL’s financial condition or results of operations would occur as a result of 
counterparty non-performance.  However, there is no assurance that such policies will protect Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL against all losses 
from non-performance by counterparties.  
 
(g)  Sutherland #4 Generation Project - In November 2007, IPL, Central Iowa Power Cooperative (CIPCO) and Corn Belt Power Cooperative 
(Corn Belt) entered into a joint operating agreement for joint ownership of the proposed 630 MW coal fired electric generating facility in 
Marshalltown, Iowa referred to as Sutherland #4.  In January 2008 and January 2009, several members of North Iowa Municipal Electric 
Cooperative Association (NIMECA) also entered into the joint operating agreement for Sutherland #4 with IPL, CIPCO and Corn Belt.  In March 
2009, a decision was made not to proceed with the construction of Sutherland #4.  The decision was based on a combination of factors including 
current economic and financial conditions; increasing environmental, legislative and regulatory uncertainty regarding future regulation of GHG 
and other air emissions; and regulatory conditions placed upon the project.  
 
The joint operating agreement for Sutherland #4 included a provision that obligated IPL to reimburse its joint partners (CIPCO, Corn Belt and 
NIMECA) for payments they incurred for Sutherland #4 if IPL notified each of the joint partners in writing that it is abandoning Sutherland #4 
due to a decision by the IUB regarding IPL’s allowed return on equity for Sutherland #4 that is unsatisfactory to IPL in its sole discretion.  In the 
third and fourth quarters of 2009, IPL received correspondence from its joint partners alleging IPL was obligated under the terms of the joint 
operating agreement to reimburse the joint partners for payments they incurred for Sutherland #4, which totaled $14 million in aggregate.  In the 
fourth quarter of 2009, IPL entered into a settlement agreement with its joint partners to resolve this matter, which resulted in IPL making $4 
million of aggregate payments to its joint partners in the fourth quarter of 2009.  The $4 million of aggregate payments were recorded in “Utility 
other operation and maintenance” in Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s Consolidated Statements of Income in 2009.  
 
(h)  Collective Bargaining Agreements - At Dec. 31, 2009, employees covered by collective bargaining agreements represented 50%, 81% and 
93% of total employees of Alliant Energy, IPL and WPL, respectively.  In August 2010, IPL’s collective bargaining agreement with International 
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 204 (Cedar Rapids) expires representing 15% and 52% of total employees of Alliant Energy and 
IPL, respectively.  While negotiations to renew the contract with IBEW Local 204 (Cedar Rapids) are underway, Alliant Energy and IPL are 
currently unable to predict the outcome.  
 
(i)  WPL’s Contingent Purchase Agreement for Edgewater Generating Station Unit 5 (Edgewater Unit 5) - In 2009, WPL and Wisconsin 
Electric Power Company (WEPCO) entered into a contingent agreement for WPL to purchase WEPCO’s 25% ownership interest in Edgewater 
Unit 5.  The agreement will become binding if WEPCO is unable to reach an agreement with a third party to sell their interest.  The transaction is 
subject to customary closing conditions, including the receipt of applicable regulatory approvals.  If the purchase is completed, WPL would own 
100% of Edgewater Unit 5.  
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(13)   JOINTLY-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT  
Under joint ownership agreements with other utilities, IPL and WPL have undivided ownership interests in jointly-owned electric generating 
facilities.  Each of the respective owners is responsible for the financing of its portion of the construction costs.  Kilowatt-hour generation and 
operating expenses are primarily divided between the joint owners on the same basis as ownership.  IPL’s and WPL’s shares of expenses from 
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jointly-owned electric generating facilities are included in the corresponding operating expenses (e.g. electric production fuel, other operation and 
maintenance, etc.) on their respective Consolidated Statements of Income.  Refer to Note 1(b) for further discussion of cost of removal 
obligations.  Information relative to IPL’s and WPL’s ownership interest in these jointly-owned electric generating facilities at Dec. 31, 2009 was 
as follows (dollars in millions):  
 

 

 
(14)   SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS  
Alliant Energy’s principal businesses as of Dec. 31, 2009 are:  

 
Alliant Energy’s administrative support services are directly charged to the applicable segment where practicable.  In all other cases, 
administrative support services are allocated to the applicable segment based on services agreements.  Intersegment revenues were not material to 
Alliant Energy’s operations and there was no single customer whose revenues were 10% or more of Alliant Energy’s consolidated 
revenues.  Certain financial information relating to Alliant Energy’s business segments, products and services and geographic information was as 
follows (in millions):  
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                                    Cost of    
                                    Removal    
                                    Obligations    
                        Accumulated      Construction      Included in    
    In-service    Fuel    Ownership      Plant in      Provision for      Work in      Regulatory    
    Dates    Type    Interest %      Service      Depreciation      Progress      Liabilities    

IPL                                        
Ottumwa    1981    Coal      48.0     $ 226.4     $ 103.4     $ 0.4     $ 13.4   
Neal Unit 4    1979    Coal      25.7       96.7       61.4       0.3       10.4   
Neal Unit 3    1975    Coal      28.0       58.9       36.1       0.1       4.9   
Louisa Unit 1    1983    Coal      4.0       35.3       18.0       0.1       2.7   
                      417.3       218.9       0.9       31.4   

WPL                                                  
Edgewater Unit 5 (a)    1985    Coal      75.0       256.6       144.5       0.2       11.7   
Columbia      1975-1978   Coal      46.2       238.8       144.2       2.8       9.3   
Edgewater Unit 4      1969   Coal      68.2       84.4       43.3       0.6       2.6   
                        579.8       332.0       3.6       23.6   
                                                    
                      $ 997.1     $ 550.9     $ 4.5     $ 55.0   

(a)   Refer to Note 12(i) for discussion of WPL’s contingent agreement to purchase the remaining 25% ownership interest in Edgewater Unit 5 
from WEPCO.  

·   Utility business - includes the operations of IPL and WPL, which serve customers in Iowa, Wisconsin and Minnesota.  The utility business 
has three segments: a) electric operations; b) gas operations; and c) other, which includes steam operations, various other energy-related 
products and services and the unallocated portions of the utility business.  Various line items in the following tables are not allocated to the 
electric and gas segments for management reporting purposes and therefore are included in “Total Utility Business.”  Also included for 2007 
are operations of Alliant Energy’s utility operations in Illinois and IPL’s electric transmission assets sold in 2007.  Refer to Notes 17 and 22 
for additional information on these sales.  

·   Non-regulated businesses - includes the operations of Resources and its subsidiaries.  The non-regulated businesses have two segments: a) 
RMT; and b) other, which includes the operations of the Non-regulated Generation business, Transportation business and other non-regulated 
investments described in Note 1(a); the operations of Resources (the non-regulated parent company); and any Resources consolidating 
adjustments.  

·   Other - includes the operations of Alliant Energy (the parent company) and Corporate Services, as well as any Alliant Energy parent 
company consolidating adjustments.  

                      Alliant    
    Utility Business      Non-regulated Businesses            Energy    
    Electric      Gas      Other      Total      RMT      Other      Total      Other      Consolidated   

2009                                                        
Operating revenues    $ 2,475.9     $ 525.3     $ 92.9     $ 3,094.1     $ 294.1     $ 49.7     $ 343.8     $ (5.1 )   $ 3,432.8   
Depreciation and 
amortization      233.5       25.8       8.9       268.2       2.4       7.3       9.7       (2.3 )     275.6   
Operating income (loss)      342.2       52.3       (5.8 )     388.7       (4.9 )     16.0       11.1       (2.6 )     397.2   
Interest expense, net of 
AFUDC                              111.6       0.2       3.4       3.6       --      115.2   
Loss on early extinguishment 
of debt                              --      --      --      --      203.0       203.0   
Equity (income) loss from                                                                          

unconsolidated investments, 
net      (37.0 )     --      --      (37.0 )     --      0.4       0.4       --      (36.6 ) 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8298 of 9808



 

   
145  

 

Interest income and other                              (1.2 )     (1.1 )     (15.2 )     (16.3 )     12.9       (4.6 ) 
Income tax expense (benefit)                              72.8       (2.5 )     15.4       12.9       (94.9 )     (9.2 ) 
Income (loss) from continuing                                                                         

operations, net of tax                              242.5       (1.5 )     12.0       10.5       (123.6 )     129.4   
Income from discontinued 
operations,                                                                          

net of tax                              --      --      0.3       0.3       --      0.3   
Net income (loss)                              242.5       (1.5 )     12.3       10.8       (123.6 )     129.7   
Preferred dividends                              18.7       --      --      --      --      18.7   
Net income (loss) attributable 
to Alliant                                                                          

Energy common 
shareowners                              223.8       (1.5 )     12.3       10.8       (123.6 )     111.0   
Total assets      6,867.6       803.1       902.9       8,573.6       63.6       360.9       424.5       37.9       9,036.0   
Investments in equity method                                                                          

subsidiaries      227.1       --      --      227.1       --      2.1       2.1       --      229.2   
Construction and acquisition                                                                          

expenditures      1,191.8       45.2       5.0       1,242.0       8.2       15.8       24.0       (63.4 )     1,202.6   

                      Alliant    
    Utility Business      Non-regulated Businesses            Energy    
    Electric      Gas      Other      Total      RMT      Other      Total      Other      Consolidated   

2008                                                        
Operating revenues    $ 2,411.3     $ 710.4     $ 102.1     $ 3,223.8     $ 396.8     $ 66.8     $ 463.6     $ (5.7 )   $ 3,681.7   
Depreciation and amortization      204.8       25.1       3.1       233.0       1.5       9.7       11.2       (2.3 )     241.9   
Operating income (loss)      386.3       61.5       (3.2 )     444.6       20.7       20.8       41.5       2.5       488.6   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              99.4       --      13.1       13.1       (11.4 )     101.1   
Equity (income) loss from                                                                          

unconsolidated investments, net      (33.9 )     --      --      (33.9 )     --      0.7       0.7       --      (33.2 ) 
Interest income and other                              (1.9 )     (1.8 )     (16.9 )     (18.7 )     2.4       (18.2 ) 
Income taxes                              121.0       8.9       8.2       17.1       2.1       140.2   
Income from continuing 
operations,                                                                          

net of tax                              260.0       13.6       15.7       29.3       9.4       298.7   
Income from discontinued 
operations,                                                                          

net of tax                              --      --      8.0       8.0       --      8.0   
Net income                              260.0       13.6       23.7       37.3       9.4       306.7   
Preferred dividends                              18.7       --      --      --      --      18.7   
Net income attributable to Alliant                                                                          

Energy common shareowners                              241.3       13.6       23.7       37.3       9.4       288.0   
Total assets      5,724.6       850.5       901.3       7,476.4       110.6       416.9       527.5       197.6       8,201.5   
Investments in equity method 
subsidiaries      203.6       --      --      203.6       --      2.3       2.3       --      205.9   
Construction and acquisition 
expenditures      775.1       39.8       27.5       842.4       2.5       14.8       17.3       19.3       879.0   

                      Alliant    
    Utility Business      Non-regulated Businesses            Energy    
    Electric      Gas      Other      Total      RMT      Other      Total      Other      Consolidated   

2007                                                        
Operating revenues    $ 2,410.8     $ 630.2     $ 71.7     $ 3,112.7     $ 262.9     $ 67.6     $ 330.5     $ (5.6 )   $ 3,437.6   
Depreciation and amortization      224.6       26.4       2.0       253.0       1.2       10.8       12.0       (2.3 )     262.7   
Gain on sale of IPL’s electric                                                                          

transmission assets      218.8       --      --      218.8       --      --      --      --      218.8   
Operating income (loss)      669.9       59.9       (4.0 )     725.8       14.8       21.8       36.6       0.7       763.1   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              106.1       --      16.8       16.8       (14.0 )     108.9   
Equity income from 
unconsolidated                                                                          

investments, net      (28.4 )     --      --      (28.4 )     --      (0.9 )     (0.9 )     --      (29.3 ) 
Interest income and other                              (1.8 )     (1.0 )     (21.0 )     (22.0 )     8.1       (15.7 ) 
Income taxes                              246.1       6.4       1.6       8.0       1.7       255.8   
Income from continuing 
operations,                                                                          

net of tax                              403.8       9.4       25.3       34.7       4.9       443.4   
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Products and Services - Alliant Energy’s consolidated operating revenues by segment were as follows:  
 

 
Geographic Information - At Dec. 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, Alliant Energy’s long-lived assets to be held and used in foreign countries were not 
material.  
 
(15)   GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS  
Goodwill - At both Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, Alliant Energy had $3 million of goodwill related to RMT included in “Other assets - deferred 
charges and other” on Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
 
Emission Allowances - The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of emission allowances were recorded as intangible assets in 
“Other assets - deferred charges and other” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Amortization expense for emission allowances is recorded in “Electric production fuel and energy purchases” in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income.  Amortization expense for emission allowances was as follows (in millions):  
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At Dec. 31, 2009, estimated amortization expense for 2010 to 2014 for emission allowances was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(16)   SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DA TA (UNAUDITED)  
All “per share” references refer to earnings per diluted share.  Summation of the individual quarters may not equal annual totals due to rounding.  
 

Income from discontinued 
operations,                                                                          

net of tax                              --      --      0.6       0.6       --      0.6   
Net income                              403.8       9.4       25.9       35.3       4.9       444.0   
Preferred dividends                              18.7       --      --      --      --      18.7   
Net income attributable to Alliant                                                                          

Energy common shareowners                              385.1       9.4       25.9       35.3       4.9       425.3   
Total assets      4,861.8       740.1       548.7       6,150.6       108.9       416.3       525.2       513.9       7,189.7   
Investments in equity method 
subsidiaries      182.0       --      --      182.0       --      3.9       3.9       --      185.9   
Construction and acquisition 
expenditures      476.0       40.2       2.3       518.5       2.2       7.6       9.8       13.7       542.0   

  2009    2008    2007  
Utility - electric  72%   65%   70% 
Utility - gas  15%   19%   18% 
Non-regulated - RMT  9%   11%   8% 
Other  4%   5%   4% 
  100%   100%   100% 

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Gross carrying amount    $ 68.0     $ 65.1     $ 59.0     $ 57.9     $ 9.0     $ 7.2   
Accumulated amortization      16.7       0.8       11.8       0.8       4.9       --  

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Amortization expense    $ 16.7     $ --    $ --    $ 11.8     $ --    $ --    $ 4.9     $ --    $ --  

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014    
IPL    $ 12.6     $ 13.9     $ 9.3     $ 8.0     $ 3.4   
WPL      3.6       0.4       0.1       --      --  
Alliant Energy    $ 16.2     $ 14.3     $ 9.4     $ 8.0     $ 3.4   

     2009      2008   

    
March 

31    
  
June 30      Sep.  30      

  
Dec.  31      March 31   

  
June 30        Sep. 30   Dec. 31    

    (in millions, except per share data)  
                              
Operating revenues    $ 949.9   $ 742.3     $ 885.7     $ 854.9     $ 992.0   $ 827.4    $ 980.3   $ 882.0 
Operating income      73.7     62.8       159.9       100.8       125.1     82.0     190.5     91.0 
Amounts attributable to Alliant Energy                                                          

common shareowners:                                                          

Income (loss) from continuing operations, net 
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(17)   DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  
Alliant Energy has completed the disposal of certain non-regulated and utility businesses and other assets in order to strengthen its financial 
profile and narrow its strategic focus and risk profile.  The following businesses/assets were sold during 2007 and qualified as assets held for sale 
before they were sold:  
 

 
The operating results of the non-regulated business listed in the above table have been separately classified and reported as discontinued 
operations in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  The operating results of the utility assets listed in the above table have not 
been reported as discontinued operations due to Alliant Energy’s continuing involvement in the operations of these assets after the disposal 
transaction.  
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A summary of the components of discontinued operations in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Statements of Income was as follows (in millions):  
 

 

 

of tax (a)      72.6     29.1       (43.3 )     52.3       68.1     51.8     109.1     51.0 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 
net of tax                                                          

(Refer to Note 17)      --    --      (1.0 )     1.3       --    9.0     (0.6 )   (0.4) 
Net income (loss) (a)      72.6     29.1       (44.3 )     53.6       68.1     60.8     108.5     50.6 
                                                          
Earnings per weighted average common share                                                          

attributable to Alliant Energy common 
shareowners:                                                          

Income (loss) from continuing operations,                                                          
net of tax (a)      0.66     0.26       (0.39 )     0.48       0.62     0.47     0.99     0.46 

Income (loss) from discontinued 
operations, net of tax      --    --      (0.01 )     0.01       --    0.08     (0.01 )   --

Net income (loss) (a)      0.66     0.26       (0.40 )     0.49       0.62     0.55     0.98     0.46 

(a)   In the third quarter of 2009, Alliant Energy recorded an after-tax loss of $128 million, or $1.16 per share, related to a loss on the early 
extinguishment of its Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2030.  

Business/Asset    Disposal Date    Segment  
Non-regulated business - Mexico    Second quarter of 2007    Non-regulated - Other  
Utility assets:          

WPL’s electric and gas utility assets in Illinois (a)    First quarter of 2007    Utility - Electric and Gas  
IPL’s electric and gas utility assets in Illinois (b)    First quarter of 2007    Utility - Electric and Gas  
IPL’s electric transmission assets (Note 22)    Fourth quarter of 2007    Utility - Electric  

(a)   Upon completion of this sale, WPL received net proceeds of $24 million.  
(b)   Upon completion of this sale, IPL received net proceeds of $28 million.  

    2009      2008      2007    
Operating expenses (excluding losses)    $ --    $ 0.3     $ 3.4   
(Gains) losses, net:                          

Mexico business (a)      --      --      (10.7 ) 
Other      --      --      1.5   

Interest expense and other      --      --      1.6   
Income (loss) before income taxes      --      (0.3 )     4.2   
Income tax expense (benefit) (b)(c)      (0.3 )     (8.3 )     3.6   
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax    $ 0.3     $ 8.0     $ 0.6   

(a)   In 2007, Alliant Energy received net proceeds of $66 million and recorded a $10.7 million pre-tax gain related to the sale of its Mexico 
business.  The increase in the fair value during 2007 that was realized upon sale of the Mexico business was largely due to the resolution of 
uncertainties regarding completion of the pending sale.  

(b)   In 2008, Alliant Energy reached a settlement with the IRS related to the audit of its U.S. federal income tax returns for calendar years 2002 
through 2004.  As a result of completing the audit and recording known adjustments for the tax returns for calendar years 2005 and 2007, 
Alliant Energy recorded decreases in its liabilities for uncertain tax positions and related interest, net of tax, and changes to its provision for 
income taxes including the impact of $8 million of income tax benefits allocated to its discontinued operations in 2008 largely related to its 
former Australia and China businesses.  

(c)   In 2007, Alliant Energy reached a settlement with the IRS related to the audit of its U.S. federal income tax returns for calendar years 1999 
through 2001, reassessed the most likely outcome of its 2002 through 2005 federal and state income tax audits and completed the filing of its 
U.S. federal income tax return for the calendar year 2006.  In addition, Alliant Energy reversed deferred tax asset valuation allowances 
originally recorded in prior years related to a change in Alliant Energy’s anticipated ability to utilize certain capital losses prior to the 
expiration period.  As a result of these events, Alliant Energy recorded changes to its provision for income taxes including the impact of $1.3 
million of income tax expense allocated to its discontinued operations in 2007 related to its former Australia, Energy Services and China 
businesses.  
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A summary of the components of cash flows for discontinued operations was as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(18)   ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS (AROs)  
Alliant Energy’s AROs relate to legal obligations for the removal, closure or dismantlement of several assets including, but not limited to, active 
ash landfills, water intake facilities, above ground and under ground storage tanks, groundwater wells, distribution equipment, easement 
improvements, leasehold improvements and certain hydro facilities.  Alliant Energy’s AROs also include legal obligations for the management 
and final disposition of asbestos, lead-based paint and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) and closure of coal yards and ash ponds.  Alliant Energy’s 
AROs are recorded in “Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Refer to Note 1(b) for information 
regarding regulatory assets related to AROs.  A reconciliation of the changes in AROs associated with long-lived assets is as follows (in millions): 
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(19)   VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES (VIEs)  
An entity is considered a VIE if its equity investors do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional 
subordinated financial support from other parties or its equity investors lack any one of the following three characteristics: (1) control of the entity 
through voting rights; (2) the obligation to absorb expected losses of the entity; or (3) the right to receive expected benefits of the entity.  The 
primary beneficiary of a VIE is required to consolidate the financial statements of the VIE.  
 
After making an ongoing exhaustive effort, Alliant Energy and WPL concluded they were unable to obtain the information necessary from the 
counterparty (subsidiary of Calpine Corporation) for the Riverside PPA for Alliant Energy and WPL to determine whether the counterparty is a 
VIE and if Alliant Energy is the primary beneficiary.  This PPA is currently accounted for as an operating lease.  The counterparty for the 
Riverside PPA sells a portion of its generating capacity to WPL and can sell its energy output to WPL.  Alliant Energy’s and WPL’s maximum 
exposure to loss from this PPA is undeterminable due to the inability to obtain the necessary information to complete such evaluation.  In 2009, 
2008 and 2007, Alliant Energy’s (primarily WPL’s) costs, excluding fuel costs, related to the Riverside PPA were $63 million, $63 million and 
$64 million, respectively.  
 
IPL uses special purpose entities for its sale of accounts receivable program.  Prior to Jan. 1, 2010, special purpose entities were excluded from the 
scope of the accounting pronouncement for VIEs and therefore did not require consolidation.  Refer to Note 1(r) for discussion of new accounting 
standards effective Jan. 1, 2010, which impact the accounting for special purpose entities.  
 
(20)   RELATED PARTIES  
System Coordination and Operating Agreement - IPL and WPL are parties to a system coordination and operating agreement.  The agreement, 
which has been approved by FERC, provides a contractual basis for coordinated planning, construction, operation and maintenance of the 
interconnected electric generation systems of IPL and WPL.  Prior to June 1, 2008, the agreement allowed the interconnected system to be 
operated as a single entity with off-system sales and purchases made to market excess system capability or to meet system capability 
deficiencies.  Such sales and purchases were allocated among IPL and WPL based on procedures included in the agreement.  Under the agreement 
prior to June 1, 2008, IPL and WPL were fully reimbursed for any generation expense incurred to support the sale to an affiliate or to a non-
affiliate.  Any margins on sales to non-affiliates were distributed to IPL and WPL in proportion to each utility’s share of electric production at the 
time of the sale.  The procedures were approved by FERC and all state regulatory bodies having jurisdiction over these sales.  Effective June 1, 

    2009      2008      2007    
Net cash flows used for operating activities    $ --    $ --    $ (11.7 ) 
                          
Proceeds from the disposition of assets      --      --      66.1   
Net cash flows from other investing activities      --      --      0.1   
Net cash flows from investing activities      --      --      66.2   
                          
Net cash flows from financing activities      --      --      10.8   

    Alliant Energy      IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008      2009      2008    
Balance at Jan. 1    $ 48.4     $ 42.8     $ 30.5     $ 30.9     $ 17.9     $ 11.9   
Liabilities incurred (a)(b)      11.6       7.8       11.6       3.2       --      4.6   
Accretion expense      2.8       2.2       1.7       1.5       1.1       0.7   
Revisions in estimated cash flows (a)(c)      2.7       7.8       --      6.7       2.7       1.1   
Liabilities settled (a)      (2.2 )     (12.2 )     (1.9 )     (11.8 )     (0.3 )     (0.4 ) 
Balance at Dec. 31    $ 63.3     $ 48.4     $ 41.9     $ 30.5     $ 21.4     $ 17.9   

(a)   In 2009, IPL recorded liabilities settled of $1.2 million due to expenditures for asbestos and lead remediation at its Sixth Street and Prairie 
Creek Generating Stations required as a result of the impacts of the severe Midwest flooding at these generating stations in June 2008.  In 
2008, IPL recorded changes to liabilities incurred of $3.2 million, revisions in estimated cash flows of $6.7 million and liabilities settled of 
$10.6 million due to asbestos and lead remediation as a result of the impacts of the severe Midwest flooding at these generating stations in 
June 2008.  

(b)   In 2009, IPL recorded AROs of $11.6 million related to its Whispering Willow - East wind project.  In 2008, WPL recorded AROs of $4.6 
million related to its Cedar Ridge wind project.  

(c)   In 2009, WPL recorded revisions in estimated cash flows of $2.7 million based on revised remediation timing and cost information for its 
Columbia landfill ARO.  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8302 of 9808



2008, a change was made to designate IPL and WPL as two separate entities transacting with MISO.  This change eliminated the need for internal 
allocations based on procedures in the agreement and resulted in separate statements from MISO of sales and purchases for IPL and WPL.  The 
sales credited to and purchases billed to IPL and WPL were as follows (in millions):  
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Service Agreement - Pursuant to a service agreement, IPL and WPL receive various administrative and general services from an affiliate, 
Corporate Services.  These services are billed to IPL and WPL at cost based on payroll and other expenses incurred by Corporate Services for the 
benefit of IPL and WPL, respectively.  These costs consisted primarily of employee compensation, benefits and fees associated with various 
professional services.  The amounts billed to IPL and WPL were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
As of Dec. 31, net intercompany payables to Corporate Services were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
ATC - Pursuant to various agreements, WPL receives a range of transmission services from ATC.  WPL provides operation, maintenance, and 
construction services to ATC.  WPL and ATC also bill each other for use of shared facilities owned by each party.  ATC previously provided 
operation and maintenance services to IPL.  The related amounts billed between the parties were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
As of Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, WPL owed ATC net amounts of $5 million and $6 million, respectively.  
 
Construction Services for IPL’s Whispering Willow - East Wind Project - IPL engaged RMT to provide certain construction services for its 
Whispering Willow - East wind project.  In 2009, RMT recognized $45 million of revenues from IPL related to this project.  As of Dec. 31, 2009, 
IPL owed RMT $7 million related to this project.  
 
IPL ’s Temporary Generation Lease - Pursuant to a leasing agreement, IPL leased temporary generation in 2008 from IEA, a subsidiary of 
Resources.  IPL used the leased temporary generation to contribute to the reliability of the electric grid in Cedar Rapids, Iowa following the 
damage to infrastructure caused by the severe flooding in June 2008.  IEA billed IPL $6 million in 2008.  As of Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, IPL did 
not have any outstanding intercompany payables to IEA.  
 
WPL’s Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility Lease - Refer to Note 3(b) of WPL’s “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for discussion of 
WPL’s Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility lease.  
 
WPL’s Acquisition of the Neenah Energy Facility - Refer to Note 1(e) for details of WPL’s acquisition of the Neenah Energy Facility and 
related assets from Resources in June 2009.  
 
(21)   EARNINGS PER SHARE  
A reconciliation of the weighted average common shares outstanding used in the basic and diluted earnings per weighted average common share 
(EPS) calculation was as follows (in thousands):  
 

 
The following options to purchase shares of common stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS as the exercise prices were greater 
than the average market price:  
 

    IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Sales credited    $ 54     $ 43     $ 73     $ 72     $ 22     $ 16   
Purchases billed      270       334       237       121       371       449   

    IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Corporate Services billings    $ 153     $ 193     $ 186     $ 112     $ 120     $ 135   

    IPL      WPL    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Net intercompany payables to Corporate Services    $ 90     $ 95     $ 45     $ 68   

    2009      2008      2007    
ATC billings to WPL    $ 83     $ 82     $ 72   
WPL billings to ATC      13       9       9   
ATC billings to IPL      --      --      3   

Weighted average common shares outstanding:  2009    2008    2007  
  Basic EPS calculation  110,268    110,170    112,284  
  Effect of dilutive share-based awards  84    138    237  
  Diluted EPS calculation  110,352    110,308    112,521  

    2009      2008      2007    
Options to purchase shares of common stock      313,237       41,939       --  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 8303 of 9808



   
150  

 
(22)   SALE OF IPL’S ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION ASSETS  
In December 2007, IPL completed the sale of its electric transmission assets located in Iowa, Minnesota and Illinois to ITC, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of ITC Holdings Corporation (ITC Holdings), for net proceeds of $772 million.  Such proceeds were subject to post-closing 
adjustments based on the value of the net assets transferred as of the closing date and assumption by ITC of certain liabilities of IPL, which 
resulted in $4 million of additional net proceeds in 2008.  IPL used proceeds from the sale to issue a $400 million dividend to Alliant Energy, to 
retire $150 million of its short-term debt, to fund investments in short-term securities and for general corporate purposes.  Pursuant to the sale 
agreement, ITC acquired IPL’s transmission assets at 34.5-kilovolts and higher, including transmission lines, transmission substations, and 
associated land rights, contracts, permits and equipment.  IPL sold its electric transmission assets in December 2007 in order to monetize the value 
of the assets to help fund future capital expenditures, to capture tax benefits under federal tax policy that allowed deferral of gains on sales of 
qualifying electric transmission assets completed prior to Jan. 1, 2008 and to promote regional transmission expansion that is expected to improve 
transmission reliability and access for its customers in Iowa and Minnesota.  
 
The sale of IPL’s electric transmission assets resulted in a pre-tax gain of $219 million, which was recorded in “Gain on sale of IPL’s electric 
transmission assets” in Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s Consolidated Statements of Income in 2007.  The gain reflected the net proceeds from the sale 
less the net assets sold and an $89 million regulatory liability established pursuant to an IUB order.  Refer to Note 1(b) for further discussion of 
this regulatory liability.  By closing the sale by the end of 2007 and by meeting certain other requirements, IPL qualifies for a provision of the tax 
law that allows IPL to pay taxes related to the gain on the sale ratably over an eight-year period.  
 
The operating results of IPL’s electric transmission assets have not been reported as discontinued operations due to Alliant Energy’s continuing 
involvement in the operations of these assets after the disposal transaction.  Refer to Note 17 for additional information.  
 
The transmission rates that ITC Holdings’ subsidiaries charge their utility customers for transmission service are fully regulated by 
FERC.  Subsequent to the closing date, IPL pays the regulated rates to ITC for transmission services needed to serve its customers.  
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MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 
The management of Interstate Power and Light Company and subsidiary (IPL) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal 
control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  IPL’s 
internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.  
 
IPL’s management assessed the effectiveness of IPL’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 using the criteria set forth 
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Based on this 
assessment, IPL’s management concluded that, as of December 31, 2009, IPL’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.  
 
 
/s/ William D. Harvey  
William D. Harvey  
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
 
 
/s/ Patricia L. Kampling  
Patricia L. Kampling  
Executive Vice President-Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  
 
 
/s/ Thomas L. Hanson  
Thomas L. Hanson  
Vice President-Controller and Chief Accounting Officer  
 
 
February 26, 2010  
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Weighted average exercise price of options excluded    $ 29.26     $ 30.98     $ --  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of Interstate Power and Light Company  
Cedar Rapids, Iowa  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Interstate Power and Light Company and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, common equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009.  Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 
15.  These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our 
audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Also, in our opinion, such financial statement 
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein.  
 
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin  
February 26, 2010  
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INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

                    
    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
Operating revenues:                    
  Electric utility    $ 1,315.6     $ 1,258.3     $ 1,270.1   
  Gas utility      308.8       410.4       364.5   
  Steam and other      83.6       89.3       61.3   
      1,708.0       1,758.0       1,695.9   
                          
                          
Operating expenses:                          
  Electric production fuel and energy purchases      440.1       408.9       405.3   
  Purchased electric capacity      136.5       140.6       132.3   
  Electric transmission service      131.2       89.0       11.8   
  Cost of gas sold      209.8       306.0       266.1   
  Other operation and maintenance      365.4       388.1       359.2   
  Depreciation and amortization      152.8       131.3       143.1   
  Taxes other than income taxes      50.5       54.4       61.8   
      1,486.3       1,518.3       1,379.6   
                          
                          
Gain on sale of IPL's electric transmission assets      -      -      218.8   
                          
                          
Operating income      221.7       239.7       535.1   
                          
                          
Interest expense and other:                          
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  Interest expense      76.5       61.9       64.3   
  Allowance for funds used during construction      (34.0 )     (15.1 )     (5.2 ) 
  Interest income      (0.8 )     (1.3 )     (1.1 ) 
      41.7       45.5       58.0   
                          
                          
Income before income taxes      180.0       194.2       477.1   
                          
                          
Income taxes      27.0       52.6       186.8   
                          
                          
Net income      153.0       141.6       290.3   
                          
                          
Preferred dividend requirements      15.4       15.4       15.4   
                          
                          
Earnings available for common stock    $ 137.6     $ 126.2     $ 274.9   

                          
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS    

              
    December 31,    
ASSETS    2009      2008    
    (in millions)    
Property, plant and equipment:              
  Electric plant in service    $ 4,311.2     $ 3,518.5   
  Gas plant in service      404.3       391.5   
  Steam plant in service      50.4       54.2   
  Other plant in service      251.8       228.7   
  Accumulated depreciation      (1,723.7 )     (1,600.3 ) 
    Net plant      3,294.0       2,592.6   
  Construction work in progress:                  
    Whispering Willow - East wind project      -      189.4   
    Other      199.1       205.8   
  Other, less accumulated depreciation of $4.2 and $4.4      46.3       18.6   
      3,539.4       3,006.4   
                  
                  
Current assets:                  
  Cash and cash equivalents      0.4       6.2   
  Accounts receivable:                  
    Customer, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.3 and $4.0      123.3       107.1   
    Unbilled utility revenues      82.3       93.7   
    Other, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.2 for both periods      39.3       60.0   
  Income tax refunds receivable      103.4       48.6   
  Production fuel, at weighted average cost      101.1       70.0   
  Materials and supplies, at weighted average cost      29.1       30.4   
  Gas stored underground, at weighted average cost      17.4       27.1   
  Regulatory assets      75.8       79.8   
  Derivative assets      12.5       7.4   
  Other      14.2       30.7   
      598.8       561.0   
                  
                  
Investments      15.6       15.2   
                  
                  
Other assets:                  
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  Regulatory assets      668.0       554.5   
  Deferred charges and other      70.4       73.8   
      738.4       628.3   
                  
                  
Total assets    $ 4,892.2     $ 4,210.9   

                  
                  
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)    

              
    December 31,    
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES    2009      2008    
    (in millions, except per    
    share and share amounts)    
Capitalization:              
  Interstate Power and Light Company common equity:              

Common stock - $2.50 par value - 24,000,000 shares authorized;          
       13,370,788 shares outstanding    $ 33.4     $ 33.4   
     Additional paid-in capital      1,042.2       998.1   
     Retained earnings      254.4       116.8   
       Total Interstate Power and Light Company common equity      1,330.0       1,148.3   
  Cumulative preferred stock      183.8       183.8   
       Total equity      1,513.8       1,332.1   
  Long-term debt, net (excluding current portion)      1,158.7       860.2   
      2,672.5       2,192.3   
                  
                  
Current liabilities:                  
  Current maturities of long-term debt      -      135.0   
  Commercial paper      190.0       42.4   
  Accounts payable      168.2       222.4   
  Accounts payable to associated companies      50.4       30.5   
  Regulatory liabilities      70.2       51.0   
  Accrued taxes      68.3       46.4   
  Derivative liabilities      49.5       70.0   
  Other      62.1       70.5   
      658.7       668.2   
                  
                  
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits:                  
  Deferred income taxes      690.4       500.0   
  Regulatory liabilities      574.5       463.8   
  Pension and other benefit obligations      119.2       213.9   
  Other      176.9       172.7   
      1,561.0       1,350.4   
                  
                  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)                  
                  
                  
Total capitalization and liabilities    $ 4,892.2     $ 4,210.9   

                  
                  
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS    
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    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
Cash flows from operating activities:                    

Net income    $ 153.0     $ 141.6     $ 290.3   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                    

   flows from operating activities:                          
     Depreciation and amortization      152.8       131.3       143.1   
     Other amortizations      7.5       7.6       8.0   
     Deferred tax expense and investment tax credits      73.3       21.7       90.3   
     Equity component of allowance for funds used during construction      (24.2 )     (10.8 )     (0.5 ) 
     Gain on sale of IPL's electric transmission assets      -      -      (218.8 ) 
     Other      (0.8 )     14.0       (0.7 ) 
  Other changes in assets and liabilities:                          
     Accounts receivable      40.6       (84.3 )     19.5   
     Sale of accounts receivable      (25.0 )     (75.0 )     (25.0 ) 
     Income tax refunds receivable      (54.8 )     (4.0 )     (44.6 ) 
     Production fuel      (31.1 )     (14.8 )     (8.7 ) 
     Regulatory assets      (109.7 )     (315.3 )     85.0   
     Prepaid gas costs      22.7       (22.7 )     -  
     Prepaid pension costs      -      25.5       (19.5 ) 
     Accounts payable      (21.2 )     18.5       9.7   
     Regulatory liabilities      158.9       (13.4 )     5.0   
     Accrued taxes      21.9       (3.8 )     (24.8 ) 
     Derivative liabilities      (35.2 )     70.1       (25.2 ) 
     Deferred income taxes      116.5       54.2       (26.1 ) 
     Non-current taxes payable      25.8       2.4       0.1   
     Pension and other benefit obligations      (94.7 )     162.1       (19.6 ) 
     Other      (3.1 )     8.8       19.9   
       Net cash flows from operating activities      373.2       113.7       257.4   
                          
                          
Cash flows from (used for) investing activities:                          
     Utility construction and acquisition expenditures      (733.6 )     (479.3 )     (315.4 ) 
     Proceeds from asset sales      0.8       4.2       800.6   
     Advances for customer energy efficiency projects      (2.9 )     (3.8 )     (5.0 ) 
     Collections of advances for customer energy efficiency projects      5.0       5.2       5.8   
     Insurance proceeds received for property damages      37.7       18.1       -  
     Purchases of emission allowances      (0.6 )     -      (23.9 ) 
     Other      (19.1 )     (13.5 )     (10.1 ) 
       Net cash flows from (used for) investing activities      (712.7 )     (469.1 )     452.0   
                          
                          
Cash flows from (used for) financing activities:                          
     Common stock dividends      -      (29.1 )     (609.9 ) 
     Preferred stock dividends      (15.4 )     (15.4 )     (15.4 ) 
     Capital contribution from parent      150.0       200.0       100.0   
     Repayment of capital to parent      (106.1 )     (75.0 )     -  
     Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt      300.0       250.0       -  
     Payments to retire long-term debt      (135.0 )     (16.6 )     (129.8 ) 
     Net change in short-term borrowings      147.6       12.9       (14.4 ) 
     Other      (7.4 )     (4.6 )     (1.0 ) 
       Net cash flows from (used for) financing activities      333.7       322.2       (670.5 ) 
                          
                          
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      (5.8 )     (33.2 )     38.9   
                          
                          
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period      6.2       39.4       0.5   
                          
                          
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 0.4     $ 6.2     $ 39.4   

                          
                          
Supplemental cash flows information:                          
  Cash paid (refunded) during the period for:                          
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     Interest    $ 70.3     $ 55.8     $ 66.0   

     Income taxes, net of refunds    $ (87.5 )   $ 31.7     $ 157.4   

  Noncash investing and financing activities:                          
     Capital lease obligations incurred    $ 1.1     $ -    $ -  

                          
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON EQUITY  

                                
                      Accumulated      Total    
          Additional           Other      IPL    
    Common      Paid-In      Retained      Comprehensive     Common    
    Stock      Capital      Earnings      Loss      Equity    
    (in millions)    
2007:                                
Beginning balance (a)    $ 33.4     $ 772.8     $ 357.7     $ (1.6 )   $ 1,162.3   

Earnings available for common stock                      274.9               274.9   
Common stock dividends                      (609.9 )             (609.9 ) 
Capital contribution from parent              100.0                       100.0   
Adoption of accounting for uncertain tax positions (Note 5)                (1.7 )             (1.7 ) 
Other              0.3                       0.3   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax                              1.6       1.6   

Ending balance      33.4       873.1       21.0       -      927.5   
                                          
2008:                                          

Earnings available for common stock                      126.2               126.2   
Common stock dividends                      (29.1 )             (29.1 ) 
Capital contribution from parent              200.0                       200.0   
Repayment of capital to parent              (75.0 )                     (75.0 ) 
Adoption of new measurement date for retirement plans,                                    

net of tax of ($1.3) (Note 6(a))                      (1.3 )             (1.3 ) 
Ending balance      33.4       998.1       116.8       -      1,148.3   
                                          
2009:                                          

Earnings available for common stock                      137.6               137.6   
Capital contribution from parent              150.0                       150.0   
Repayment of capital to parent              (106.1 )                     (106.1 ) 
Other              0.2                       0.2   

Ending balance    $ 33.4     $ 1,042.2     $ 254.4     $ -    $ 1,330.0   
                                          
(a) Accumulated other comprehensive loss at Jan. 1, 2007 consisted entirely of retirement benefits compensation-related    
     adjustments.     

INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

                    
    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
                    
Earnings available for common stock    $ 137.6     $ 126.2     $ 274.9   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:                          
Pension and other postretirement benefits amortizations and                          

reclassification to regulatory assets, net of tax of $-, $- and $1.2      -      -      1.6   
Total other comprehensive income      -      -      1.6   
Comprehensive income    $ 137.6     $ 126.2     $ 276.5   

                          
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    
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INTERSTATE POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Except as modified below, the Alliant Energy Corporation (Alliant Energy) “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” are incorporated by 
reference insofar as they relate to Interstate Power and Light Company (IPL) and incorporate the disclosures relating to IPL contained in the 
following notes of the Alliant Energy “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”:  
 

 
The notes that follow herein set forth additional specific information for IPL and are numbered to be consistent with the Alliant Energy “Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.”  
 
(1)   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
(a)  General - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IPL and its consolidated subsidiary, IPL SPE LLC.  IPL is a direct 
subsidiary of Alliant Energy and is engaged principally in the generation and distribution of electric energy, the distribution and transportation of 
natural gas, the generation and distribution of steam, and various other energy-related services.  IPL’s primary service territories are located in 
Iowa and southern Minnesota.  
 
(3)   LEASES  
(a)  Operating Leases - IPL’s operating lease rental expenses for 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $4.3 million, $5.8 million and $5.7 million, 
respectively.  Contingent rentals from operating leases that were excluded from these amounts were $1.2 million, $1.2 million and $1.7 million for 
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  At Dec. 31, 2009, IPL’s future minimum operating lease payments, excluding contingent rentals, were as 
follows (in millions):  
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(5)   INCOME TAXES  
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) - The components of “Income taxes” in IPL’s Consolidated Statements of Income were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Income Tax Rates - The overall effective income tax rates shown in the following table were computed by dividing total income tax expense by 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  Note 1(a) to 1(e), 1(g) to 1(k), 1(m), 1(n), 1(p) to 1(r)  
Utility Rate Cases  Note 2  
Operating Leases  Note 3(a)  
Receivables  Note 4(a), 4(c), 4(d), 4(e)  
Income Taxes  Note 5  
Benefit Plans  Note 6  
Common Equity and Preferred Stock  Note 7(a), 7(b)  
Debt  Note 8  
Investments  Note 9(b)  
Fair Value Measurements  Note 10  
Derivative Instruments  Note 11  
Commitments and Contingencies  Note 12(a), 12(b), 12(c), 12(e), 12(f), 12(g), 12(h)  
Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant  Note 13  
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  Note 15  
Discontinued Operations  Note 17  
Asset Retirement Obligations  Note 18  
Variable Interest Entities  Note 19  
Related Parties  Note 20  
Sale of IPL’s Electric Transmission Assets  Note 22  

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter      Total    
Operating leases    $ 5     $ 4     $ 3     $ 3     $ 2     $ 21     $ 38   

    2009      2008      2007    
Current tax expense (benefit):                    

Federal    $ (59.5 )   $ 14.6     $ 82.4   
State      5.9       16.7       22.7   

Deferred tax expense (benefit):                          
Federal      109.5       25.8       59.6   
State      (35.6 )     (2.1 )     35.4   

Investment tax credits      (0.6 )     (2.0 )     (4.8 ) 
Provision recorded as a change in uncertain tax positions      7.0       2.3       (0.4 ) 
Provision recorded as a change in accrued interest      0.3       (2.7 )     (8.1 ) 
    $ 27.0     $ 52.6     $ 186.8   
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income before income taxes.  
 

 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - Consistent with rate making treatment, deferred taxes are offset in the table below for temporary 
differences which have related regulatory assets and liabilities.  The deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities included on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 arise from the following temporary differences (in millions):  
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Uncertain Tax Positions - IPL adopted new authoritative guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes on Jan. 1, 2007.  IPL’s 
cumulative effect of the adoption was an increase in its net liability for uncertain tax positions and a reduction to its Jan. 1, 2007 balance of 
retained earnings of $1.7 million.  
 
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of uncertain tax positions, excluding interest, for IPL for 2009, 2008 and 2007 is as follows 
(in millions):  
 

  2009    2008    2007  
Statutory federal income tax rate  35.0%   35.0%   35.0% 

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits  4.0   4.5   3.1 
Electric transmission assets sale  --   --  4.1 
Amortization of investment tax credits  (0.4)   (1.0)   (0.5) 
Effect of rate making on property related differences  (1.5)   (4.3)   (0.9) 
Adjustment of prior period taxes  (5.4)   (8.8)   (0.2) 
State filing changes  (18.2)   --  --
Other items, net  1.5   1.7   (1.4) 

Overall effective income tax rate  15.0%   27.1%   39.2% 

    2009      2008    

    Deferred      
Deferred 

Tax            Deferred      
Deferred 

Tax          
    Tax Assets      Liabilities     Net      Tax Assets      Liabilities      Net    
Property    $ --    $ 673.6     $ 673.6     $ --    $ 418.2     $ 418.2   
Deferred portion of tax gain on electric                                                  

transmission assets sale      --      125.5       125.5       --      156.5       156.5   
Pension and other postretirement                                                  

benefits obligations      --      43.7       43.7       --      46.3       46.3   
Regulatory asset - IPL base-load project      --      9.7       9.7       --      --      --  
Regulatory asset/(liability) - commodity                                                  

cost recovery      --      2.1       2.1       (12.0 )     --      (12.0 ) 
Investment tax credits      (4.4 )     --      (4.4 )     (4.9 )     --      (4.9 ) 
Federal credit carryforward      (5.9 )     --      (5.9 )     --      --      --  
Regulatory liability - flood insurance      (11.3 )     --      (11.3 )     --      --      --  
Emission allowances      (13.3 )     --      (13.3 )     (24.6 )     --      (24.6 ) 
Regulatory liability - Duane Arnold                                                  

Energy Center sale      (15.7 )     --      (15.7 )     (24.3 )     --      (24.3 ) 
Net operating losses carryforward - federal      (26.2 )     --      (26.2 )     --      --      --  
Regulatory liability - electric                                                  

transmission assets sale      (32.1 )     --      (32.1 )     (36.5 )     --      (36.5 ) 
Regulatory liability - repairs expenditures      (53.5 )     --      (53.5 )     --      --      --  
Other      (25.3 )     17.2       (8.1 )     (21.2 )     16.1       (5.1 ) 
    $ (187.7 )   $ 871.8     $ 684.1     $ (123.5 )   $ 637.1     $ 513.6   

      2009    2008  
Other current assets      $(6.3)   $--
Other current liabilities      --  13.6 
Deferred income taxes      690.4   500.0 

Total deferred tax liabilities  $684.1   $513.6 

    2009      2008      2007    
Balance, Jan. 1    $ 9.4     $ 7.1     $ 7.5   
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year      3.2       1.7       0.9   
Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year      --      --      --  
Additions for tax positions of prior years      51.2       4.9       0.1   
Reductions for tax positions of prior years      (4.1 )     (0.5 )     (0.1 ) 
Settlements with taxing authorities      --      (2.3 )     --  
Lapse of statute of limitations      (1.3 )     (1.5 )     (1.3 ) 
Balance, Dec. 31    $ 58.4     $ 9.4     $ 7.1   
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(6)   BENEFIT PLANS  
(a)  Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits Plans - A significant number of IPL’s employees are covered by non-contributory defined 
benefit pension plans.  Benefits of the non-contributory defined benefit pension plans are based on the plan participant’s years of service, age and 
compensation.  IPL also provides certain defined benefit postretirement health care and life benefits to eligible retirees.  In general, the health care 
plans are contributory with participants’ contributions adjusted regularly and the life insurance plans are non-contributory.  
 
Assumptions - The assumptions at the measurement dates of Dec. 31, 2009, Dec. 31, 2008 and Sep. 30, 2007 for IPL’s qualified defined benefit 
pension and other postretirement benefits plans were equal to the assumptions used for Alliant Energy’s defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans, respectively, except for the rate of compensation increase for its qualified defined benefit pension plans.  IPL’s rates 
of compensation increase for its qualified defined benefit pension plans were 3.5% for 2009, 2008 and 2007.  
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Net Periodic Benefit Costs - The components of IPL’s net periodic benefit costs for its qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement 
benefits plans were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
In the above table, the qualified defined benefit pension plans costs represent only those respective costs for bargaining unit employees of IPL 
covered under the plans that are sponsored by IPL.  The other postretirement benefits costs represent costs for all IPL employees.  Alliant Energy 
Corporate Services, Inc. (Corporate Services) provides services to IPL, and as a result, IPL is allocated pension and other postretirement benefits 
costs associated with Corporate Services.  The following table includes pension benefits costs (credits) for IPL’s non-bargaining employees who 
are participants in other Alliant Energy plans, and the allocated pension and other postretirement benefits costs associated with Corporate Services 
for IPL as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Alliant Energy sponsors several non-qualified defined benefit pension plans that cover certain current and former key employees.  In 2009, 2008 
and 2007, the pension expense allocated to IPL for these plans was $3.3 million, $3.6 million and $4.5 million, respectively.  Included for 2007 
was the settlement loss of $1.2 million related to payments made to a retired executive.  
 
The assumed medical trend rates are critical assumptions in determining the service and interest cost and accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation related to other postretirement benefits costs.  A 1% change in the medical trend rates for 2009, holding all other assumptions constant, 
would have the following effects (in millions):  
 

 
The estimated amortization from “Regulatory assets” on IPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheet into net periodic benefit cost in 2010 is as follows (in 
millions):  
 

                          
    Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,    
      2009       2008       2007   
Tax positions favorably impacting future effective tax rates    $ 10.9     $ 8.8     $ 6.6   
Interest accrued      2.8       0.8       0.7   
Penalties accrued      --      --      --  

    Qualified Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Service cost    $ 6.1     $ 6.1     $ 6.2     $ 3.1     $ 2.8     $ 2.8   
Interest cost      16.1       15.8       14.3       7.3       7.3       7.2   
Expected return on plan assets      (14.0 )     (21.6 )     (19.2 )     (4.2 )     (6.1 )     (5.8 ) 
Amortization of:                                                  

Transition obligation      --      --      --      0.2       0.2       0.2   
Prior service cost (credit)      0.8       1.0       1.1       (1.6 )     (1.6 )     (1.7 ) 
Actuarial loss      9.3       0.2       1.2       4.0       2.0       2.8   

    $ 18.3     $ 1.5     $ 3.6     $ 8.8     $ 4.6     $ 5.5   

    Pension Benefits Costs (Credits)      Other Postretirement Benefits Costs    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Non-bargaining IPL employees                                      

participating in other plans    $ 4.3     $ (3.0 )   $ (0.9 )     N/A       N/A       N/A   
Allocated Corporate Services costs      1.8       1.1       4.2     $ 1.8     $ 1.5     $ 1.3   

    1% Increase      1% Decrease    
Effect on total of service and interest cost components    $ 0.6     $ (0.6 ) 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation      5.9       (6.1 ) 

    Qualified Defined      Other Postretirement    
    Benefit Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
Actuarial loss    $ 7.1     $ 3.4   
Prior service cost (credit)      0.7       (1.6 ) 
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In addition to the estimated amortizations from “Regulatory assets” in the above table, $4 million of amortizations are expected in 2010 from 
“Regulatory assets” associated with Corporate Services employees participating in Alliant Energy sponsored plans allocated to IPL.  
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Benefit Plan Assets and Obligations - The benefit plan assets and obligations associated with IPL’s non-bargaining employees who are 
participants in other Alliant Energy plans are reported in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Financial Statements and are not reported in the following 
tables.  A reconciliation of the funded status of IPL’s qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans to the amounts 
recognized on IPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 was as follows (Not Applicable (N/A); in millions):  
 

 
In addition to the amounts recognized in “Regulatory assets” in the above table, $91 million and $125 million of “Regulatory assets” were 
recognized for amounts associated with Corporate Services employees participating in Alliant Energy sponsored benefit plans that were allocated 
to IPL at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  
 
Included in the following table are IPL’s accumulated benefit obligations, aggregate amounts applicable to qualified defined benefit pension and 
other postretirement plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, as well as qualified defined benefit pension plans with 
projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of the Dec. 31 measurement date (in millions):  
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Transition obligation      --      0.2   
    $ 7.8     $ 2.0   

    Qualified Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Change in projected benefit obligation:                          

Net projected benefit obligation at measurement date    $ 262.1     $ 250.3     $ 120.5     $ 119.7   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      2.7       --      0.3   
Service cost      6.1       6.1       3.1       2.8   
Interest cost      16.1       15.8       7.3       7.3   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      1.3       1.0   
Actuarial (gain) loss      13.4       (2.9 )     0.8       (0.7 ) 
Gross benefits paid      (13.4 )     (9.9 )     (9.6 )     (10.4 ) 
Federal subsidy on other postretirement benefits paid      --      --      0.5       0.5   

Net projected benefit obligation at Dec. 31      284.3       262.1       123.9       120.5   
                                  
Change in plan assets:                                  

Fair value of plan assets at measurement date      163.2       255.3       54.6       81.6   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      2.6       --      0.5   
Actual return on plan assets      39.4       (84.8 )     13.3       (22.8 ) 
Employer contributions      53.6       --      8.8       4.7   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      1.3       1.0   
Gross benefits paid      (13.4 )     (9.9 )     (9.6 )     (10.4 ) 

Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31      242.8       163.2       68.4       54.6   
                                  
Under funded status at Dec. 31    $ (41.5 )   $ (98.9 )   $ (55.5 )   $ (65.9 ) 

                                  
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated                                  

Balance Sheets consist of:                                  
Pension and other benefit obligations    $ (41.5 )   $ (98.9 )   $ (55.5 )   $ (65.9 ) 

                                  
Amounts recognized in Regulatory Assets:                                  

Net actuarial loss    $ 105.8     $ 127.1     $ 46.7     $ 58.9   
Prior service cost (credit)      2.2       3.0       (2.4 )     (4.0 ) 
Transition obligation      --      --      0.6       0.8   

    $ 108.0     $ 130.1     $ 44.9     $ 55.7   

    Qualified Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Accumulated benefit obligations    $ 259.7     $ 236.0     $ 123.9     $ 120.5   
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess                                  

of plan assets:                                  
Accumulated benefit obligations      259.7       236.0       123.9       120.5   
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Estimated Future Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments - IPL estimates that funding for the qualified defined benefit pension plans 
for its bargaining unit employees and other postretirement benefits plans during 2010 will be $0 and $7 million, respectively.  
 
The expected benefit payments and Medicare subsidies, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Fair Value Measurements - At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair values of IPL’s qualified defined benefit pension plans assets by asset category and fair 
value hierarchy level were as follows (in millions):  
 

(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
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Additional information for IPL’s qualified defined benefit pension plans assets fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
 

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair value of IPL’s other postretirement benefits plans assets by asset category and fair value hierarchy level were as follows 
(in millions):  
 

Fair value of plan assets      242.8       163.2       68.4       54.6   
Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess                                  

of plan assets:                                  
Projected benefit obligations      284.3       262.1       N/A       N/A   
Fair value of plan assets      242.8       163.2       N/A       N/A   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014        2015 - 2019   
Pension benefits    $ 13.1     $ 14.0     $ 14.9     $ 15.8     $ 17.0     $ 101.1   
Other postretirement benefits      9.8       9.6       9.8       10.2       10.5       56.6   
Medicare subsidies      (0.6 )     (0.7 )     (0.7 )     (0.8 )     (0.8 )     (5.3 ) 
    $ 22.3     $ 22.9     $ 24.0     $ 25.2     $ 26.7     $ 152.4   

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 11.3     $ 11.3     $ --    $ --  
Equity securities:                                  

U.S. large cap core      32.7       32.7       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      27.2       --      27.2       --  
U.S. large cap growth      27.1       --      27.1       --  
U.S. small cap value      7.3       --      7.3       --  
U.S. small cap growth      4.3       4.3       --      --  
International - developed markets      41.0       21.4       19.6       --  
International - emerging markets      12.3       12.3       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      19.4       --      19.4       --  
Government and agency obligations      22.2       --      22.2       --  
Fixed income funds      41.0       0.5       40.5       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      7.8       2.1       4.7       1.0   
      253.6     $ 84.6     $ 168.0     $ 1.0   

Accrued investment income      0.5                           
Due to brokers, net (a)      (1.1 )                         
Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (10.2 )                         

Total pension plan assets    $ 242.8                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 2.3   

Actual return on plan assets:          
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date      (0.1 ) 
Relating to assets sold during the period      0.1   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (1.4 ) 
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3      0.1   

Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ 1.0   

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 4.5     $ 4.5     $ --    $ --  
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(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
 
Additional information for IPL’s other postretirement benefits plans assets fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 
inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
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(10) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS  
Recurring Fair Value Measurements - IPL’s recurring items subject to fair value measurements disclosure requirements at Dec. 31, 2009 and 
2008 were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Additional information for IPL’s recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs) for 2009 and 2008 is as 
follows (in millions):  
 

Equity securities:                                  
U.S. large cap core      24.7       24.7       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      0.8       --      0.8       --  
U.S. large cap growth      0.8       --      0.8       --  
U.S. mid cap core      12.8       12.8       --      --  
U.S. small cap value      0.2       --      0.2       --  
U.S. small cap growth      0.1       0.1       --      --  
International - developed markets      1.2       0.6       0.6       --  
International - emerging markets      0.4       0.4       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      4.6       --      4.6       --  
Government and agency obligations      3.0       --      3.0       --  
Fixed income funds      15.5       14.3       1.2       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      0.8       0.2       0.5       0.1   
      69.4     $ 57.6     $ 11.7     $ 0.1   

Accrued investment income      0.1                           
Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (1.1 )                         

Total other postretirement benefits plan assets    $ 68.4                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 0.2   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (0.1 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ 0.1   

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements     Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    

Dec. 31, 2009                          
Assets:                          

Derivative assets    $ 16.4     $ --    $ 8.5     $ 7.9   
Available-for -sale securities      2.3       0.4       1.8       0.1   

Liabilities:                                  
Derivative liabilities      53.0       --      51.1       1.9   

                                  
Dec. 31, 2008                                  
Assets:                                  

Derivative assets      8.7       --      1.6       7.1   
Available-for-sale securities      2.3       2.3       --      --  

Liabilities:                                  
Derivative liabilities      88.2       --      81.4       6.8   

    Derivative Assets and    
    Liabilities, net    
    2009      2008    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1    $ 0.3     $ 15.0   
Total gains or (losses) (realized/unrealized) included in changes in net assets (a)      (2.8 )     (1.3 ) 
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net      8.6       (13.4 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31    $ 6.1     $ 0.3   

                  
The amount of total gains or (losses) for the period included in changes in net                  

assets attributable to the change in unrealized gains or (losses) relating to assets                  
and liabilities held at Dec. 31 (a)    $ (2.8 )   $ 0.3   
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Refer to Notes 1(r) and 10 of Alliant Energy’s “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information on fair value 
measurements.  
 
(14)   SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS  
IPL is a utility serving customers in Iowa and Minnesota and includes three segments: a) electric operations; b) gas operations; and c) other, which 
includes steam operations, various other energy-related products and services and the unallocated portions of the utility business.  Various line 
items in the following tables are not allocated to the electric and gas segments for management reporting purposes and therefore are included in 
“Total.”  Intersegment revenues were not material to IPL’s operations and there was no single customer whose revenues were 10% or more of 
IPL’s consolidated revenues.  Certain financial information relating to IPL’s business segments was as follows (in millions):  
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(16)   SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DA TA (UNAUDITED)  
 

   

(a)   Recorded in “Regulatory assets”  and “Regulatory liabilities”  on IPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

    Electric      Gas      Other      Total    

2009                          
Operating revenues    $ 1,315.6     $ 308.8     $ 83.6     $ 1,708.0   
Depreciation and amortization      130.3       13.6       8.9       152.8   
Operating income (loss)      196.8       27.7       (2.8 )     221.7   
Interest expense, net of allowance for funds used                                  

during construction (AFUDC)                              42.5   
Interest income                              (0.8 ) 
Income taxes                              27.0   
Net income                              153.0   
Preferred dividends                              15.4   
Earnings available for common stock                              137.6   
Total assets      3,976.6       461.4       454.2       4,892.2   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      711.3       17.5       4.8       733.6   

2008                                  
Operating revenues      1,258.3       410.4       89.3       1,758.0   
Depreciation and amortization      115.5       12.7       3.1       131.3   
Operating income (loss)      219.2       25.9       (5.4)       239.7   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              46.8   
Interest income                              (1.3)   
Income taxes                              52.6   
Net income                              141.6   
Preferred dividends                              15.4   
Earnings available for common stock                              126.2   
Total assets      3,232.1       483.4       495.4       4,210.9   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      438.8       14.5       26.0       479.3   

2007                                  
Operating revenues      1,270.1       364.5       61.3       1,695.9   
Depreciation and amortization      128.9       12.2       2.0       143.1   
Gain on sale of IPL’s electric transmission assets      218.8       --      --      218.8   
Operating income      512.2       22.0       0.9       535.1   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              59.1   
Interest income                              (1.1)   
Income taxes                              186.8   
Net income                              290.3   
Preferred dividends                              15.4   
Earnings available for common stock                              274.9   
Total assets      2,646.3       399.0       316.7       3,362.0   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      296.2       17.1       2.1       315.4   

    2009      2008    

    
March 

31      June 30      Sep. 30      Dec. 31      March 31     June 30      Sep. 30      Dec. 31    
    (in millions)    
                                                  
Operating revenues    $ 492.4     $ 343.8     $ 457.9     $ 413.9     $ 473.3     $ 385.4     $ 464.4     $ 434.9   
Operating income      24.2       33.7       116.6       47.2       57.9       32.3       104.7       44.8   
Net income      41.7       19.4       72.8       19.1       29.2       20.5       63.1       28.8   
Earnings available for common stock      37.8       15.6       69.0       15.2       25.3       16.7       59.3       24.9   
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MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 
The management of Wisconsin Power and Light Company and subsidiaries (WPL) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934.  WPL’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.  
 
WPL’s management assessed the effectiveness of WPL’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 using the criteria set 
forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Based on 
this assessment, WPL’s management concluded that, as of December 31, 2009, WPL’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.  
 
 
/s/ William D. Harvey  
William D. Harvey  
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
 
 
/s/ Patricia L. Kampling  
Patricia L. Kampling  
Executive Vice President-Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  
 
 
/s/ Thomas L. Hanson  
Thomas L. Hanson  
Vice President-Controller and Chief Accounting Officer  
 
 
February 26, 2010  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of Wisconsin Power and Light Company  
Madison, Wisconsin  
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wisconsin Power and Light Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, common equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009.  Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 
15.  These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our 
audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
 
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Also, in our opinion, such financial statement 
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein.  
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/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin  
February 26, 2010  
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WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

                    
    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
Operating revenues:                    
  Electric utility    $ 1,160.3     $ 1,153.0     $ 1,140.7   
  Gas utility      216.5       300.0       265.7   
  Other      9.3       12.8       10.4   
      1,386.1       1,465.8       1,416.8   
    
                         
Operating expenses:                          
  Electric production fuel and energy purchases      451.3       434.2       417.5   
  Purchased electric capacity      144.6       145.1       166.6   
  Electric transmission service      94.2       93.2       81.0   
  Cost of gas sold      138.1       213.6       175.0   
  Other operation and maintenance      234.3       232.3       236.2   
  Depreciation and amortization      115.4       101.7       109.9   
  Taxes other than income taxes      41.2       40.8       39.9   
      1,219.1       1,260.9       1,226.1   
    
                          
Operating income      167.0       204.9       190.7   
    
                          
Interest expense and other:                          
  Interest expense      74.8       62.2       49.6   
  Equity income from unconsolidated investments      (37.0 )     (33.9 )     (28.4 ) 
  Allowance for funds used during construction      (5.7 )     (9.6 )     (2.6 ) 
  Interest income and other      (0.4 )     (0.6 )     (0.7 ) 
      31.7       18.1       17.9   
    
                          
Income before income taxes      135.3       186.8       172.8   
    
                          
Income taxes      45.8       68.4       59.3   
    
                          
Net income      89.5       118.4       113.5   
    
                          
Preferred dividend requirements      3.3       3.3       3.3   
    
                          
Earnings available for common stock    $ 86.2     $ 115.1     $ 110.2   

    
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY    
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS    
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    December 31,    
ASSETS    2009      2008    
    (in millions)    
Property, plant and equipment:              
  Electric plant in service    $ 2,726.5     $ 2,500.3   
  Gas plant in service      393.8       370.1   
  Other plant in service      219.8       198.1   
  Accumulated depreciation      (1,185.8 )     (1,165.9 ) 
     Net plant      2,154.3       1,902.6   
  Leased Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility, less accumulated amortization of $28.2 and $22.1      95.5       101.7   
  Construction work in progress:                  
     Bent Tree - Phase I wind project      165.5       -  
     Other      39.4       88.4   
  Other, less accumulated depreciation of $1.6 and $1.1      21.0       3.8   
      2,475.7       2,096.5   
      
                  
Current assets:                  
  Cash and cash equivalents      18.5       4.5   
  Accounts receivable:                  
     Customer, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.6 and $1.8      80.8       83.4   
     Unbilled utility revenues      86.7       92.5   
     Other, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.4 and $-      45.7       75.9   
  Income tax refunds receivable      81.3       8.4   
  Production fuel, at weighted average cost      39.1       40.4   
  Materials and supplies, at weighted average cost      22.7       22.8   
  Gas stored underground, at weighted average cost      27.4       47.9   
  Regulatory assets      78.6       21.8   
  Prepaid gross receipts tax      38.5       37.8   
  Derivative assets      11.2       10.7   
  Other      30.3       25.6   
      560.8       471.7   
    
                  
Investments:                  
  Investment in American Transmission Company LLC      218.6       195.1   
  Other      22.7       22.2   
      241.3       217.3   
    
                  
Other assets:                  
  Regulatory assets      331.3       378.6   
  Deferred charges and other      72.3       101.4   
      403.6       480.0   
    
                  
Total assets    $ 3,681.4     $ 3,265.5   

    
                  
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY    
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)    

              
    December 31,    
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES    2009      2008    
    (in millions, except per    
    share and share amounts)    
Capitalization:              
  Wisconsin Power and Light Company common equity:              

Common stock - $5 par value - 18,000,000 shares authorized;          
      13,236,601 shares outstanding    $ 66.2     $ 66.2   

Additional paid-in capital      768.9       668.9   
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Retained earnings      419.6       424.4   
      Total Wisconsin Power and Light Company common equity      1,254.7       1,159.5   

  Cumulative preferred stock      60.0       60.0   
  Long-term debt, net (excluding current portion)      931.6       782.9   
      2,246.3       2,002.4   
    
                  
Current liabilities:                  
  Current maturities of long-term debt      100.0       -  
  Commercial paper      -      43.7   
  Accounts payable      99.6       130.9   
  Accounts payable to associated companies      15.7       26.1   
  Accrued interest      24.1       17.9   
  Regulatory liabilities      32.5       50.9   
  Accrued taxes      6.1       2.4   
  Derivative liabilities      51.0       8.6   
  Other      33.4       24.0   
      362.4       304.5   
    
                  
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits:                  
  Deferred income taxes      490.8       329.3   
  Regulatory liabilities      159.6       174.1   
  Capital lease obligations - Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility      110.4       113.4   
  Pension and other benefit obligations      121.7       185.1   
  Other      190.2       156.7   
      1,072.7       958.6   
    
                  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)                  
    
                  
Total capitalization and liabilities    $ 3,681.4     $ 3,265.5   

    
                  
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY    
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS    

                    
    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
Cash flows from operating activities:                    
  Net income    $ 89.5     $ 118.4     $ 113.5   
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash                          
   flows from operating activities:                          
     Depreciation and amortization      115.4       101.7       109.9   
     Other amortizations      35.2       38.4       38.7   
     Deferred tax expense (benefit) and investment tax credits      157.7       36.1       (6.9 ) 
     Equity income from unconsolidated investments      (37.0 )     (33.9 )     (28.4 ) 
     Distributions from equity method investments      29.9       27.8       21.7   
     Other      8.5       (6.6 )     (1.6 ) 
  Other changes in assets and liabilities:                          
     Accounts receivable      31.3       (68.7 )     19.6   
     Income tax refunds receivable      (72.9 )     (5.8 )     (0.7 ) 
     Prepaid pension costs      -      37.2       (24.2 ) 
     Regulatory assets      (54.2 )     (192.3 )     44.3   
     Accounts payable      (16.0 )     27.2       2.6   
     Regulatory liabilities      (22.2 )     2.3       3.7   
     Derivative liabilities      51.5       7.1       (38.8 ) 
     Deferred income taxes      2.5       22.4       15.1   
     Non-current taxes payable      36.2       (0.2 )     0.1   
     Pension and other benefit obligations      (63.4 )     112.3       0.4   
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     Other      13.8       16.3       (11.0 ) 
       Net cash flows from operating activities      305.8       239.7       258.0   
    
                          
Cash flows used for investing activities:                          

Utility construction and acquisition expenditures:                    
         Neenah Energy Facility and related assets      (92.4 )     -      -  
         Other      (416.0 )     (363.1 )     (203.1 ) 
     Advances for customer energy efficiency projects      (28.1 )     (34.5 )     (44.9 ) 
     Collections of advances for customer energy efficiency projects      58.6       33.1       30.7   
     Proceeds from asset sales      0.1       2.6       23.6   
     Other      (15.6 )     (14.1 )     (13.3 ) 
       Net cash flows used for investing activities      (493.4 )     (376.0 )     (207.0 ) 
    
                          
Cash flows from (used for) financing activities:                          
     Common stock dividends      (91.0 )     (91.3 )     (191.1 ) 
     Preferred stock dividends      (3.3 )     (3.3 )     (3.3 ) 
     Capital contribution from parent      100.0       100.0       -  
     Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt      250.0       250.0       300.0   
     Payments to retire long-term debt      -      (60.0 )     (105.0 ) 
     Net change in short-term borrowings      (43.7 )     (38.1 )     (53.1 ) 
     Other      (10.4 )     (16.9 )     0.3   
       Net cash flows from (used for) financing activities      201.6       140.4       (52.2 ) 
    
                          
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      14.0       4.1       (1.2 ) 
    
                          
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period      4.5       0.4       1.6   
    
                          
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 18.5     $ 4.5     $ 0.4   

    
                          
Supplemental cash flows information:                          
  Cash paid (refunded) during the period for:                          
    Interest    $ 69.6     $ 57.6     $ 42.5   

    Income taxes, net of refunds    $ (76.1 )   $ 30.7     $ 62.5   

  Noncash investing and financing activities:                          
    Capital lease obligations incurred    $ 0.7     $ -    $ -  

    
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON EQUITY  

                                
                      Accumulated      Total    
          Additional           Other      WPL    
    Common      Paid-In      Retained      Comprehensive     Common    
    Stock      Capital      Earnings      Loss      Equity    
    (in millions)    
2007:                                
Beginning balance (a)    $ 66.2     $ 568.6     $ 483.5     $ (7.5 )   $ 1,110.8   

Earnings available for common stock                      110.2               110.2   
Common stock dividends                      (191.1 )             (191.1 ) 
Adoption of accounting for uncertain tax positions (Note 5)                (0.8 )             (0.8 ) 
Other              0.2                       0.2   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax                              7.5       7.5   

Ending balance      66.2       568.8       401.8       -      1,036.8   
                                          
2008:                                          
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WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Except as modified below, the Alliant Energy Corporation (Alliant Energy) “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” are incorporated by 
reference insofar as they relate to Wisconsin Power and Light Company (WPL) and incorporate the disclosures relating to WPL contained in the 
following notes of the Alliant Energy “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”:  
 

 
The notes that follow herein set forth additional specific information for WPL and are numbered to be consistent with the Alliant Energy “Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.”  
 
(1)   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Earnings available for common stock                      115.1               115.1   
Common stock dividends                      (91.3 )             (91.3 ) 
Capital contribution from parent              100.0                       100.0   
Adoption of new measurement date for retirement plans,                                    

net of tax of ($1.2) (Note 6(a))                      (1.2 )             (1.2 ) 
Other              0.1                       0.1   

Ending balance      66.2       668.9       424.4       -      1,159.5   
                                          
2009:                                          

Earnings available for common stock                      86.2               86.2   
Common stock dividends                      (91.0 )             (91.0 ) 
Capital contribution from parent              100.0                       100.0   

Ending balance    $ 66.2     $ 768.9     $ 419.6     $ -    $ 1,254.7   
                                          
(a) Accumulated other comprehensive loss at Jan. 1, 2007 consisted entirely of retirement benefits compensation-related    
     adjustments.   

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

                    
    Year Ended December 31,    
    2009      2008      2007    
    (in millions)    
                    
Earnings available for common stock    $ 86.2     $ 115.1     $ 110.2   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:                          

Pension and other postretirement benefits amortizations and                          
reclassification to regulatory assets, net of tax of $-, $- and $5.7      -      -      7.5   

Total other comprehensive income      -      -      7.5   
Comprehensive income    $ 86.2     $ 115.1     $ 117.7   

    
                          
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.    

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  Note 1(a) to 1(e), 1(g) to 1(k), 1(m), 1(n), 1(p) to 1(r)  
Utility Rate Cases  Note 2  
Operating Leases  Note 3(a)  
Receivables  Note 4(d), 4(e)  
Income Taxes  Note 5  
Benefit Plans  Note 6  
Common Equity and Preferred Stock  Note 7(a), 7(b)  
Debt  Note 8  
Investments  Note 9(b)  
Fair Value Measurements  Note 10  
Derivative Instruments  Note 11  
Commitments and Contingencies  Note 12(a), 12(b), 12(c), 12(e), 12(f), 12(h), 12(i)  
Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant  Note 13  
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  Note 15  
Discontinued Operations  Note 17  
Asset Retirement Obligations  Note 18  
Variable Interest Entities  Note 19  
Related Parties  Note 20  
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(a)  General - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of WPL and its primary consolidated subsidiary, WPL Transco 
LLC.  WPL is a direct subsidiary of Alliant Energy and is engaged principally in the generation and distribution of electric energy, the distribution 
and transportation of natural gas, and various other energy-related services.  WPL’s service territories are located in south and central Wisconsin.  
 
(3)   LEASES  
(a)  Operating Leases - WPL has entered into various agreements related to property, plant and equipment rights that are accounted for as 
operating leases.  WPL’s most significant operating leases relate to certain purchased power agreements (PPAs).  These PPAs contain fixed rental 
payments related to capacity and contingent rental payments related to the energy portion (actual megawatt-hours) of the respective 
agreements.  Rental expenses associated with WPL’s operating leases were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, WPL’s future minimum operating lease payments, excluding contingent rentals, were as follows (in millions):  
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(b)   Capital Lease - In 2005, WPL entered into a 20-year agreement with Alliant Energy Resources, LLC’s (Resources’) Non-regulated 
Generation business to lease the Sheboygan Falls Energy Facility (SFEF), with an option for two lease renewal periods thereafter.  The lease 
became effective in 2005 when SFEF began commercial operation.  WPL is responsible for the operation of SFEF and has exclusive rights to its 
output.  In 2005, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) approved this affiliated lease agreement with initial monthly payments of 
approximately $1.3 million.  The lease payments were based on a 50% debt to capital ratio, a return on equity of 10.9%, a cost of debt based on 
the cost of senior notes issued by Resources’ Non-regulated Generation business in 2005 and certain costs incurred to construct the facility.  In 
accordance with its order approving the lease agreement, the PSCW will review the capital structure, return on equity and cost of debt every five 
years from the date of the order.  The capital lease asset is amortized using the straight-line method over the 20-year lease term.  Since the 
inception of the lease in 2005, WPL’s retail and wholesale rates have included recovery of the monthly SFEF lease payments.  In 2009, 2008 and 
2007, SFEF lease expenses were $18.5 million, $18.8 million and $19.0 million ($12.3 million, $12.6 million and $12.8 million included in 
“Interest expense” and $6.2 million, $6.2 million and $6.2 million included in “Depreciation and amortization” in WPL’s Consolidated Statements 
of Income), respectively.  At Dec. 31, 2009, WPL’s estimated future minimum capital lease payments for SFEF were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(5)   INCOME TAXES  
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) - The components of “Income taxes” in WPL’s Consolidated Statements of Income were as follows (in millions):  
 

 

    2009      2008      2007    
Operating lease rental expenses (excluding contingent rentals)    $ 68     $ 77     $ 96   
Contingent rentals related to certain PPAs      7       7       19   
Other contingent rentals      --      --      1   
    $ 75     $ 84     $ 116   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter      Total    
Riverside Energy Center PPA    $ 58     $ 59     $ 60     $ 17     $ --    $ --    $ 194   
Synthetic leases (a)      5       1       1       1       4       2       14   
Other      2       5       1       2       --      1       11   
    $ 65     $ 65     $ 62     $ 20     $ 4     $ 3     $ 219   

(a)   The synthetic leases relate to the financing of certain utility railcars.  The entities that lease these assets to WPL are not required to be 
consolidated and are not included on WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  WPL has guaranteed the residual value of the related assets, 
which total $7 million in the aggregate.  The guarantees extend through the maturity of each respective underlying lease with remaining terms 
up to six years.  Residual value guarantee amounts have been included in the future minimum operating lease payments.  

                                          Less: amount      Present value of net    
                                          representing      minimum capital    

2010      2011      2012      2013      2014      Thereafter     Total      interest      lease payments    
$ 15     $ 15     $ 15     $ 15     $ 15     $ 158     $ 233     $ 120     $ 113   

    2009      2008      2007    
Current tax expense (benefit):                    

Federal    $ (137.7 )   $ 22.4     $ 55.8   
State      (14.3 )     10.5       10.2   

Deferred tax expense (benefit):                          
Federal      153.6       34.2       (4.0 ) 
State      9.3       3.3       (1.3 ) 

Production tax credit      (3.9 )     (0.3 )     --  
Investment tax credits      (1.3 )     (1.4 )     (1.5 ) 
Provision recorded as a change in uncertain tax positions      39.7       0.1       --  
Provision recorded as a change in accrued interest      0.4       (0.4 )     0.1   
    $ 45.8     $ 68.4     $ 59.3   
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Income Tax Rates - The overall effective income tax rates shown in the following table were computed by dividing total income tax expense by 
income before income taxes.  
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Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - Consistent with rate making treatment, deferred taxes are offset in the table below for temporary 
differences which have related regulatory assets and liabilities.  The deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities included on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 arise from the following temporary differences (in millions):  
 

 
Uncertain Tax Positions - WPL adopted new authoritative guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes on Jan. 1, 
2007.  WPL’s cumulative effect of the adoption was an increase in its net liability for uncertain tax positions and a reduction to its Jan. 1, 2007 
balance of retained earnings of $0.8 million.  
 
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of uncertain tax positions, excluding interest, for WPL for 2009, 2008 and 2007 is as 
follows (in millions):  
 

  2009    2008    2007  
Statutory federal income tax rate  35.0%   35.0%   35.0% 

State income taxes, net of federal benefits  4.4   4.6   4.8 
Adjustment of prior period taxes  0.7   0.2   (0.1) 
Amortization of excess deferred taxes  (0.2)   (0.7)   (1.0) 
Amortization of investment tax credits  (1.0)   (0.7)   (0.8) 
State filing changes  (1.8)   --  --
Production tax credits  (2.9)   (0.2)   --
Other items, net  (0.3)   (1.6)   (3.6) 

Overall effective income tax rate  33.9%   36.6%   34.3% 

    2009      2008    
    Deferred      Deferred Tax            Deferred      Deferred Tax          
    Tax Assets      Liabilities      Net      Tax Assets      Liabilities      Net    
Property    $ --    $ 389.0     $ 389.0     $ --    $ 232.5     $ 232.5   
Investment in American                                                  

Transmission Co. LLC (ATC)      --      71.5       71.5       --      52.2       52.2   
Pension and other postretirement                                                  

benefits obligations      --      31.4       31.4       --      33.5       33.5   
Prepaid gross receipts tax      --      15.3       15.3       --      15.1       15.1   
Regulatory asset - WPL base-load 
project      --      5.1       5.1       --      11.0       11.0   
Regulatory asset/(liability) - commodity                                                  

cost recovery      --      1.6       1.6       (18.1 )     --      (18.1 ) 
Investment tax credits      (8.2 )     --      (8.2 )     (9.0 )     --      (9.0 ) 
Net operating losses carryforward - state     (9.2 )     --      (9.2 )     --      --      --  
Federal credit carryforward      (11.2 )     --      (11.2 )     --      --      --  
Customer advances      (14.6 )     --      (14.6 )     (13.6 )     --      (13.6 ) 
Net operating losses carryforward - 
federal      (15.4 )     --      (15.4 )     --      --      --  
Other      (13.0 )     23.8       10.8       (8.2 )     13.0       4.8   
    $ (71.6 )   $ 537.7     $ 466.1     $ (48.9 )   $ 357.3     $ 308.4   

                                                  
                      2009                       2008   
Other current assets                    $ (24.7 )                   $ (20.9 ) 
Deferred income taxes                      490.8                       329.3   

Total deferred tax (assets) and liabilities      $ 466.1                     $ 308.4   

    2009      2008      2007    
Balance, Jan. 1    $ 2.5     $ 2.4     $ 2.4   
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year      2.5       0.4       0.1   
Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year      --      --      --  
Additions for tax positions of prior years      37.3       2.5       --  
Reductions for tax positions of prior years      (0.2 )     (0.3 )     (0.1 ) 
Settlements with taxing authorities      --      (2.5 )     --  
Lapse of statute of limitations      --      --      --  
Balance, Dec. 31    $ 42.1     $ 2.5     $ 2.4   

                          
    Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,      Dec. 31,    
      2009       2008       2007   
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(6)   BENEFIT PLANS  
(a)  Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits Plans - A significant number of WPL’s employees are covered by non-contributory defined 
benefit pension plans.  Benefits of the non-contributory defined benefit pension plans are based on the plan participant’s years of service, age and 
compensation.  WPL also provides certain defined benefit postretirement health care and life benefits to eligible retirees.  In general, the health 
care plans are contributory with participants’ contributions adjusted regularly and the life insurance plans are non-contributory.  
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Assumptions - The assumptions at the measurement dates of Dec. 31, 2009, Dec. 31, 2008 and Sep. 30, 2007 for WPL’s qualified defined benefit 
pension and other postretirement benefits plans were equal to the assumptions used for Alliant Energy’s defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans, respectively, except for the rate of compensation increase for its qualified defined benefit pension plan.  WPL’s rates 
of compensation increase for its qualified defined benefit pension plan were 3.5% for 2009, 2008 and 2007.  
 
Net Periodic Benefit Costs - The components of WPL’s net periodic benefit costs for its qualified defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans were as follows (in millions):  
 

 
In the above table, the qualified defined benefit pension plan costs represent only those respective costs for bargaining unit employees of WPL 
covered under the plan that is sponsored by WPL.  The other postretirement benefits costs represent costs for all WPL employees.  Alliant Energy 
Corporate Services, Inc. (Corporate Services) provides services to WPL, and as a result, WPL is allocated pension and other postretirement 
benefits costs associated with Corporate Services.  The following table includes pension benefits costs (credits) for WPL’s non-bargaining 
employees who are participants in other Alliant Energy plans, and the allocated pension and other postretirement benefits costs associated with 
Corporate Services for WPL as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Alliant Energy sponsors several non-qualified defined benefit pension plans that cover certain current and former key employees.  In 2009, 2008 
and 2007, the pension expense allocated to WPL for these plans was $2.1 million, $2.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively.  Included for 2007 
was the settlement loss of $0.8 million related to payments made to a retired executive.  
 
The assumed medical trend rates are critical assumptions in determining the service and interest cost and accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation related to other postretirement benefits costs.  A 1% change in the medical trend rates for 2009, holding all other assumptions constant, 
would have the following effects (in millions):  
 

 
The estimated amortization from “Regulatory assets” on WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheet into net periodic benefit cost in 2010 is as follows (in 
millions):  
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Tax positions favorably impacting future effective tax rates    $ 1.4     $ 1.7     $ 1.5   
Interest accrued      2.1       0.3       0.5   
Penalties accrued      --      --      --  

    Qualified Defined      Other Postretirement    
    Benefit Pension Plans      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Service cost    $ 4.9     $ 5.3     $ 5.6     $ 3.4     $ 3.3     $ 3.3   
Interest cost      15.5       15.0       13.7       5.5       5.5       5.2   
Expected return on plan assets      (14.1 )     (21.4 )     (19.2 )     (1.1 )     (1.9 )     (1.8 ) 
Amortization of:                                                  

Prior service cost (credit)      0.5       0.8       0.8       (0.9 )     (1.0 )     (1.0 ) 
Actuarial loss      10.4       1.0       2.9       1.3       1.0       1.1   

Curtailment loss (a)      0.7       --      --      --      --      --  
Special termination benefits costs (b)      0.9       --      --      --      --      --  
    $ 18.8     $ 0.7     $ 3.8     $ 8.2     $ 6.9     $ 6.8   

(a)   Refer to Note 6(a) of Alliant Energy’s “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for details of the $0.7 million one-time curtailment loss 
recognized by WPL in 2009.  

(b)   In 2009, WPL recognized special termination benefits costs of $0.9 million related to the qualified defined benefit pension plan that is 
sponsored by WPL as a result of the elimination of certain operations positions in 2009.  

    Pension Benefits Costs (Credits)      Other Postretirement Benefits Costs    
    2009      2008      2007      2009      2008      2007    
Non-bargaining WPL employees                                      

participating in other plans    $ 3.4     $ (2.9 )   $ (0.8 )     N/A       N/A       N/A   
Allocated Corporate Services costs      1.1       0.7       2.8     $ 1.2     $ 1.0     $ 0.8   

    1% Increase      1% Decrease    
Effect on total of service and interest cost components    $ 0.5     $ (0.5 ) 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation      4.5       (4.7 ) 
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In addition to the estimated amortizations from “Regulatory assets” in the above table, $4 million of amortizations are expected in 2010 from 
“Regulatory assets” associated with Corporate Services employees participating in Alliant Energy sponsored plans allocated to WPL.  
 
Benefit Plan Assets and Obligations - The benefit plan assets and obligations associated with WPL’s non-bargaining employees who are 
participants in other Alliant Energy plans are reported in Alliant Energy’s Consolidated Financial Statements and are not reported in the following 
tables.  A reconciliation of the funded status of WPL’s qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefits plans to the amounts 
recognized on WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dec. 31 was as follows (Not Applicable (N/A); in millions):  
 

 
In addition to the amounts recognized in “Regulatory assets” in the above table, $79 million and $100 million of “Regulatory assets” were 
recognized for amounts associated with Corporate Services employees participating in Alliant Energy sponsored benefit plans that were allocated 
to WPL at Dec. 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  
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Included in the following table are WPL’s accumulated benefit obligations, amounts applicable to qualified defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefits plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, as well as the qualified defined benefit pension plan 
with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets as of the Dec. 31 measurement date (in millions):  
 

    Qualified Defined      Other Postretirement    
    Benefit Pension Plan      Benefits Plans    
Actuarial loss    $ 8.5     $ 2.0   
Prior service cost (credit)      0.5       (0.9 ) 
    $ 9.0     $ 1.1   

    Qualified Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plan      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
Change in projected benefit obligation:                          

Net projected benefit obligation at measurement date    $ 252.9     $ 238.6     $ 89.3     $ 87.7   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      2.8       --      0.4   
Service cost      4.9       5.3       3.4       3.3   
Interest cost      15.5       15.0       5.5       5.5   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      2.9       3.0   
Actuarial (gain) loss      7.5       0.7       7.9       (0.1 ) 
Gross benefits paid      (10.1 )     (9.5 )     (10.4 )     (11.0 ) 
Federal subsidy on other postretirement benefits paid      --      --      0.5       0.5   
Special termination benefits      0.9       --      --      --  

Net projected benefit obligation at Dec. 31      271.6       252.9       99.1       89.3   
                                  
Change in plan assets:                                  

Fair value of plan assets at measurement date      164.6       253.3       14.6       20.9   
Effect of change from Sep. 30 to Dec. 31 measurement date      --      3.0       --      0.1   
Actual return on plan assets      39.7       (82.2 )     3.2       (5.9 ) 
Employer contributions      42.4       --      8.5       7.5   
Plan participants’  contributions      --      --      2.9       3.0   
Gross benefits paid      (10.1 )     (9.5 )     (10.4 )     (11.0 ) 

Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31      236.6       164.6       18.8       14.6   
                                  
Under funded status at Dec. 31    $ (35.0 )   $ (88.3 )   $ (80.3 )   $ (74.7 ) 

                                  
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated                                  

Balance Sheets consist of:                                  
Other current liabilities    $ --    $ --    $ (3.5 )   $ (4.5 ) 
Pension and other benefit obligations      (35.0 )     (88.3 )     (76.8 )     (70.2 ) 

Net amount recognized at Dec. 31    $ (35.0 )   $ (88.3 )   $ (80.3 )   $ (74.7 ) 

                                  
Amounts recognized in Regulatory Assets:                                  

Net actuarial loss    $ 112.5     $ 140.9     $ 28.6     $ 23.7   
Prior service cost (credit)      3.4       4.7       (1.7 )     (2.6 ) 

    $ 115.9     $ 145.6     $ 26.9     $ 21.1   

    Qualified Defined Benefit      Other Postretirement    
    Pension Plan      Benefits Plans    
    2009      2008      2009      2008    
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Estimated Future Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments - WPL estimates that funding for the qualified defined benefit pension plan 
for its bargaining unit employees and other postretirement benefits plans during 2010 will be $0 and $9 million, respectively.  
 
The expected benefit payments and Medicare subsidies, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Fair Value Measurements - At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair values of WPL’s qualified defined benefit pension plan assets by asset category and fair 
value hierarchy level were as follows (in millions):  
 

(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
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Additional information for WPL’s qualified defined benefit pension plan assets fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
 

 
At Dec. 31, 2009, the fair value of WPL’s other postretirement benefits plans assets by asset category and fair value hierarchy level were as 
follows (in millions):  
 

Accumulated benefit obligations    $ 253.2     $ 230.1     $ 99.1     $ 89.3   
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess                                  

of plan assets:                                  
Accumulated benefit obligations      253.2       230.1       99.1       89.3   
Fair value of plan assets      236.6       164.6       18.8       14.6   

Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess                                  
of plan assets:                                  

Projected benefit obligations      271.6       252.9       N/A       N/A   
Fair value of plan assets      236.6       164.6       N/A       N/A   

    2010      2011      2012      2013      2014        2015 - 2019   
Pension benefits    $ 10.5     $ 11.0     $ 11.8     $ 12.7     $ 13.9     $ 89.6   
Other postretirement benefits      7.3       7.4       7.4       7.5       8.0       46.3   
Medicare subsidies      (0.5 )     (0.6 )     (0.6 )     (0.7 )     (0.8 )     (4.8 ) 
    $ 17.3     $ 17.8     $ 18.6     $ 19.5     $ 21.1     $ 131.1   

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 11.0     $ 11.0     $ --    $ --  
Equity securities:                                  

U.S. large cap core      31.8       31.8       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      26.6       --      26.6       --  
U.S. large cap growth      26.4       --      26.4       --  
U.S. small cap value      7.1       --      7.1       --  
U.S. small cap growth      4.2       4.2       --      --  
International - developed markets      39.9       20.8       19.1       --  
International - emerging markets      12.0       12.0       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      18.9       --      18.9       --  
Government and agency obligations      21.6       --      21.6       --  
Fixed income funds      40.0       0.5       39.5       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      7.6       2.0       4.6       1.0   
      247.1     $ 82.3     $ 163.8     $ 1.0   

Accrued investment income      0.5                           
Due to brokers, net (a)      (1.0 )                         
Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (10.0 )                         

Total other postretirement plan assets    $ 236.6                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 2.2   

Actual return on plan assets:          
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date      (0.1 ) 
Relating to assets sold during the period      0.1   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (1.3 ) 
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3      0.1   

Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ 1.0   
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(a)  This category represents pending trades with brokers.  
 
Additional information for WPL’s other postretirement benefits plans assets fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 
3 inputs) for 2009 is as follows (in millions):  
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(9)   INVESTMENTS  
(a)  Unconsolidated Equity Investments - WPL’s unconsolidated investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting are as 
follows (dollars in millions):  
 

 
Summary financial information from the financial statements of these investments is as follows (in millions):  
 

 
(10) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS  
Recurring Fair Value Measurements - WPL’s recurring items subject to fair value measurements disclosure requirements at Dec. 31, 2009 and 
2008 were as follows (in millions):  
 

    Fair Value                      
    Measurements                      
    at Dec. 31, 2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
Cash and equivalents    $ 5.0     $ 5.0     $ --    $ --  
Equity securities:                                  

U.S. large cap core      1.1       1.1       --      --  
U.S. large cap value      0.9       --      0.9       --  
U.S. large cap growth      0.9       --      0.9       --  
U.S. small cap core      4.7       4.7       --      --  
U.S. small cap value      0.2       --      0.2       --  
U.S. small cap growth      0.1       0.1       --      --  
International - developed markets      1.4       0.7       0.7       --  
International - emerging markets      0.4       0.4       --      --  

Fixed income securities:                                  
Corporate bonds      1.3       --      1.3       --  
Government and agency obligations      1.1       --      1.1       --  
Fixed income funds      1.8       0.4       1.4       --  

Securities lending invested collateral      0.2       0.1       0.1       --  
      19.1     $ 12.5     $ 6.6     $ --  

Due to borrowers for securities lending program      (0.3 )                         
Total other postretirement plan assets    $ 18.8                           

    Securities Lending    
    Invested Collateral    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1, 2009    $ 0.1   

Purchases, sales and settlements, net      (0.1 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31, 2009    $ --  

    Ownership      Carrying Value          
    Interest at      at Dec. 31,      Equity Income    
    Dec. 31, 2009      2009      2008      2009      2008      2007    
ATC (a)      16%     $ 219     $ 195     $ (36 )   $ (32 )   $ (27 ) 
Wisconsin River Power Company      50%       8       9       (1 )     (2 )     (1 ) 
            $ 227     $ 204     $ (37 )   $ (34 )   $ (28 ) 

(a)   WPL has the ability to exercise significant influence over ATC’s financial and operating policies through its participation on ATC’s Board of 
Directors.  

    2009      2008      2007    
Operating revenues    $ 529     $ 474     $ 416   
Operating income      294       260       213   
Net income      215       192       157   

As of Dec. 31:                          
Current assets      54       53           
Non-current assets      2,786       2,499           
Current liabilities      286       253           
Non-current liabilities      1,340       1,233           

                          
    Fair Value                      
    Measurements     Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    
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Additional information for WPL’s recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs) for 2009 and 2008 is 
as follows (in millions):  
 

 
Refer to Notes 1(r) and 10 of Alliant Energy’s “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information on fair value 
measurements.  
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(14)   SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS  
WPL is a utility serving customers in Wisconsin and includes three segments: a) electric operations; b) gas operations; and c) other, which 
includes various other energy-related products and services and the unallocated portions of the utility business.  Various line items in the 
following tables are not allocated to the electric and gas segments for management reporting purposes and therefore are included in 
“Total.”  Intersegment revenues were not material to WPL’s operations and there was no single customer whose revenues were 10% or more of 
WPL’s consolidated revenues.  Certain financial information relating to WPL’s business segments was as follows (in millions):  
 

 

Dec. 31, 2009                          
Derivative assets    $ 15.3     $ --    $ 11.5     $ 3.8   
Derivative liabilities      66.3       --      62.2       4.1   
                                  
Dec. 31, 2008                                  
Derivative assets      19.6       --      1.0       18.6   
Derivative liabilities      14.8       --      10.6       4.2   

    Derivative Assets and    
    Liabilities, net    
    2009      2008    
Beginning balance, Jan. 1    $ 14.4     $ 12.7   
Total gains or (losses) (realized/unrealized) included in changes in net assets (a)      (0.7 )     20.6   
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net      (14.0 )     (18.9 ) 
Ending balance, Dec. 31    $ (0.3 )   $ 14.4   

                  
The amount of total gains or (losses) for the period included in changes in net                  

assets attributable to the change in unrealized gains or (losses) relating to assets                  
and liabilities held at Dec. 31 (a)    $ (0.7 )   $ 14.4   

(a)   Recorded in “Regulatory assets”  and “Regulatory liabilities”  on WPL’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

    Electric      Gas      Other      Total    

2009                          
Operating revenues    $ 1,160.3     $ 216.5     $ 9.3     $ 1,386.1   
Depreciation and amortization      103.2       12.2       --      115.4   
Operating income (loss)      145.4       24.6       (3.0 )     167.0   
Interest expense, net of allowance for funds used                                  

during construction (AFUDC)                              69.1   
Equity income from unconsolidated investments      (37.0 )     --      --      (37.0 ) 
Interest income and other                              (0.4 ) 
Income taxes                              45.8   
Net income                              89.5   
Preferred dividends                              3.3   
Earnings available for common stock                              86.2   
Total assets      2,891.0       341.7       448.7       3,681.4   
Investments in equity method subsidiaries      227.1       --      --      227.1   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      480.5       27.7       0.2       508.4   

2008                                  
Operating revenues      1,153.0       300.0       12.8       1,465.8   
Depreciation and amortization      89.3       12.4       --      101.7   
Operating income      167.1       35.6       2.2       204.9   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              52.6   
Equity income from unconsolidated investments      (33.9)       --      --      (33.9)   
Interest income and other                              (0.6)   
Income taxes                              68.4   
Net income                              118.4   
Preferred dividends                              3.3   
Earnings available for common stock                              115.1   
Total assets      2,492.5       367.1       405.9       3,265.5   
Investments in equity method subsidiaries      203.6       --      --      203.6   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      336.3       25.3       1.5       363.1   
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(16)   SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DA TA (UNAUDITED)  
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None.  
 
ITEM 9A .  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
 
Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s management evaluated, with the participation of each of Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Disclosure Committee, the effectiveness of the design and operation of Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s 
and WPL’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the quarter ended Dec. 31, 2009 pursuant to the requirements of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  Based on their evaluation, the CEO and the CFO concluded that Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the quarter ended Dec. 31, 2009.  
 
The information required by Item 9A relating to “Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” and, with respect 
to Alliant Energy, “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information in 
Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.  There was no change in Alliant Energy’s, IPL’s and WPL’s internal control over financial 
reporting that occurred during the quarter ended Dec. 31, 2009 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Alliant 
Energy’s, IPL’s or WPL’s internal control over financial reporting.  
 
ITEM 9B .  OTHER INFORMATION  
 
None.  
 

PART III  
 
ITEM 10 .  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPOR ATE GOVERNANCE  
 
ALLIANT ENERGY AND IPL  
The directors of Alliant Energy and IPL are the same and therefore the information required by Item 10 relating to directors and nominees for 
election of directors is the same for both registrants.  The information required by Item 10 relating to directors and nominees for election of 
directors at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareowners is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Election 
of Directors” in Alliant Energy’s Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareowners (the 2010 Alliant Energy Proxy Statement), 
which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s fiscal years.  The information required by Item 10 
relating to the timely filing of reports under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant 
information under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the 2010 Alliant Energy Proxy 
Statement.  Information regarding executive officers of Alliant Energy and IPL may be found in Part I of this report under the caption “Executive 

2007                                  
Operating revenues      1,140.7       265.7       10.4       1,416.8   
Depreciation and amortization      95.7       14.2       --      109.9   
Operating income (loss)      157.7       37.9       (4.9)       190.7   
Interest expense, net of AFUDC                              47.0   
Equity income from unconsolidated investments      (28.4)       --      --      (28.4)   
Interest income and other                              (0.7)   
Income taxes                              59.3   
Net income                              113.5   
Preferred dividends                              3.3   
Earnings available for common stock                              110.2   
Total assets      2,215.5       341.1       232.0       2,788.6   
Investments in equity method subsidiaries      182.0       --      --      182.0   
Construction and acquisition expenditures      179.8       23.1       0.2       203.1   

    2009      2008    
    March 31      June 30      Sep. 30      Dec. 31      March 31      June 30      Sep. 30      Dec. 31    
    (in millions)    
                                                  
Operating revenues    $ 411.3     $ 300.4     $ 326.6     $ 347.8     $ 420.8     $ 328.0     $ 353.9     $ 363.1   
Operating income      52.1       25.7       41.5       47.7       54.4       36.3       69.6       44.6   
Net income      31.3       11.6       21.0       25.6       31.1       20.4       42.6       24.3   
Earnings available for common stock      30.5       10.7       20.2       24.8       30.3       19.5       41.8       23.5   

  ITEM 
9 .    

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE  
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Officers of the Registrants.”  The information required by Item 10 relating to audit committees and audit committee financial experts is 
incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Meetings and Committees of the Board” in the 2010 Alliant 
Energy Proxy Statement.  The code of ethics, also referred to as the Code of Conduct, of Alliant Energy and IPL are the same.  The information 
required by Item 10 relating to Alliant Energy’s and IPL’s Code of Conduct is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under 
the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2010 Alliant Energy Proxy Statement.  
 
WPL  
The information required by Item 10 relating to directors and nominees for election of directors at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareowners is 
incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Election of Directors” in WPL’s Proxy Statement for the 2010 
Annual Meeting of Shareowners (the 2010 WPL Proxy Statement), which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of WPL’s fiscal 
year.  The information required by Item 10 relating to the timely filing of reports under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is 
incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the 
2010 WPL Proxy Statement.  Information regarding executive officers of WPL may be found in Part I of this report under the caption “Executive 
Officers of the Registrants.”  The information required by Item 10 relating to audit committees and audit committee financial experts is 
incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Meetings and Committees of the Board” in the 2010 WPL Proxy 
Statement.  The information required by Item 10 relating to WPL’s code of ethics, also referred to as the Code of Conduct, is incorporated herein 
by reference to the relevant information under the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2010 WPL Proxy Statement.  
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ITEM 11 .  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION  
 
ALLIANT ENERGY  
The information required by Item 11 for Alliant Energy is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the captions 
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation and Personnel Committee Report,” “Summary Compensation Table,” “Grants of Plan-
Based Awards,” “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,” “Option Exercises and Stock Vested,” “Pension Benefits,” “Nonqualified 
Deferred Compensation,” “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control” and “Director Compensation” in the 2010 Alliant Energy 
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of Alliant Energy’s fiscal year.  
 
IPL AND WPL  
The directors and executive officers for IPL and WPL for which compensation information must be included are the same.  Therefore, the 
information required by Item 11 for each of IPL and WPL is incorporated herein by reference to the relevant information under the captions 
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation and Personnel Committee Report,” “Summary Compensation Table,” “Grants of Plan-
Based Awards,” “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,” “Option Exercises and Stock Vested,” “Pension Benefits,” “Nonqualified 
Deferred Compensation,” “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control” and “Director Compensation” in the 2010 WPL Proxy 
Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of IPL’s and WPL’s fiscal years.  
 

 
ALLIANT ENERGY  
Information regarding Alliant Energy’s equity compensation plans as of Dec. 31, 2009 was as follows (Not Applicable (N/A)):  
 

 

   

  ITEM 
12 .    

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND  MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  

                (C)    
    (A)      (B)      Number of securities    
    Number of securities      Weighted-average      remaining available for    
    to be issued upon      exercise price of      future issuance under    
    exercise of      outstanding      equity compensation plans    
    outstanding options,      options, warrants      (excluding securities    

Plan Category    warrants and rights      and rights      reflected in column (A))    
Equity compensation plans                    

approved by shareowners      783,289 (a)   $ 27.95       2,465,034 (b) 
Equity compensation plans not                          

approved by shareowners (c)      N/A       N/A       N/A (d) 
      783,289     $ 27.95       2,465,034   

(a)   Represents performance shares and options to purchase shares of Alliant Energy’s common stock granted under the Alliant Energy Long-
Term Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, and the Alliant Energy Amended and Restated 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (EIP).  The performance 
shares may be paid out in shares of Alliant Energy’s common stock, cash, or a combination of cash and stock and are adjusted by a 
performance multiplier, which ranges from zero to 200%, based on the performance criteria.  The performance shares included in column (A) 
of the table reflect an assumed payout in the form of Alliant Energy’s common stock at a performance multiplier of 200%.  

(b)   All of the available shares under the EIP may be issued upon the exercise of stock options or may be issued as awards in the form of stock 
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares or performance units.  Excludes 351,356 shares of non-vested 
restricted common stock previously issued and outstanding under the EIP at Dec. 31, 2009.  

(c)   As of Dec. 31, 2009, there were 262,161 shares of Alliant Energy’s common stock outstanding under the Alliant Energy Deferred 
Compensation Plan (DCP) described below.  

(d)   There is no limit on the number of shares of Alliant Energy’s common stock that may be held under the DCP.  
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